
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call David Penrose, Governance Services on 
01432 383690 or e-mail dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Health & Social Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date: Wednesday 4 February 2015 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Shire Hall, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 383690 
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Health & Social 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor CNH Attwood 
Vice-Chairman Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes 
   
  Councillor PA Andrews  
 Councillor JM Bartlett  
 Councillor PL Bettington  
 Councillor MJK Cooper  
 Councillor KS Guthrie  
 Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
 Councillor JLV Kenyon  
 Councillor NP Nenadich  
 Councillor CA North  
 Councillor SJ Robertson  
 Councillor P Sinclair-Knipe  
 Councillor GA Vaughan-Powell  
 

    
 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  4 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
  
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive details of any Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
Agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

9 - 12 

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2015. 
 

 

5.   SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 
FUTURE SCRUTINY 
 

 

 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 
Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 
(There will be no discussion of the issue at the time when the matter is raised.  
Consideration will be given to whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities.) 
 

 

6.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

 

 To note questions received from the public and the items to which they 
relate. 
 
(Questions are welcomed for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee meeting so long as 
the question is directly related to an item listed on the agenda.  If you have a question 
you would like to ask then please submit it no later than two working days before the 
meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting).   
 

 

7.   ACCOUNTABILITY SESSION 
 

 

 To hold a public accountability session for organisations within the health 
sector.  This session shall focus on the 2gether NHS Foundation Trust. 
 

 

8.   CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING UPDATE 
 

13 - 90 

 To receive a report on the outcomes of the Department for Education (DfE) 
Review, the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board (HSCB) Local 
Government Association (LGA) Peer Diagnostic and an update on the 
progress to date on the Ofsted Action Plan. 
 

 

9.   MANDATORY TRAINING FOR ELECTED MEMBERS 
 

91 - 94 

 To consider a proposal for mandatory corporate parenting and safeguarding 
training for all Councillors. 
 

 

10.   CARE ACT 2014 - UPDATE 
 

95 - 112 

 To update the Committee on the timeline for the Care Act implementation 
and progress on local implementation activities. 
 

 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  4 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

 
 

11.   HEALTHWATCH HEREFORDSHIRE 
 

113 - 118 

 To receive a report from Healthwatch Herefordshire 
 

 

12.   WORK PLAN 
 

119 - 132 

 To receive the Committee’s Work Plan. 
 

 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committee to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present 
if they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and 
consider whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities. 

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an 
item listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask 
then please submit it no later than two working days before the 
meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the 
Committee Officer can be found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committee is not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

SHIRE HALL, ST PETER’S SQUARE, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to the Assembly Point which is 
located in the car park at the front of the building.  A check will 
be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 

 

7



8



 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Health & Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held at The Committee Room, Shire Hall, 
Hereford on Monday 19 January 2015 at 10.00 am 
  

Present: Councillor CNH Attwood (Chairman) 
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: PA Andrews, JM Bartlett, PL Bettington, KS Guthrie, 

Brig P Jones CBE, JLV Kenyon, CA North, SJ Robertson, GA Vaughan-Powell 
and DB Wilcox 

 
  
In attendance: Councillor  C Nicholls 
  
Officers: P Deneen (Independent Chairman, Healthwatch Herefordshire), G Hughes 

(Director for Economy, Communities and Corporate), B Norman (Assistant 
Director, Governance), R Vickers (Assistant Director Homes and Community 
Services) and DJ Penrose (Governance Services) 
 

51. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
None. 
 

52. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 
None. 
 

53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
None. 
 

54. MINUTES   
 
The Minutes of the Meeting held on the 3 December 2014 were approved and signed as a 
correct record. 
 

55. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 
SCRUTINY   
 
There were no suggestions from members of the public. 
 

56. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   
 
There were no questions from members of the public. 
 

57. ACCOUNTABILITY SESSION   
 
The Committee received a presentation on the work of the Herefordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (HCCG) from the Director of Operations.  During the ensuing 
discussion the following issues were raised: 
 
• That work was underway with the NHS Local Area Team (LAT) to undertake co-

commissioning work in specialist areas.  The HCCG would shadow the LAT from April 
2015, with a shadow transfer of a small number of specialist services. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

9



 

 

 
• That the budget before the Committee included both work with the third sector and 

preventative healthcare within the funds spent on community medicine. 
 

• That the system change for mental health services would allow patients to self-refer.  
There had been significant investment in the service during the year, and work was 
underway with the 2gether NHS Foundation Trust to ensure that the capacity within 
the service was taken up. 

 
• That ‘Virtual Wards’ were a concept that had worked well in other parts of the 

country, and additional staff and community teams were working with parish 
councils in order to support the most vulnerable patients.  The pilot was only running 
in Hereford, but additional work was being undertaken in order to decide what model 
worked best in different communities. 

 
• That the Hospital at Home provided for care at home. Whilst beds could be provided 

at nursing homes in the County, this did not necessarily relieve the pressure on A&E 
or provide the best solution for patients.  The Hospital at Home allowed for planned 
medical interventions if required, and had the support of the West Midlands 
Ambulance Service. 

 
• That simplified access systems were needed, together with more education for 

patients as to what the appropriate service was that they should use.  It was an 
uphill struggle to redirect people. 

 
• Patient engagement was led by both theme and communities, and was a constant 

process.  There was active involvement with Healthwatch in this area. 
 

• That there had been no surprises for the HCCG in the CQC report into the Wye 
Valley NHS Trust, and that there was work for all of the partners in the health and 
social care arena to do.   The Trust had provided additional access to their 
Oversight Boards for the HCCG and there were issues around the recruitment of 
permanent staff. 

 
• There were pressures on the urgent care system, and the Multi-Agency System 

Resilience Group was now in place to help address these. 
 

• That there was a regular daily phone call across the system in order to provide a 
condition check on the Trust. It should be borne in mind that as the Wye Valley NHS 
Trust was the smallest acute Trust in the country that there was a collective 
responsibility within the County to support its operation. 

 
In reply to a question from a Member, the Director of Operations said that if there were to 
be a major incident in the County, then additional help would be sought as part of the 
major incident plan.  It was important that long term resilience be built into the system, 
and a solution to this problem would need to be found as planned care suffered when 
operations had to be cancelled.  More planned operations were currently being cancelled 
than in the past.  Additional short term capacity had been provided by way of a portable 
day care unit.  Non-recurring funding had been awarded in order to recruit more staff and 
provide more beds, but the County was heavily reliant on expensive agency staff. 
 
The Independent Chairman of Healthwatch concurred, and added that the Trust had 
undertaken work which indicated that it in order to future proof its operation it would 
require 250 beds.  It was operating with 208 at the moment.  
 
In reply to a question, the Chairman of Taurus Healthcare said that the company was 
well placed to be involved in the new systems of integrated health and social care and 

10



 

 

new models of care.  It had been involved in a pilot project as part of the Prime Minister’s 
Challenge Fund to trial seven day a week GP provision. 
 
The Director of Operations went on to report on the structural changes that were taking 
place within NHS England, which were designed to make the it more focused on its core 
purpose and to build new capabilities within the organisation. 
 
The Chairman thanked her for the presentation. 
 
 

58. HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP: INTEGRATED URGENT 
CARE PATHWAY PROJECT   
 
The Committee received a report on the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group’s 
(HCCG) Integrated Urgent Care Pathway Project.  The following points were highlighted: 
 

• An outcomes approach to commissioning and contracting had been introduced 
which would shift the emphasis from the services a provider offers, to the 
outcomes achieved for patients. Factors such as patient experience and the 
quality and safety of services would thereby be built into future contracts. 

 
• The NHS 111 service would be included the HCCGs commissioned functions, 

but would be procured at a national level and then delivered at a regional one. It 
was intended that there should be a triage process by clinicians as part of the 
process, but it was not clear that it would be possible to deliver this aspect to the 
level that the HCCG would like to achieve. 
 

In the ensuing discussion the following points were made: 
 
The Chairman of Taurus Healthcare said that GPs had been asked to deliver additional 
services with no additional funding.  A pilot project to deliver greater access to primary 
care was working to keep surgeries open until 8pm.  There was an important secondary 
role for pharmacies to provide help to patients, and this should be encouraged. 
 
There was a major problem with missed appointments.  The aim of commissioning a 
group of services together was that the management of those services could be 
improved. 
 
The Independent Chairman of Healthwatch said that three major contracts were up for 
review this year: Out of Hours, Mental Health and the Minor Injuries Unit.  Taking all 
these together could provide for a Herefordshire wide solution. 

 
• That the urgent care pathway model had been shown to work well for patients, 

but that it was important that the GPS should be fully involved. 
 

• That the services that were being commissioned as part of the lead provider 
model were being developed through dialogue with the Wye Valley Trust, and 
efficient partnership working would be central to this.  There would be a number 
of key performance indicators that the Trust would have to meet. 
 

• That the Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund monies would only be available until 
June, but additional funding had been secured for the urgent care pathway work. 
 

• That data sharing for GPs was still an issue, but had been overcome in the city, 
where the practices worked in a hub. 
 

11



 

 

After further discussion, the Director of Operations undertook to provide the Committee 
with a briefing note on the Major Incident Plan and a further note on the monitoring of the 
key performance indicators that would be used as part of the commissioning process. 
 
Resolved: That the report be noted 
 
 

59. HEREFORDSHIRE HEALTHWATCH   
 
The Committee noted a report from Healthwatch Herefordshire. The Independent 
Chairman highlighted the following areas: 
 

• That an ‘enter and view’ inspection had been undertaken of both Leominster and 
Ross community hospitals 

 
• That there would be a Healthwatch question time event on the 10th of February at 

the Kindle Centre at which the Chief Executives of the Wye Valley NHS Trust and 
the 2gether NHS Foundation Trust would be present. 

 
• That Healthwatch had met with the Community Pharmacies, and that this was an 

area that was important to keep under review 
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 
 

60. WORK PROGRAMME   
 
The Committee noted its work programme. 
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 

The meeting ended at 12.00 pm CHAIRMAN 

12



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Health & Social Care Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Meeting date: 4 February 2015 

Title of report: Children’s Safeguarding Update 

Report by: Head of Safeguarding and Review  
 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To inform the Committee of the outcomes of the Department for Education (DfE) Review, 
the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board (HSCB) Local Government Association 
(LGA) Peer Diagnostic and to update it on the progress to date on the Ofsted Action Plan. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT the following be noted:  
(a) outcome of the DfE review (as detailed at Appendix 1) conducted on 15 and 16 

December 2014; 
(b) outcome of the HSCB LGA peer diagnostic (as detailed at Appendix 2) 

conducted between 17-19 November 2014; and 
(c) progress to date on the Ofsted action plan (as detailed at Appendix 3). 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

13



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

Alternative options 

1. There are no alternative options as the purpose of the report is to provide an update on 
children’s safeguarding. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2. To update scrutiny on the outcome of the recent LGA peer diagnostic, DfE review and 
progress to date on the Ofsted action plan.   

Key considerations 

DfE Review 

3. As reported to health and social care overview scrutiny on 1 October, Ofsted carried 
out their inspection of children’s safeguarding in May 2014 and judged safeguarding to 
be “requires improvement”.    

4. As part of the process of lifting the DfE intervention notice which was issued in 2012, 
the DfE carried out a review on 15 and 16 December 2014.    

5. The purpose of the review was to establish whether the council had maintained its 
improvement since the Ofsted inspection.     

6. As result of the review, the DfE have been broadly reassured as to the progress the 
Local Authority has made against the Ofsted Action Plan, and recognised the pace of 
improvement by the Council and partner agencies, and in particular the cross party 
political support towards the prioritisation of safeguarding vulnerable children in 
Herefordshire. 

7. The DfE were keen to ensure that clear transitional arrangements were in place to step 
responsibility for driving improvement forward across from the Improvement Board, and 
that the recommendations of the LGA peer diagnostic had been used to inform future 
plans. They were also keen to ensure that the process of recruiting to a new 
Independent Chair of the Board would not deflect from progress. As such, the DfE are 
positive that on receipt of such assurances that they will be recommending to the 
Minister to withdraw the intervention notice upon the local authority before the 
dissolution of parliament and the general election in May 2015. 

HSCB LGA peer diagnostic 

8. As part of its approach to continuous improvement, the HSCB arranged for the LGA to 
conduct a peer diagnostic.  The diagnostic took place between 17-19 November 2014.   
Herefordshire was one of five pilot authorities to undertake a diagnostic.  

9. The purpose of the diagnostic was to provide evidence that the HSCB were able to 
take over the function of the Herefordshire supporting and protecting children 
improvement Board (improvement board) should the DfE decide that the intervention 
notice could be lifted.  

10. A copy of the letter outlining the recommendations from the LGA is attached at 
appendix 2.    

11. The key areas for improvement are: 

14



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

• Developing synergy of plans across the HSCB, Children and Young People’s 
Partnership and Health and Wellbeing Board to ensure key priorities are 
shared and understood 

• Sharpen focus on outcomes for children and ensure you know how the HSCB 
is making a difference 

• Adopt the principles of the Children of Herefordshire’s Improvement and 
Partnership Programme (CHIPP) in the HSCB’s work develop a project 
management culture to support the Boards work 

• Prioritise the priorities – identify key priorities to focus on and develop 
performance scorecards for each 

• Strengthen the Business Unit to ensure capacity to deliver 

12. The key areas of strengths are: 

• Excellent progress since the peer review 14 months ago, in particular in the 
development of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 

• Ambitious: to be good by 2016/17 

• Strong cross party political commitment to the safeguarding agenda 

• Clear prioritisation of children’s agenda within HCC 

• There is a strong commitment to corporate parenting 

• The Children’s Integrated Needs Assessment provides a valuable tools to 
enable clear prioritisation 

• Excellent progress in responding quickly to the challenge of Child Sexual 
Exploitation 

• Regular meetings LSCB Chair and CX/DCS/Portfolio Holder and Chair and 
PCC 

Ofsted Action Plan 

13. Following the Ofsted inspection in May 2012, the council was required to produce an 
action plan to address the areas for improvement identified during the inspection.  The 
first version of the action plan was presented to scrutiny on 1 October for comment 
prior to submission to Ofsted on 6 October.  Ofsted have confirmed their satisfaction 
with the action plan and recognise that it provides a robust framework covering all the 
areas for improvement identified from their Inspection in May 2014, and the progress 
already made in response. 

14. Work on the action plan is continuous and is delivered through the children’s wellbeing 
transformation programme.  A progress report is attached at appendix 3, together with 
a copy of the action plan (appendix 4).   

15. Within the progress report, it is worth noting: 

• Significant developments within Frameworki to support staff in undertaking 
their child protection work and improve performance reporting 

• Increased focus and capacity deployed to the children with a disability service 

• Development of the Child Sexual Exploitation strategy and operational 
response within Herefordshire and across the West Mercia Alliance 

15



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

• The implementation of a robust quality assurance framework 

• The development and implementation of the new Levels of Need guidance 

16. All the above have been recognised as good practice developments in response to 
our Ofsted recommendations by the DfE and the LGA Peer Diagnostic. 

Community impact 

17. The successful implementation of the action plan will bring about further improvement 
towards achieving the council’s priorities of keeping children and young people safe 
and giving them a great start in life and enabling residents to live safe, healthy and 
independent lives; improving access to learning opportunities at all levels and improved 
outcomes for children and young people.   

Equality duty 

18. As the action plan continues to be implemented, equality impact assessments will be 
carried out where relevant to ensure that due regard is paid to the public sector equality 
duty as set out below: 

• "A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to - 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct ... 
prohibited by or under this Act;  

• advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

• foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Financial implications 

19. The actions included in the plan in appendix 3 can be contained within the current 
year’s budget.  Each of the areas for improvement is being progressed within the 
context of the directorate’s transformation programme, the Children of Herefordshire’s 
Improvement and Partnership Programme (CHIPP). As the transformation programme 
develops, detailed financial planning will be taking place with regard to the actions and 
where appropriate further reports will be presented to cabinet or the cabinet member. 

Legal implications 

20. There are no legal implications. 

Risk management 

21. Risks associated with the failure to implement the action plan are: 

• Reputation - should the council remain under an improvement notice. In 
particular, this has the impact of adversely affecting the recruitment and retention 
strategy and associated caseload management problems, which in turn have the 
potential to negatively impact on performance and quality of service for children 
and families. The council returns to a position where there are widespread failures 
to protect children and young people from harm. 

• The HSCB is unable to demonstrate to the Minister its ability and capacity to 

16



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

effectively govern the improvement of the multi-agency response to safeguarding 
children, to enable him to be sufficiently reassured to lift the improvement notice.  

• These risks are being mitigated through the production of a robust transition plan 
to ensure that the improvement function imposed on the Local Authority by the 
DfE has been transferred to the HSCB, in full consultation with the DfE to  their 
satisfaction. The independent chair of the Improvement Board will continue to act 
as a ‘critical friend’ to the Local Authority over the next six months to support and 
ensure continued focus on key improvement priorities. 

Consultees 

22. The views of the HSCB and the Herefordshire Improvement Board have been included 
within the report and the action plan.  

Appendices 

Appendix 1 DfE letter 

Appendix 2  Letter from LGA in connection with the HSCB peer diagnostic 

Appendix 3 Progress update on Ofsted action plan 

Appendix 4 Ofsted action plan 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

17



18



 
Jo Davidson 
Director of People’s Services 
Herefordshire Council 
Brockington 
35 Hafod Road 
Hereford 
HR1 1SH 

16 January 2015 

Dear Jo, 

Angela Windle and I would like to thank the Council’s senior leadership team; 
Councillors; staff (in particular, Caroline and John for organising the focus 
groups and logistics); and partners, for contributing to the Departmental 
review on 15 and 16 December 2014.   

Our discussions and the information you provided gave a comprehensive 
picture of improvement and impact since the Improvement Notice was issued 
in February 2013.  A summary of our key findings is attached at Annex A, and 
I would be very grateful if you could arrange for this to be shared with all those 
concerned. 

Our overall assessment is that the Council has made good progress since we 
last visited in April 2014.  This improvement has also been evidenced by the 
outcomes of the recent Ofsted inspection and the LGA diagnostic peer review 
of the LSCB in November.  

It was evident that pace has increased since the last DfE review and that the 
senior management team continues to drive change throughout the 
service.  The workforce demonstrated confidence, strength, and passion in 
their commitment to effective safeguarding practice.  

We heard your plans to create the conditions for success and to be a learning 
organisation with a stable and experienced leadership team.  We heard how 
you plan to improve practice by further development of management oversight 

Department for Education 
Local Authority Improvement  
& Interventions Unit 
Ground Floor 
Sanctuary Buildings 
Westminster 
SW1P 3BT 
 
www.education.gov.uk/help/contactus 

19



and timely decision making; improved management confidence; clear 
evidence of the voice of the child through assessment; meaningful and valued 
supervision; and building resilience in the system to embed confidence, 
challenge, and escalation.  

We heard that there is cross-party political support and commitment to 
improving children’s services and it was good to hear that funding will be 
protected and that leaders show an active interest in the work of front-line 
social work teams.  There were strong messages from leadership that 
safeguarding and child protection practice in Herefordshire would not be 
allowed to slip back as it has in the past; and that improvement is on a long 
term course to get to ‘good’.  

There were a number of key messages we wanted to share with you, these 
included a strong sense of delivery and drive in the MASH; a workforce that 
feels safe and which is clear on its role; and a culture of improvement and 
consultation is now evident. Staff reported that management oversight and 
supervision had improved and that there were now opportunities for training 
and development and movement between teams to augment and strengthen 
learning. Managers, some staff, and partners now have regular access to 
performance data and the various audit processes are starting to embed.   

Staff continued to welcome the visibility of the Lead Member, Councillors and 
senior staff and the recent stability at management level.  Overall staff 
reported morale as good, and were proud to be part of the service 
improvements and seem optimistic for the future.  

Partners were positive about the recent pace in improvement and the 
MASH.  They valued council investment in children’s services and in 
Frameworki, and welcomed the increased level of challenge, improved data 
reports and partners feeding back information from their agencies. There is 
now stronger group partnership working and effective working between the IB, 
HSCB and other Boards.   

A number of key issues were raised during the focus groups. In particular, 
staff, and partners especially, need to understand the future vision and within 
that how you plan to get to 'good'.  It is important to communicate clear 
messages and plans to all stakeholders on roles and responsibilities and what 
still needs to be achieved, and how. Concerns remain in some teams about 
the Business Support (BS) and what your internal review will bring, it seems 
that some teams have closer working relationships with BS than others and 
therefore levels of support are not equitable.    

In the next phase of implementation we would expect to see, and therefore 
recommend, that: 

· improvement work is fully embedded, sustained and becomes the 
standard for the Council; 

· Herefordshire addresses the over-reliance of agency staff and aims for 
workforce stability at all levels;  

20



 

· immediate plans are put in place to recruit a new HSCB chair and the       
necessary arrangements for a smooth handover are implemented; 

 

· a clear plan for the transfer of Improvement Board work to the HSCB, 
Children's Trust, and the authority and partners is developed and agreed 
to ensure clarity of what responsibilities transition to where; which outlines 
your vision of getting to 'good', and when the  intervention is stepped 
down will provide confidence to Ministers and stakeholders;  and 

 

· gap analysis on the performance data is undertaken which focuses on 
areas of non-compliance and offer explanations and solutions. 

The Improvement Notice continues to remain in place until the Minister can be 
confident that the quality of practice and service performance is embedded 
and sustainable and, in particular, that transition arrangements from his 
Improvement Board to the HSCB are robust. We therefore look forward to 
speedy progress on the recommendations outlined above.  

In the meantime, Angela will draw together messages from the focus group 
discussions, your self-assessment, the letter from Tony Johnson and the 
reports from Paul Curran and Dave McCallum in readiness to provide 
evidence of progress to the Minister.  

I am copying this letter to Councillor Tony Johnson, Councillor Jeremy Millar, 
Councillor Attwood, Alistair Neill, Paul Meredith, Dave McCallum and Paul 
Curran.  

Yours sincerely 

OLIVER BROOKE     

21



Annex A 

Herefordshire 18 month review – summary of feedback from focus 
groups 

Key positive messages 

· The “Requires Improvement” rating from the last inspection feels right.  

· SMT and Lead Members continue to be visible, approachable and 
supportive. This is valued by staff and partners.  

· Senior management stability is welcomed but still feels new – staff 
would become concerned if this “unravels” as some contracts are due 
to end shortly.  

· There are open communications and lots of dialogue.  People feel 
listened to, consulted and included in changes and new ways of 
working - for example CHIPPS.   

· There is increasing confidence in the figures, and the data being 
produced is much richer and more reliable – although some operational 
staff rely on management analysis rather than using the data 
themselves to better drive practice.  

· Morale seems good and there is an evident passion within the MASH.  

· Staff (including agency) have opportunities to move around the service, 
learn different practices and now have time to train – with some staff 
involved in delivering training.  

· Caseloads remain at a managable level but vary from team to team 
and within teams. It may be helpful to set a standard for each team as 
well as trigger points to identify where remedial action is required 
should these triggers be reached. 

· Frameworki is improved, is more user friendly, and contains additional 
bespoke fields for capturing voice of child and CSE 
intelligence.  Increased smarter use of performance data at many 
different levels internally and externally is welcomed. Partners were 
grateful for real, trustable data and noted that the Council’s financial 
investment in the system is clear. 

· There is increased management oversight, supervision and audit – all 
fully “on the agenda” now. 

· There is greater connectivity and communication between teams within 
the Council. 

· Staff are now clear about what is required of them and case 
progression is much more effective as a result. 

· The offer for social workers is good. The support and mentoring for 
NQSWs remains effective and well received.  There are now 
opportunities for progression to senior SW roles and the Academy for 
growing your own is well supported.  

22



· Partners reported more joint-working and increased challenge – both 
ways. 

· People feel the service infrastructure is much stronger so that when 
processes and changes need making this can now happen quite 
quickly.          
  

· Council commitment to the children’s service agenda is clear.  

 

Less positive messages 

· Some partners were unclear as to how to the council would “Get to 
Good” in terms of what the next steps are and what that means for the 
future for the council and for their organisations, this will require further 
planning and communication of the vision.  

· Changes at senior management level have been unsettling and 
potential for more changes is a concern to staff. 

· Evidencing the child’s voice is improving but there is more work to do 
on embedding this across the system as the norm.   

· Concerns remain over the internal Business Support function – some 
staff feel overwhelmed with “admin type” work, and are concerned that 
reduced administrative support will affect available time for reflective 
practice and training.  

· Although caseloads are currently manageable, some staff had 
concerns over potential “caseload creep” and the effect on finding time 
to reflect, and undertake training. 

· There are capacity issues with police partners, where presence is 
required across adult and children meetings/conferences/boards and 
attendance levels cannot be maintained. 

· Partners are unclear about funding levels for the HSCB Business 
Support Unit moving forward. 

 

23



24



 
 
                                                                                              
 
 
Jo Davidson 
Director of Children’s Services 
Herefordshire County Council 
Plough Lane 
Hereford          
        22nd November 2014  
 
Dear Jo, 
 
Herefordshire County Council 
LSCB Diagnostic Pilot 
 
On behalf of the team I would like to thank Herefordshire County Council, 
partner agencies and the HSCB for commissioning the recent LSCB 
diagnostic pilot.  Your diagnostic was one of five pilots that will inform the 
January 2015 roll out of the LGA LSCB diagnostic programme.  

It is important to emphasise that this was not an inspection but a critical friend 
diagnostic delivered by a team of peers. The aim was to provide an informed, 
external perspective on the quality of the LSCB, its key strengths and areas 
for improvement. The team interviewed key stakeholders, either individually or 
as part of a focus group, as well as undertaking a comprehensive review of 
current documentation. At your request two optional elements were added; 
first, an audit validation exercise focusing on initial plans; second, a review of 
police engagement and child sexual exploitation processes.  
 
This letter sets out in detail our findings which were initially presented to an 
invited audience at the conclusion of the diagnostic.  
 
Following an executive summary our findings are set out under the following 
headings 

• Overarching messages 
• Working Together Compliance 
• Board Effectiveness 
• Evidence of Challenge and Holding to Account 
• Capacity, Training and Managing Resources 
• Vision, Strategy & Leadership 
• Audit validation – initial plans 
• Child sexual exploitation 
• Recommendations 

Appendix one provides additional analysis of the audit validation exercise. 
We are grateful to Andy Churcher, Caroline Marshall, Chris Jones and Betty 
Lynch for the efforts they put into preparing for and supporting our visits.  The 
people we met were very welcoming and demonstrated a willingness to use 

 

25



the diagnostic as an opportunity for learning.  We recognise that many of 
these people made themselves readily available to us at short notice and we 
thank them for their flexibility.   

 
Executive Summary 
 
You have made considerable progress in the fourteen months since the LGA 
safeguarding peer review of autumn 2013; there is a renewed confidence 
within the council and its partners. HSCB is recognising priority areas for 
improvement and driving learning. The Herefordshire Safeguarding Children 
Board is clear sighted about the extent of the improvements to reach good 
and the Intervention Notice still remains. Nevertheless you are now confident 
in your own ability to manage the future and to take over oversight of 
improvement from the Improvement Board and driving improvements on the 
effectiveness of the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board itself. 
 
In our view, the key to future Board success is a clear focus on a small 
number of immediate priorities that drive the work in every element of the 
Board. At present, priorities are not particularly well co-ordinated across the 
various levels of activity. The employment of project management techniques 
will help you to work smarter and achieve demonstrable impact.  
 
There is strong corporate support on improvement, and although needing to 
become more formalised, you have begun to ensure effective coordination 
and liaison across key strategic relationships and fora. 
 
You have strengthened challenge, and can point to a number of successful 
challenges by the Board, such as ensuing the inclusion of the voice of the 
child within the Children’s Partnership Plan and taking on the findings from 
multi agency audits. There is a greater degree of transparency and openness 
at the Board and you recognise the scale of improvements that are needed. 
Whilst there is clear evidence of improvements in performance reporting you 
know that this has to improve further so that HSCB can maximise its 
effectiveness.   
 
There is clear evidence that multi agency training and learning from your SCR 
is having an impact at the frontline. You recognise the need to provide the 
Board with more effective and better resourced business support and are 
working with partners to secure sustainable levels of funding to achieve this. 
 
You are aware that in making the effective transition from the Improvement 
Board, the current pace, depth and relevance of the Board will need to 
increase. Your improved sense of purpose and focus as a partnership has 
served you well so far and you are confident of taking Board oversight to the 
next level and we identified the capability for you to undertake this task 
effectively. 
 
You have already begun to plan for the transition from the Improvement 
Board. You need to include in your transition plan risk analysis and 

26



contingency planning. A six month programme of transition support, including 
coaching and mentoring for key Board members, would help to ensure that 
the Board maintains sufficient and effective oversight, challenge and pace in 
the period after the Intervention Notice.  
 

27



Overarching messages    
 
• Clarity of role and priorities for HSCB: We believe that there is a 

need to clarify and assert the oversight and challenge role of the 
HSCB, and to focus down on driving a small number of immediate 
priorities that will continue to enhance improvement of frontline 
safeguarding. At the moment that which distinguishes the role of the 
HSCB from the Improvement Board, and other fora such as the 
Children’s Partnership and Community Safety Partnership is not clear 
to everyone. HSCB activity is not coordinated on a small number of key 
priorities that drive the strategic board, the steering group and your sub 
groups. 

• Take the initiative on improvement: You have been under the 
spotlight in terms of improvement but we saw a renewed confidence 
that you can manage this process yourselves; and a willingness to take 
the sometimes difficult decisions that will inevitably be necessary 

• Reactive to proactive: We feel that you need to move from reacting to 
external critique and inspection to a proactive approach based upon 
forthright self assessment, where you use your own self knowledge, 
constantly re-evaluated, to identify and act on areas for improvement 

• Process to outcomes: At the moment you are too process focused, 
the aim of structures is to achieve measurable outcomes for children;  
processes will only take you so far and the Board needs to concentrate 
on what will achieve measurable improvement in practice against key 
outcomes and keep reporting this 

• Do less but focus: You are spreading your resources across many 
areas, we suggest that you do less but focus your attention upon circa 
six key priorities that link across the work of the strategic board, the 
steering group and your subgroups, that way you can begin to show 
impact 

• Network network network: You are open to external learning 
opportunities and continuing to make the most of the support and new 
ideas that these bring is essential, and this is having an impact; as you 
take over from the Improvement Board you will continue to need the 
support and guidance these networks give you as a sounding board 
and to provide coaching and mentoring  

• Beg borrow and steal: You can save yourself time and energy by 
using the success of others wisely; do not be afraid to beg, borrow and 
steal ideas to save developing your own solutions to everything 

• It’s about the big picture not just ticking the box on documents: 
We have seen that sometimes completing a task is equated with 
achieving improvement; for example in May 2014 HSCB completed a 
self assessment but this does not appear to be updated or re-evaluated 
to reflect whether/how the Board has progressed. By consistently 
revisiting the findings and using the self assessment as a living 
document that you self evaluate against at subsequent meetings you 
will improve its value in supporting improvement. The value of a self 
assessment, or QA report findings, or challenge to an agency on lack 
of progress, lies solely in what you do with it on an ongoing basis to 
ensure something of value occurs on the back of the original action.  

28



Working together compliance 
 
Strengths 
 
• You have renewed and reinvigorated your local threshold document; 

this has been widely disseminated and is helping to drive improvement 
in frontline practice. Staff value the document you have produced 
  

• The SCR and Child Death Review arrangements are working well and 
we were impressed by the quality of the people we interviewed. The 
case review decision process referral form is effective and there are 
clear escalation processes. Staff could readily refer to learning from the 
HH SCR 

 
• You have recognised the need to improve the functioning of the 

safeguarding board and have held a number of successful 
development events. We thought that the joint meeting with the 
Children’s Partnership was a very productive initiative, and heard 
reports that the CSE event was very useful 

 
• Your statutory core membership is compliant with regulations 

 
• The proposed induction arrangements and training/mentoring for Board 

members is a very positive step forward to maximise effective 
participation in the work of the Board and we also welcome the training 
initiative to improve councillor awareness of safeguarding 

  
• The buddy system to embed challenge in the way you undertake 

Section 11 audits is a very positive improvement 
 
 
Areas requiring improvement 
 
• Although there is an established protocol between the Health and 

Wellbeing Board and HSCB, this needs to be strengthened and 
brought up to date and include the Adults Safeguarding Board, the 
Children’s Partnership and the Community Safety Partnership; terms of 
reference do not yet effectively delineate these key strategic 
relationships 
  

• You undertook Section 11 audits in 2013 to hold partners to account 
and drive improvement but the impact of these has been diluted by not 
being able to evidence effective follow up. At that time, some agencies 
didn’t have clear statement of responsibility towards children, and a 
number of agencies reported that safeguarding needs to be a standing 
item at senior management meetings. The discrepancy between your 
own section11 findings and the recent CQC inspection of Wye Valley 
Trust need to be investigated to ensure that all Section 11 audits are 
undertaken with the necessary rigour in the future and that the Board 
follows up progress assiduously. 

29



 
• Your S175 (maintained schools) and S157 (independent and academy 

schools) analysis needs to be carried out and any learning fed back; 
this process could help to strengthen the role of schools and 
academies on HSCB 
 

• You have some well established working  relationships with the 
education sector, and board representation - ‘they are part of the 
family’ - but equally acknowledge that this is a work in progress that 
warrants improved engagement and communication to move beyond 
those ‘already signed up’ as well as including the early years sector 
 

• We recognise that your learning and improvement framework is at an 
early stage of development. A more joined up and cohesive learning 
and improvement framework will help you to better understand the 
safeguarding system; especially if informed by service user feedback. 
HSCB attendance logs should be maintained and regularly reviewed to 
ensure reach is maximised 
 

• You could use the Annual Report more smartly to explore vulnerable 
groups of children, to identify priority areas of business and to influence 
planning and commissioning linked to Children’s Integrated Needs 
Assessment which will also reinforce a single plan. An improved focus 
in the annual report on performance reporting linked to key priorities 
and thematic audits is needed. At the moment audit is effective in what 
it sets out to do but is limited in impact on improvement because of the 
focus on remedial action to address individual learning from cases. 
Audit - and Board performance monitoring - needs to be thematic not 
case reactive 

 
• You have recognised the need to update procedures and these are 

part of your improvement plan, but in order for the HSCB to have an 
effective grip and control we think you should review the three year 
timeframe on this. HSCB will also need to endorse the Local Authority 
assessment framework as per Paragraph 62 (Chapter1) of Working 
Together 2013 

 
• In Working Together 2013 early help is a key feature. This was not 

within our remit for the diagnostic so we are unable to form a view on 
this.  

 
 
Board effectiveness 

 
Strengths 
 
• Good will, ambition, willingness to work together 
 
• Drive and ambition within the sub groups, the strategic board and the 

steering group 

30



 
• Intent to create structure to achieve coordination across the Community 

Safety Partnership, Children’s Partnership and Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

  
• Case review learning processes involving front line practitioners 

provide a line of sight to the frontline 
 
• QA process 

 
• Delivery of training strategy based on needs analysis 

  
 

Areas requiring improvement 
 

• Pause and take time to know yourself. You have had to undertake a 
very considerable improvement journey. We think now is the time to 
take stock of where you are, identify what you do well, and where you 
have to be more effective, and focus on getting it right all the time. That 
will make you an effective forum for challenge and oversight, a function 
that will be all the more important if the Intervention Notice is shortly to 
be lifted 

 
• Learn to trust your own judgement. You are very used to receiving 

external definitions of your areas for development, and have used 
those judgements well to drive improvement. To achieve your own 
ambition of ‘good by 2016’ you will have to become an effective 
learning organisation that consistently is self aware on both success 
and failure and continuously monitors its own working arrangements 
and progress on key goals. At the moment you are beginning this 
process and your May 2014 self assessment provides the basis for 
stepping up to the challenge if it is used smartly to regularly reassess 
how you are performing. A simple review of progress against the self 
assessment would be a useful way to conclude board meetings and 
could be incorporated as a standing final item on the agenda, focussing 
on a small set of easily understandable questions such as how  much 
have we done to address deficits and improve our own working as well 
as frontline practice, how well have we done it, and what difference 
have we made today against each of our priorities? 

 
• One plan to take you forward, focus on making a difference. You are all 

working hard on many fronts but need to focus all that activity upon 
what is most important At present the HSCB does not have a small and 
consistent set of key priorities that inform its work from strategic board 
to sub groups, nor do other strategic plans yet align fully across with 
your own. Success will only come with a consistent focus for your and 
others’ activities on those small number of factors that will make a 
difference now, that the HSCB monitors regularly and challenges when 
necessary. A golden thread needs to link across all strategic fora and 
within the HSCB from the strategic board down through the steering 

31



group to each and every sub group; all need to share the same work 
programme with their own work stream clearly linked to the overarching 
priorities and feeding into to them 

 
• Project management. The Children of Herefordshire Improvement 

Partnership Programme has proved that you have effective project 
managers within the partnership. Use this expertise to improve rigour 
and robustness within the Board. Using a project management 
approach, and a smaller but clearly delineated set of common priorities, 
will help to improve rigour and robustness of performance monitoring 
and subsequent holding to account for under performance 

  
• Pace up. You are ambitious to take over from the Improvement Board 

their responsibilities. This will require increased responsibility and 
oversight by HSCB to ensure the pace of improvement is maintained. 
You are planning how you will achieve this increase in responsibility 
and oversight at the next HSCB meeting. This meeting provides a good 
opportunity to start to employ a project management approach to plan 
for and take through to conclusion this transition. You are aware that 
you may need to put in place transitional arrangements and 
support/mentoring and are investigating who is best placed to provide 
this. It is equally important that you develop a risk register, for the wider 
improvement journey, as well as for the transition to taking over from 
the improvement board and use this to move forward effectively; and 
contingency plan to minimise deficit and failure. Key questions to take 
you forward include; do you know where you are in getting to good? 
Are you clear what taking on the scrutiny role post the Improvement 
Board actually means in practice for the HSCB? What are the risks and 
what is needed to be put in place to secure this role for the HSCB 
going forward? 

 
• Where does the real power lie and how does this impact on wider 

engagement? We heard the steering group described as the engine 
room but this group is chaired by the Assistant Director, Children’s 
Safeguarding and Family Support and not by the HSCB Independent 
Chair. If this is the engine room we feel it should be chaired by the 
Independent Chair; and if indeed it is to continue as the engine room, 
what implications does this have for the strategic board, is the strategic 
board to become just a rubber stamp for the steering group, and, if so, 
how will that impact on engagement and ownership of improvement 
across the wider partnership on that strategic board? The messages 
given out by how your structure is actually perceived to work in practice 
will influence how well engaged all partners are with the Board 
 

• You have good police attendance at the Board but the current 
arrangements put in place by the merged police forces (the strategic 
alliance) may not best serve the Board; we think this is an issue that 
needs to be raised on a pan regional basis and would advise that this is 
taken forward in conjunction with your neighbouring Boards through the 

32



developing arrangements in which the Chair of the HSCB and the DCS 
are engaged.   

 
• The voice of the child, and family, is not very well developed at Board 

level. You acknowledge this and are planning to address this in the 
near future. The views of young people and families can inform HSCB 
business priorities and provide effective challenge on improvement 
through user feedback 

 
Evidence of challenge and holding to account 
 
Strengths 
 
• The HSCB now operates with a stronger degree of challenge. There is 

more honest discussion of for example the deficits revealed by the 
case audits and the need for the partnership as a whole to work 
smarter. We were told that there is now much greater transparency in 
partnership discussions when it is identified that things have gone 
wrong 

  
• The two recently appointed lay members are reported to add significant 

value to the work of the Board and to have enhanced challenge within 
Board meetings 

 
• HSCB can be proud of a number of ‘challenge successes’. These 

include taking on the findings from the programme of multi agency 
audits, challenging the Children’s Partnership to include the voice of 
the child within the children’s partnership plan, and negotiating for the 
Children’s Integrated Needs Analysis to supplement for the lack of a 
children’s safeguarding focus within the JSNA 

 
• Case specific escalation via the QA sub group has been very effective 

in raising case specific deficits at Board level and is a good first step to 
a successful QA sub group 

 
• There is widespread recognition of the need to produce a data set that 

is fit for purpose and work is ongoing to achieve this linked to the 
ongoing transformation programme for the Frameworki computer 
system in social care 

 
 
Areas requiring improvement 
 
• Increase in data quality and evidence of impact. You are working to 

improve data quality but the focus is on producing better quality and fit 
for purpose quantitative data. A positive enhancement of the data set 
would be to include qualitative measures, including user and family 
feedback. This has begun with the most recent feedback from families 
and professionals on the effectiveness of child protection conferences. 
  

33



• HSCB should prioritise establishing a set of indicators against each 
Board priority and have these set out in regularly updated performance 
scorecards. This would help to give assurance to the Board that 
frontline practice improvements were being embedded and sustained. 

 
• A strengthened QA sub group is needed to drive development. The QA 

subgroup is very active and has raised many useful issues but at heart 
it is reactive to the deficits of individual cases. The sub group needs to 
move to looking at findings from individual cases as a pointer to wider 
thematic issues that hold back improvement and move from individual 
case review to thematic practice based audit. The group meets monthly 
but only four multi agency audits were undertaken last year. A more 
focused and productive work programme needs to be developed that 
will feed in to the newly revised key priorities of the Board 

 
• Much smarter QA reporting would provide the Board with the 

information it needs to challenge on its priorities. HSCB is already 
aware of a number of potential thematic and practice focussed issues 
e.g. the waiting times for CAMHs and the Speech and Language 
Service. Currently, although well known practice issues, there has been 
little escalation or challenge via HSCB on either of these. There is 
potential here for the QA subgroup to focus on these areas as an 
exemplar of future working practices which will also enable the Board 
to drive improvement across the multi-agency partnership. 

 
 
Capacity training and managing resources 

 
Strengths 
 
• You have recognised that you need to increase capacity of the 

business unit, and that synergies can be obtained by coordinating 
business support across other fora. A plan is in place to enhance 
business support and negotiate a sustainable multi agency funding 
stream 
 

• We saw evidence of an effective training cycle in operation, one recent 
good example of which was the development and commissioning of DV 
training on the back of this being flagged as an issue in the staff survey 

   
• We heard lots of positive feedback on the training and development 

events delivered by the Board and you looking at implementing 
evaluation of impact 

 
• Learning from the HH SCR was evidenced in our discussions with 

frontline staff 
 
 
Areas requiring improvement 
 

34



• In the post Improvement Board world HSCB will have to work much 
smarter. One obvious example is in the regular use of performance 
management techniques to drive forward improvement. This can be 
brought in e.g. by consulting with colleagues who have employed this 
successfully within the Children of Herefordshire Improvement 
Partnership Programme. 

  
• You are planning to look at how you put in transition arrangements to 

support the Board in the immediate period following the lifting of the 
Intervention Notice and to do this successfully you need to undertake 
risk analysis, contingency plan and put in place the kind of transitional 
leadership support that we set out below  

 
• You need to secure the future funding across partner agencies for a 

strengthened business unit as without that the work of HSCB will be 
compromised. The business unit is not resourced effectively at the 
present time and struggles to provide the high standard that it sets itself 
in terms of support to the two safeguarding Boards 

  
• It would be useful to set out clearly what the next year will look like in 

terms of the Board. What does a 3, 6, 12 month trajectory on HSCB 
improvement look like? What are the milestones that you need to see 
and the actions necessary to achieve the step change in oversight that 
HSCB is aiming for, and how will you report on and know you are 
making progress? Setting these out clearly and simply and agreeing 
them with the whole partnership will start to make your work more 
outcome focused and provide focus for the work of the various sub 
groups. It will help to identify skill deficits within the Board so these can 
be addressed in a systematic and timely way 

 
• There is a wider capacity issue that HSCB needs to address, namely 

capacity and fitness for purpose of the children’s workforce in the 
widest sense. We have mentioned above access to specialist services 
such as CAMHS and Speech and Language Services but there are 
other capacity issues where the board needs to secure improvement 
e.g. management oversight and decision making as well as stability of 
the children’s workforce. These require analysis, holding to account 
and challenge at Board level. Again these provide a good starting point 
for effective project management of key issues and priorities and are 
examples of the work which the Safeguarding Children Board will be 
taking over from the Improvement Board.   
 

 
Vision strategy and leadership 

 
Strengths 
 
• Excellent progress has been made since the peer review 14 months 

ago, and there is coordinated and effective working with key players to 
identify improvement targets and to address deficits 

35



 
• You are ambitious and are committed to achieving the improvements 

necessary to have articulated what ‘good’ is in Herefordshire, and be 
judged ‘good’ by Ofsted by 2016/17 

 
• There is strong cross party political commitment to the safeguarding  

agenda, and a clear prioritisation of the children’s agenda within HCC 
 
• We saw a strong commitment to corporate parenting which is to be 

strengthened by mandatory councillor training which will continue after 
the 2015 elections 

 
• The detailed analysis of need provided by the new Children’s 

Integrated Needs Assessment will help to focus attention on achieving 
improved outcomes 

 
• You are working well to address local and regional CSE issues 

 
• The HSCB Chair has regular meetings with the Chief Executive, the 

Director of Children’s Services, the Portfolio Holder and the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 

 
Areas requiring improvement 
 
• You are aware you need to increase the current pace depth and 

relevance of the Board to secure the handover from the Improvement 
Board of their responsibilities – we would advice a programme of 
coaching and mentoring for key players to maintain progress in what 
could be a risky period. 

 
• You need a simplified and coordinated shared vision of the 

safeguarding priorities that drives the work of the partnership and 
informs the challenge function of the Board. This should include 
continued work to achieve and maintain the culture shift that 
safeguarding is not just a local authority responsibility 

  
• You need an HSCB identity, and for the HSCB to become more 

influential and visible  
 
• Simple clear roles and priorities for the HSCB would help to define its 

true purpose – you need to avoid the current blurring of Board roles, to 
help you to distinguish between what is HSCB and what is Children’s 
Services 

 
• If you continue with this structure we are strongly of the belief that the 

Independent Chair should chair and drive the steering group. This will 
enable the Independent Chair to have increased oversight of the work 
being taken forward in the sub groups and to ensure that the work of 
the sub groups reflects and aligns with HSCB priorities 

36



 
• We were not convinced that there is clarity, discussed and agreed 

across the partnership, on the role and remit of the steering group, nor 
its relationship to the strategic board. There is a fundamental question 
to answer here, namely where do you want your power house to be, 
and who do you want to lead it? At the moment this is unclear to us, 
and this lack of clarity may well be shared with others 

 
• Current MASH governance via a HSCB sub group is an example of the 

blurred roles we discuss above. We know why you chose this 
arrangement initially; nevertheless this is an operational delivery 
function and with the MASH reinvigorated do you still need governance 
via HSCB? 

 
• Capture and gather the voice of the child and feedback from families– 

the voice of children and families should be at the heart of everything 
HSCB does and a major influence on how HSCB pushes for change 

 
• Police regularly attend the Board meetings; however, we do believe 

that it would be worth exploring with your police representatives firstly,  
how police plans interact across the Protecting Vulnerable People Plan, 
the local delivery plan and the CSE strategy to deliver better 
safeguarding outcomes and, secondly, whether current arrangements 
for Board representation by the Police deliver local knowledge and 
focus 

 
• We feel that current arrangements for meetings between the 

Independent Chair and key senior managers, politicians and 
stakeholders should be formalised with a clear, set agenda that 
includes performance reporting and holding to account through the 
Annual Report 

 
Audit validation - commentary on the findings of four cases 
 
The audit validation was bespoke and focused on a safeguarding system 
approach to child protection planning and working together, to achieve 
improved outcomes. 
 
Strengths 
 
• Staff were engaged and appeared to communicate with each other 
 
• Staff were aware that practice needs to improve in order to improve 

outcomes for children subject to Child Protection Plans 
 
• Staff acknowledge a range of issues that currently impact on 

performance e.g. turnover of staff 
 
• Staff welcome further training to improve practice; they were reflective 

in the focus groups and would welcome more time for case reflection  

37



 
Areas requiring improvement 

• Plans were not robust – neither SMART nor linked to outcomes 

 

• We saw a lack of contingency planning 

 

• Expectations on parents were not made clear 

 

• Managers did not consistently attend conferences and core groups. 
Effective management oversight is key to ensuring progression of Child 
Protection Plans 

 

• There was some evidence of drift in both assessment and intervention; 
a major cause of this was the high number of changes of social worker 

 

• We saw numerous changes in social worker between conferences 

 

• The parenting assessments we saw were neither robust nor timely 

 

• There was a lack of escalation from all partner agencies when progress 
was not made on plans by any agency 

 

• Decision making wasn’t clearly recorded with the rationale and the risk 
management clearly set  

 

• Multi agency training on conferencing needs further developing 
 

 
CSE 
• You have put in place a strategy and action plan, there is a 

reinvigorated structure, a specialist CSE unit has been established, 
there is currently a new specialist social worker in this unit, to be joined 
by a police post in the next financial year 

  
• The new strategy complies with national recommendation and is based 

on national guidelines 
 
• The action plan is a positive step forward, however, it has numerous 

actions but no real outcomes. It is lengthy, and there is a real need to 
prioritise the priorities! With so many outcomes it is unrealistic for them 
all to be completed. A focus on a smaller number of key priorities in the 
immediate term is needed, with consideration of how additional 
priorities can be rolled out over time. As yet the action plan has not 
been effectively disseminated 

38



 
• The new CSE team (that was only in place during the week of our visit) 

have been very quick off the mark and reports from other frontline staff 
are positive, which is very impressive for such a new development. 
There is the potential that demand will swamp this new provision so 
there is a need for tightly controlled and managed referrals to the unit 
 

• The police are committed to increase their involvement and resources 
over the coming twelve to twenty four months 

 
• The Board structure is now clear with a CSE group and an operational 

group below this  
 
Recommendations 
 

You might wish to consider the following recommendations. These are 
based on what the team has read, seen and heard over the course of the 
LSCB diagnostic. 

 
• Identify a small number of HSCB priorities aligned across other 

strategic fora - and stick with them, when refining your priorities decide 
which are immediate priorities to be put in place now and what are 
aspirations for the longer term 

 
• Fund and implement a reinvigorated and fit for purpose business unit 

 
• Review the Board structure in the light of your priorities and statutory 

requirements and streamline the steering group and make this a chair 
of chairs group 

 
• Make sure all members of the strategic board are fully engaged and 

understand their relationship between being on the Board, improving 
agency practice and achieving impact on outcomes for children 

 
• Make all agencies accountable for what they have committed to at the 

Board 
 
• Locate MASH governance within Children’s Services operational 

management structure 
 
• Use formal challenge by HSCB to other agencies to escalate concerns 

revealed through audit and feedback from the staff and families 
 
• Evidence impact of HSCB challenge and the better outcomes that 

HSCB has achieved 
 
• Project manage everything especially the transition from the 

Improvement Board 
 

39



• You are seeking tangible improvement in children’s lives and need an 
outcome focus to ensure that what you do achieves this 

 
• User voice will give the Board confidence and understanding of what 

has and has not made an impact 
 
 
Throughout this letter we have sought to outline the strengths of the LSCB 
arrangements in Herefordshire, along with areas for consideration and 
improvement.  You and your colleagues will no doubt now wish to reflect on 
the team’s findings and consider how our findings might inform future plans 
and activities.  
 
For further improvement support you can contact the LGA’s Principal Adviser 
for the West Midlands region, Howard Davis, who can be contacted via 
howard.davis@local.gov.uk or on 07920 006 1971 . In addition, you can 
contact Claire Burgess, LGA Children’s Improvement Adviser covering the 
South West Region for specialist support. Claire can be contacted via 
claire.burgess23@gmail.com or on 07854 407337. 
  
Once again, thank you for participating in the LSCB pilot diagnostic and 
please pass on our gratitude to everyone involved.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
Peter Rentell 
Programme Manager (Children’s Services) 
Local Government Association 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 - Audit validation  - initial plans 
 

40



Appendix 1 – Audit validation initial plans 

41



LGA LSCB pilot diagnostic Herefordshire County Council 
LGA peer: Jonathan Williams 
Date: 17-19 November 2014 
 
 
Audit validation – initial plans - summary 
 
Five cases were looked at; four of these involved meeting with a focus group 
and two of these involved the inclusion of a parent. The fifth case was linked 
to the observation of a CP conference. It was unfortunate that the conference 
could not be observed because the parent did not consent. A telephone 
conversation later took place with the CP chair. 
 
Notes about the individual cases are outlined below 
 
Strengths 
 

· Staff were engaged and appeared to communicate with each other 
· Staff were aware that practice needs to improve in order to improve 

outcomes for children subject to CP Plans 
· Staff acknowledge a range of issues that currently impact on 

performance e.g. turnover of staff 
· Staff would welcome training to improve practice; they were reflective 

in the focus groups and would welcome more time for case reflection  
 
Areas requiring improvement 

· Plans were not robust – neither SMART nor linked to outcomes 

· We saw a lack of contingency planning 

· Expectations on parents were not made clear 

· Managers did not consistently attend conferences and core groups. 
Effective management oversight is key to ensuring progression of CP 
plans 

· There was drift in both assessment and intervention 

· We saw numerous changes in social worker between ICPC and RCPC 

· Parenting assessments were neither robust nor timely 

· There was a lack of escalation from all partner agencies when progress 
was not made on plans 

· Some decisions made could have made children vulnerable and left 
organisations at risk 

· Multi agency training on conferencing needs developing 

 

It would appear that the main focus of improving plans has been linked to the 
redesign of Framework I and the reformatting of the iitial plan layout. Only one 
of the cases had this plan in place as it had only been introduced in the last 
two weeks; the plan did look better.  

42



However a systems approach to approving plans may be required.in addition 
to the newly introduced format; this would entail for instance asking the 
following questions from a multi-agency perspective - how much have we 
done, how well have we done it and has it made a difference? 

 

During the audit validation we saw a number of issues that impacted on 
effective planning 

  

· Changes of social worker (one case had four changes of social worker 
in the period from assessment to first review); 

· Lack of risk analysis (often there were blanket risk statements, eg 
mother smokes cannabis. It did not state how much, when, frequency, 
storage, whether the child was present etc. – there was little connection 
with the impact on the child);  

· Poor management oversight (little evidence of managers attending CP 
conferences or core groups) – is this linked to capacity, managing high 
caseloads and frequent changes of staff? Managers from focus groups 
seemed engaged, intelligent, insightful and reflective with a genuine 
aim of improving outcomes for children. Therefore wider issues need to 
be explored 

· Ineffective plans. It is the role of the Chair to steer, facilitate and 
provide guidance and leadership. However partner agencies need to 
own the plan and contribute to it at conference. There is a lack of 
training and direction in relation to the model of conference. There are 
snippets of strengthening families being used but this is only by Social 
Care. The LSCB could take a view on what model needs to be taken 
forward and develop it accordingly, including the commissioning of 
training. 

· All participants need to be responsible for escalation of issues, 
especially when there is drift on case because of agencies’ 
ineffectiveness to provide a service. The two parents who attended the 
ICPC’s were not given copies of the complaint procedure in relation to 
agencies where progression of the case was being hindered because 
of agency engagement. In addition, agencies did not escalate when 
there were changes in social workers, when actions were not 
completed, when services were not being delivered; this is not solely 
an issue for social care and the chair. 

 

A number of key questions arise from the audit validation in relation to 
oversight by the LSCB.  

 

First is a series of questions in relation to oversight of performance and 
practice 

 

43



· The LSCB could use the above analysis as a starting point to 
investigate how far what has emerged from our findings is leading to an 
increase in CP plans 

 

· Are the issues raised in the audit validation exercise currently being 
measured by the LSCB, and, if so, in what way do you need to amend 
or improve oversight, and, if not, how is the LSCB to investigate further 
the findings of the audit validation exercise? 

 

· Is the current method of scrutiny of the LSCB data set and associated 
quality assurance activity via the sub group fit for purpose so as to 
reassure the Board that front line practice is – and will continue to be - 
safe and effective? 

 
Second how the work of the LSCB links with improving front line practice  
 
With regards to the front line staff’s view of the LSCB, staff from focus groups 
demonstrated the following 
 

· Learning from the recent SCR HH – staff understood the issues. There 
was some query about delay of the Framework I LAC notification being 
put on the system. 

· Good training for multi-agency staff at operational level including 
learning from the HH SCR e.g. CSE, Framework I and Domestic 
Abuse.  

· Training is not as relevant for middle and senior managers 
· The threshold document is understood by partner agencies 
· Referral pathways have improved, especially since there have been 

developments in the MASH 

 

44



Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 1
3 

 

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 W
el

lb
ei

n
g

 D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 

T
h

e 
Jo

u
rn

ey
 t

o
 G

o
o

d
 –

 P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

2 
to

 D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
4 

 

1.
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
1.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ha

ve
 t

he
 a

m
bi

tio
n 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
go

od
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 b
y 

20
16

/1
7.

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

se
ts

 o
ut

 t
he

 j
ou

rn
ey

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
an

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 j

ud
ge

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 b
e 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
; c

ur
re

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fe

at
ur

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n 
to

 g
et

 to
 g

oo
d.

 

1.
2.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

er
e 

cl
ea

r 
in

 2
01

2 
th

at
 t

he
 O

fs
te

d 
ju

dg
em

en
t 

w
as

 f
ai

r 
an

d 
th

at
 t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

te
n 

ye
ar

 
pr

of
ile

 o
f 

ad
eq

ua
te

/in
ad

eq
ua

te
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e.

 T
he

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
da

te
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ta

ge
d 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

er
e 

is
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

ha
ng

e 
w

hi
ch

 e
st

ab
lis

he
s 

th
e 

rig
ht

 c
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 s

ta
ff 

ca
n 

gi
ve

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
be

st
. 

1.
3.

 
A

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 d
ay

, 
w

e 
al

l 
w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
ou

tc
om

es
. G

oo
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
is

 a
t t

he
 c

or
e 

of
 o

ur
 

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, a

nd
 o

ur
 p

la
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is
 r

es
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f: 

o
 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ch

ild
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
pr

ac
tic

e 
 

o
 

D
ire

ct
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 u

si
ng

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
d 

th
eo

re
tic

al
 m

od
el

s 
of

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

1.
4.

 
O

ur
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

fo
cu

ss
es

 o
n 

th
e 

be
lie

f 
th

at
 f

am
ili

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 b

rin
g 

up
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

be
st

. 
T

hr
ou

gh
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 w
e 

w
ill

: 

45



Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 1
3 

 

o
 

U
nd

er
st

an
d 

ou
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
 o

ur
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s 

ea
rly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
ro

ug
h 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 d
at

a 
an

d 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
o

 
U

se
 th

e 
as

se
ts

 in
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 fa
m

ili
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 v

ol
un

te
er

s 
o

 
G

iv
e 

fa
m

ili
es

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, c
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 s

tr
en

gt
hs

 
o

 
W

he
re

 fa
m

ili
es

 c
an

no
t l

oo
k 

af
te

r 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ch
ild

re
n,

 w
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 fa
m

ily
 b

as
ed

 m
od

el
s 

of
 c

ar
e 

o
 

O
ve

r 
tim

e,
 

m
ov

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fr
om

 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

lis
ed

 
fo

rm
s 

of
 

su
pp

or
t 

to
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

ba
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 
o

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 p

at
hw

ay
s 

of
 s

up
po

rt
 s

o 
th

at
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

se
am

le
ss

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
s,

 
w

he
re

ve
r 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
co

m
es

 fr
om

 
 2.

 
H

O
W

 W
E

 W
E

R
E

: 
S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
01

2 
– 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
3 

2.
1.

 
In

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

, 
O

fs
te

d 
fo

un
d 

an
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
sy

st
em

. 
T

hi
s 

w
as

 t
yp

ifi
ed

 b
y 

a 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 d

id
 n

ot
 

kn
ow

 i
ts

el
f 

w
el

l, 
di

d 
no

t 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 w
ha

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
as

, 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 f
ra

gm
en

te
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
. C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
no

t a
 p

rio
rit

y 
an

d,
 d

es
pi

te
 in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
so

m
e 

ch
ild

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
er

e 
in

 t
he

 b
ot

to
m

 q
ua

rt
ile

 o
f 

fu
nd

in
g 

na
tio

na
lly

 d
es

pi
te

 h
av

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 o

ut
st

rip
pe

d 
st

at
is

tic
al

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s.

 

2.
2.

 
In

 c
on

tr
as

t, 
ea

rly
 h

el
p 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
er

e 
w

el
l 

or
ga

ni
se

d 
an

d 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 w
el

l 
re

so
ur

ce
d;

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 g

ro
up

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
vi

de
nc

ed
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

fo
cu

s 
on

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 t

og
et

he
r 

as
 

ag
en

ci
es

. 

2.
3.

 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 w
as

 w
ea

k 
ov

er
al

l, 
an

d 
w

hi
ls

t 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 e

xt
re

m
el

y 
ha

rd
, 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
ad

 b
ec

om
e 

co
m

pl
ac

en
t, 

ag
ai

ns
t 

a 
ba

ck
dr

op
 o

f 
te

n 
ye

ar
s 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
ju

dg
ed

 a
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 o
r 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

t 
va

rio
us

 
st

ag
es

. 

2.
4.

 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
ju

dg
em

en
t, 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

fo
ur

 th
in

gs
: 

o
 

T
he

 ju
dg

em
en

t w
as

 fa
ir 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

ha
d 

to
 b

e 
on

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s,

 n
ot

 d
ef

en
di

ng
 th

e 
in

de
fe

ns
ib

le
 

46



Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 1
3 

 

o
 

T
hi

s 
w

as
 a

 s
ys

te
m

 w
id

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

 n
ot

 ju
st

 a
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
on

e 
to

 p
ut

 r
ig

ht
 

o
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o 
be

 r
ap

id
, 

bu
t 

al
so

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

. 
T

hi
s 

m
ea

nt
 g

et
tin

g 
un

de
rn

e
at

h 
al

l t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
up

 fr
om

 th
e 

ba
si

cs
 a

ga
in

. 
o

 
T

he
 c

ul
tu

re
 h

ad
 t

o 
ch

an
ge

  
- 

to
 b

e 
an

 h
on

es
t, 

le
ar

ni
ng

 c
ul

tu
re

, 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 f

ro
m

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r, 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
ou

tc
om

es
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 s

tr
en

gt
hs

 

2.
5.

 
T

he
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
ra

je
ct

or
y 

w
as

 s
et

 –
 a

de
qu

at
e/

re
qu

ire
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t b

y 
20

14
/1

5 
an

d 
go

od
 b

y 
20

16
/1

7.
 

2.
6.

 
T

hi
ng

s 
w

e 
di

d 
w

el
l: 

 

o
 T

ak
in

g 
ra

pi
d 

st
ep

s 
to

 s
et

 u
p 

an
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 c

ha
ire

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
oa

rd
 a

nd
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
o

 N
ot

 w
as

tin
g 

tim
e 

on
 d

en
ia

l 
o

 S
ec

ur
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

ou
nc

il 
re

so
ur

ci
ng

 fo
r 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 
o

 E
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
as

 th
e 

to
p 

pr
io

rit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

o
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

po
lit

ic
al

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 d
is

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
th

e 
P

eo
pl

e 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
an

d 
m

em
be

r 
ro

le
 a

nd
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
de

di
ca

te
d 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

an
d 

se
ni

or
 o

ffi
ce

r 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

o
 E

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 t

he
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 c
ul

tu
re

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 a
ud

iti
ng

 o
f 

ov
er

 1
00

0 
ca

se
s,

 d
ra

w
in

g 
ou

t 
th

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 th

at
 a

nd
 th

e 
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t o

f a
 s

m
al

l q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
o

 E
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
hu

b 
o

 E
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

A
ca

de
m

y 
o

 U
np

ic
ki

ng
 th

e 
da

ta
 

o
 E

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 th

e 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 a
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

ul
tu

re
 

o
 S

ec
ur

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l c
ha

lle
ng

e,
 w

ith
 e

xt
er

na
lly

 m
on

ito
re

d 
st

ag
in

g 
po

in
ts

 to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 w
e 

w
er

e 
m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
an

d 
no

t s
lip

pi
ng

 b
ac

k 

2.
7.

 
T

hi
ng

s 
w

hi
ch

 d
id

n’
t g

o 
so

 w
el

l: 

o
 

T
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

es
ta

bi
lis

at
io

n 
of

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
k 

st
af

fin
g 

– 
4%

 a
ge

nc
y 

to
 4

0%
 a

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f i

n 
9 

m
on

th
s 

o
 

N
ot

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 c

le
ar

ly
 e

no
ug

h 
w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

o
 

S
lo

w
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
ith

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 a
t e

ve
ry

 le
ve

l 

47



Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 1
3 

 

o
 

D
iff

ic
ul

t s
ta

rt
 to

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

 e
vi

de
nc

in
g 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

o
 

A
n 

ov
er

am
bi

tio
us

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pl
an

 –
 o

n 
re

fle
ct

io
n,

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
er

e 
to

o 
fo

cu
ss

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 a
nd

 in
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
da

y 
to

 d
ay

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
o

 
S

lo
w

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ith
 i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 a

ls
o 

ca
us

ed
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 w
ith

 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 

2.
8.

 
T

he
 e

nd
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

hi
s 

w
as

  p
ra

ct
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 to
o 

sl
ow

. 

2.
9.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 t

he
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
, 

w
er

e 
cl

ea
r 

at
 t

he
 

ou
ts

et
 t

ha
t f

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
to

 b
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e,
 w

e 
ne

ed
ed

 e
xt

er
na

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

at
 s

et
 p

oi
nt

s.
 A

s 
w

e 
w

er
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 a
 d

ec
ad

e 
of

 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, 

w
e 

kn
ew

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
m

os
t 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

th
in

gs
 t

o 
ch

an
ge

 a
re

 o
ld

 h
ab

its
; 

an
d 

th
at

 
so

un
d 

ju
dg

em
en

t t
ak

es
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 g

et
 r

ig
ht

. 

2.
10

. T
he

re
fo

re
, 

tw
el

ve
 m

on
th

s 
af

te
r 

th
is

 i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3 

a 
P

ee
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 t
oo

k 
pl

ac
e,

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 t
he

 H
S

C
B

 v
ia

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
ev

al
ua

te
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 T
hi

s 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 t
ha

t 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

ad
 s

ta
rt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
jo

ur
ne

y 
bu

t 
th

at
 t

he
 p

ac
e 

ha
d 

be
en

 s
lo

w
. 

T
he

 r
ev

ie
w

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 th
es

e 
w

er
e 

ea
rly

 d
ay

s.
  

2.
11

. “
Y

ou
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
fa

ili
ng

s 
in

 s
oc

ia
l 

w
or

k 
pr

ac
tic

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

de
sp

ite
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 
th

is
; 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 t

ea
m

 f
ou

nd
 t

ha
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
te

am
s 

is
 n

ot
 y

et
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 t
he

 
re

qu
ire

d 
le

ve
ls

 o
f q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y.
” 

– 
P

ee
r 

re
vi

ew
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 le

tte
r 

23
rd

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3 

2.
12

. E
qu

al
ly

, 
th

e 
pe

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 f

ee
db

ac
k 

al
so

 r
ei

nf
or

ce
d 

th
at

 t
he

 f
un

da
m

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
 f

or
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 t
o 

re
so

lv
e 

lie
s 

in
 t

he
 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 s

ta
ff,

 n
ow

 a
nd

 fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

b
le

 fu
tu

re
. 

3.
 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
3 

- 
M

A
Y

 2
01

4 

3.
1.

 
T

he
 P

ee
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 w
as

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t s
ta

gi
ng

 p
os

t f
or

 u
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
a 

re
-f

oc
us

si
ng

 o
f t

he
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 b
ei

ng
 a

do
pt

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 n

ex
t 

st
ag

e 
of

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
 W

hi
ls

t 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 w
ha

t 
w

as
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 t
o 

w
or

k 
w

el
l, 

it 
w

as
 a

pp
re

ci
at

ed
 th

at
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

if 
th

e 
go

al
 o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 o

ur
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 o
f a

 g
oo

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

y 
20

16
 is

 to
 b

e 
re

al
is

ed
. 

48



Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 1
3 

 3.
2.

 
T

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ta
ke

n 
si

nc
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3 
co

m
pr

is
ed

:: 

o
 

A
 r

ec
on

fig
ur

ed
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 w

ith
 n

ew
 p

er
so

nn
el

 le
ad

in
g:

 

Ø
 

 A
 s

tr
ea

m
lin

ed
 a

nd
 r

ef
oc

us
ed

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

us
ed

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
dr

iv
er

 fo
r 

ch
an

ge
 w

ith
in

 n
ew

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

Ø
 

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

go
od

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 k

ey
 s

oc
ia

l w
or

k 
ta

sk
s 

w
ith

 c
le

a
r 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

pr
ac

tic
e.

  
Ø

 
 E

m
be

dd
in

g 
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
cu

ltu
re

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t, 
w

ith
 

th
e 

em
ph

as
is

 
on

 
se

lf-
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

 r
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
ho

ne
st

 a
na

ly
si

s.
  

Ø
 

 In
cr

ea
si

ng
 t

he
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 M
A

S
H

 a
nd

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
te

am
s 

to
 t

ak
e 

a 
m

uc
h 

st
ro

ng
er

 l
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

ro
le

, 
re

as
se

rt
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
 l

ea
d 

ag
en

cy
 fo

r 
ch

ild
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
 

o
 

T
he

 o
ng

oi
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

rio
rit

is
at

io
n 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 b
ot

h 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
ed

 fo
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
as

 fa
r 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
au

st
er

ity
 m

ea
su

re
s.

 

o
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

: 

Ø
 

 M
A

S
H

, 1
6+

, C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s,
 F

os
te

rin
g,

 A
do

pt
io

n 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 N

ee
d 

se
rv

ic
es

  
Ø

 
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

, I
R

O
 a

nd
 C

P
C

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ø
 

 A
 c

om
pl

et
el

y 
ne

w
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
pu

te
r 

sy
st

em
 F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

Ø
 

 C
hi

ld
 S

ex
ua

l E
xp

lo
ita

tio
n 

Ø
 

 T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

 (
P

M
O

) 
to

 o
ve

rs
ee

 th
e 

br
oa

de
r 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 d

ire
ct

or
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

, 
T

hi
s 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 b
ra

nd
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
an

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(C
H

IP
P

).
 

o
 

T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f: 

49



Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 1
3 

 

Ø
 

 L
oc

al
 fa

m
ily

 b
as

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

as
 a

 d
ire

ct
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 u
si

ng
 c

os
tly

 a
nd

 in
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
st

itu
tio

na
l f

or
m

s 
of

 
ca

re
. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

et
te

r 
ou

tc
om

es
 f

or
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

al
so

 f
re

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 i

nv
es

t 
in

 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
di

re
ct

 w
or

k 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Ø
 

 A
 

su
ite

 
of

 
di

re
ct

 
w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
es

 
to

 
w

or
k 

al
on

gs
id

e 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
es

 
us

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
ba

se
d 

th
er

ap
eu

tic
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
st

at
ut

or
y 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

. 
Ø

 
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

ov
er

 t
im

e,
 o

f 
7 

da
y 

pe
r 

w
ee

k 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
od

el
s 

in
 M

A
S

H
, 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
C

W
D

. 

4.
 

S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E
 W

O
R

K
F

O
R

C
E

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 

4.
1.

 
U

nd
er

pi
nn

in
g 

al
l 

th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

is
 

a 
re

va
m

pe
d 

S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
S

ta
ff 

ne
ed

 
th

e 
rig

ht
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
 th

ei
r 

be
st

. T
he

 fo
cu

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 o

n:
 

o
 

 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
o

 
 

m
an

ag
in

g 
po

or
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
,  

o
 

 
en

ha
nc

ed
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 to
 jo

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 to
 s

ta
y 

he
re

, 
o

 
 

m
or

e 
N

Q
S

W
s 

so
 th

at
 w

e 
gr

ow
 o

ur
 o

w
n 

hi
gh

 c
al

ib
re

 s
ta

ff 
ov

er
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 
o

 
 

S
oc

ia
l w

or
k 

ac
ad

em
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

  f
irs

t t
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 o
f a

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 c

ar
ee

r 
o

 
 

en
ha

nc
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

o
 

 
re

du
ce

d 
ca

se
lo

ad
s 

– 
no

w
 a

ve
ra

gi
ng

 1
6 

fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 3
0 

o
 

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 w

or
ki

ng
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 

4.
2.

 
T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 h
as

 s
ho

w
n 

so
m

e 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
si

gn
s 

as
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 f
ro

m
 a

 P
ee

r 
R

ev
ie

w
 F

ol
lo

w
-u

p 
E

xe
rc

is
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 i
n 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

14
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
he

 M
A

S
H

 a
nd

 r
el

at
ed

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 “

C
le

ar
 e

ffo
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

by
 t

he
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
te

am
 a

nd
 w

hi
ls

t 
ve

ry
 e

ar
ly

 d
a

ys
 t

he
 n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 l

oo
k 

pr
om

is
in

g.
 T

he
re

 i
s 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
av

e 
ta

ke
n 

po
si

tiv
e 

st
ep

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 t
he

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 in

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

; n
ew

 s
ys

te
m

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
, t

he
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

lo
ok

s 
rig

ht
 a

lth
ou

gh
 it

 is
 e

ar
ly

 d
ay

s”
 

50



Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 1
3 

 4.
3.

 
In

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4,

 t
he

 D
fE

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

a 
12

-m
on

th
 f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
re

vi
ew

. 
T

hi
s 

re
vi

ew
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 t
ha

t 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
er

e 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
th

ei
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t j

ou
rn

ey
 a

nd
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

  

o
 

P
os

iti
ve

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

o
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 M

A
S

H
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 

o
 

Lo
w

er
 C

as
el

oa
ds

 
o

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

m
or

al
e 

o
 

S
ta

bi
lit

y 
in

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
 

G
oo

d 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
o

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k 

ne
ed

s 
m

or
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 

5.
 

O
F

S
T

E
D

 S
IN

G
L

E
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

 IN
S

P
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
9 

A
P

R
IL

 –
 2

1 
M

A
Y

 2
01

4 

5.
1.

 
T

he
 w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

bo
ve

 p
la

ce
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 p

os
iti

o
n 

to
 r

is
e 

to
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

of
 d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

to
 O

fs
te

d 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 t
o 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

. 
T

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 t

he
 i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
w

as
 t

ha
t 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

ot
h 

in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

H
S

C
B

 w
er

e 
ju

dg
ed

 a
s 

‘re
qu

iri
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t’ 

ov
er

al
l..

 

5.
2.

 
T

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

18
 m

on
th

s,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i
n 

M
A

S
H

, 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

di
re

ct
 w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

nd
 t

he
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 t

he
 c

hi
ld

’s
 v

oi
ce

 o
n 

a 
ca

se
 b

y 
ca

se
 b

as
is

. D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 n

o 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

un
sa

fe
. 

5.
3.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
ey

 a
ls

o 
co

m
m

en
te

d 
on

 t
he

 r
el

at
iv

e 
in

fa
nc

y 
of

 s
om

e 
of

 t
he

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
an

d 
th

at
 m

or
e 

tim
e 

w
as

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
ei

r 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y.

 

o
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
cl

ea
rly

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

o
 

B
ec

om
in

g 
go

od
 is

 a
 g

ol
de

n 
th

re
ad

 
o

 
E

le
ct

ed
 M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 d

ili
ge

nt
 a

nd
 w

el
l e

ng
ag

ed
 

o
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 g

oo
d 

re
lia

bl
e 

da
ta

 n
ee

ds
 m

uc
h 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

o
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 u

se
 o

f d
at

a 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

to
 in

fo
rm

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 n

ee
ds

 im
pr

ov
in

g 

51



Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 1
3 

 5.
4.

 
P

le
as

in
gl

y,
 O

fs
te

d 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

as
 a

n 
ea

rly
 g

ro
w

in
g 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 a

m
on

gs
t t

he
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

. 

6.
 

M
A

Y
 2

01
4 

- 
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

 

6.
1.

 
T

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ew

 f
ou

nd
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 w
ith

in
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 g
iv

in
g 

ad
de

d 
im

pe
tu

s 
to

 t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e.
 W

hi
ls

t 
th

er
e 

is
 s

til
l s

ig
ni

fic
an

t w
or

k 
to

 d
o 

to
 r

ea
ch

 a
 s

ec
ur

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f g

oo
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 –
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 y

et
 

fu
lly

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 a

nd
 t

he
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 s

itu
at

io
n 

is
 s

til
l r

el
at

iv
el

y 
fr

ag
ile

 -
 t

he
 f

ou
nd

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 la
id

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
ca

n 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
 b

ui
ld

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 t

he
 c

hi
ld

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
an

d 
ra

di
ca

lly
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.  

6.
2.

 
T

he
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

P
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 f

ur
th

er
 r

ef
re

sh
ed

 t
o 

bu
ild

 i
n 

th
e 

ne
w

 O
fs

te
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

fo
cu

s 
on

 th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d.
 S

in
ce

 M
ay

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e:

 

o
 P

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

ffi
ng

 h
as

 s
ta

bi
lis

ed
 fu

rt
he

r,
 w

ith
 o

nl
y 

on
e 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

r 
le

av
in

g 
si

nc
e 

A
pr

il 
20

14
 

o
 A

ge
nc

y 
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
r 

pr
of

ile
 h

as
 r

ed
uc

ed
 to

 3
1%

 o
f t

he
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t 

o
 C

as
el

oa
ds

 h
av

e 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

at
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 1
6 

o
 T

he
 fi

rs
t c

oh
or

t o
f N

Q
S

W
s 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

ei
r 

A
Y

S
E

 
o

 T
he

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

ca
se

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 
is

 
75

%
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

 
sa

vi
ng

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 t
im

e 
fo

r 
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n
 a

nd
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f c
as

ew
or

k 
re

co
rd

ed
 

o
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 a

 n
ew

 In
te

ns
iv

e 
pl

ac
em

en
t s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

hi
ch

 g
oe

s 
liv

e 
in

 
sp

rin
g 

20
15

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
m

ul
ti-

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

7 
da

y 
pe

r 
w

ee
k 

th
er

ap
eu

tic
 s

up
po

rt
 f

or
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ca

re
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
eg

in
 th

e 
m

ov
e 

fr
om

 in
st

itu
tio

na
l f

or
m

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
to

 fa
m

ily
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
o

 T
he

 M
A

S
H

 h
as

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 w
el

l a
nd

 h
as

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 it
s 

fir
st

 s
pe

ci
al

is
m

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f c
hi

ld
 

se
xu

al
 e

xp
lo

ita
tio

n 
o

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 h
as

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

an
d 

st
ab

ili
se

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l k

ey
 m

ea
su

re
s.

 

  

52



Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 1
3 

 7.
 

L
G

A
 P

E
E

R
 D

IA
G

N
O

S
T

IC
  

7.
1.

 
T

he
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ow
 in

 p
la

ce
, p

la
ce

s 
va

lu
e 

on
 s

pe
ci

fic
 e

xt
er

na
l s

cr
ut

in
y.

 T
he

 H
S

C
B

 
w

as
 o

ne
 o

f 
fiv

e 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 t

o 
pi

lo
t 

th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
P

ee
r 

D
ia

gn
os

tic
 f

or
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
B

oa
rd

s 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

15
, 

T
hi

s 
w

as
 p

la
nn

ed
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 i

n 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, 
to

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 t

o 
ta

ki
ng

 o
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

 t
he

 f
ul

l 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ul
ti 

ag
en

cy
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 

7.
2.

 
T

he
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
re

in
fo

rc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

er
e:

 

o
 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 a

nd
 it

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 k

no
w

 o
ur

se
lv

es
 w

el
l 

o
 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
M

ay
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

o
 

th
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 s

tr
en

gt
h 

of
 th

e 
M

A
S

H
 a

nd
 o

ur
 C

S
E

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
.  

7.
3.

 
T

he
 p

ee
r 

re
vi

ew
 a

ls
o 

ur
ge

d 
us

 to
 tr

us
t o

ur
 o

w
n 

ju
dg

em
en

t 

7.
4.

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 b
oa

rd
 in

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 it
s 

fu
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
e;

 

o
 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

al
ig

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

st
ic

k 
w

ith
 t

he
m

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

ev
er

y 
el

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 

o
 

F
un

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 r
ei

nv
ig

or
at

ed
 a

nd
 fi

t f
or

 p
ur

po
se

 b
us

in
es

s 
un

it 
o

 
M

ak
e 

su
re

 a
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
bo

ar
d 

ar
e 

fu
lly

 e
ng

ag
ed

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
ei

r 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
be

in
g 

on
 th

e 
bo

ar
d 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
fr

on
tli

ne
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ou

tc
om

es
 

o
 

M
ak

e 
al

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
w

ha
t t

he
y 

ha
ve

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 
o

 
U

se
 fo

rm
al

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
an

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 it

s 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f b
et

te
r 

ou
tc

om
es

 
o

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 b
oa

rd
 

 8.
 

G
E

T
T

IN
G

 T
O

 G
O

O
D

 B
Y

 2
01

6 
 8.

1.
 

In
 2

01
2,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

ha
d 

no
 c

le
ar

 o
r 

co
nf

id
en

t v
is

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

ty
pe

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

it 
w

is
he

d 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 
 

53



Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 1

3 

 8.
2.

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 m
os

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 is

 th
e 

ab
so

lu
te

 in
te

nt
 to

 b
e 

go
od

 b
y 

20
16

/1
7.

 T
he

 r
oa

d 
ah

ea
d 

w
ill

 n
ot

 a
ll 

be
 p

la
in

 
sa

ili
ng

, 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

st
ill

 is
su

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 k
no

ck
 t

hi
ng

s 
of

f 
co

ur
se

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 is
 t

he
re

 t
ha

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

an
d 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

fo
r 

ch
an

ge
 i

s 
im

pr
ov

ed
, 

th
e 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

is
 

be
tte

r 
an

d 
w

he
n 

th
in

gs
 d

o 
no

t p
ro

gr
es

s 
as

 p
la

nn
ed

, w
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

 fo
r 

ou
rs

el
ve

s 
an

d 
ca

n 
pu

t i
t r

ig
ht

. 
 8.

3.
 

G
et

tin
g 

to
 g

oo
d 

w
ill

 r
el

y 
on

 a
 u

ni
fie

d,
 m

or
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
se

rv
ic

e 
ch

an
ge

, 
w

hi
ch

 t
ac

kl
es

 t
he

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

ca
us

es
 o

f h
ar

m
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
a 

re
le

nt
le

ss
 fo

cu
s 

on
 b

as
ic

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 O

ur
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

fo
r 

th
is

 is
 e

nc
ap

su
la

te
d 

in
 o

ur
 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

 C
H

IP
P

 (
C

hi
ld

re
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

an
d 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e)

 w
hi

ch
 is

 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
ag

ra
m

: 
 

54



Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 1

3 

 

 

55



Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

3 

  8.
4.

 
A

 r
ef

re
sh

ed
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

a 
ne

w
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
P

la
n 

ar
e 

un
de

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
dr

aw
in

g 
fr

o
m

 t
he

 
JS

N
A

 a
nd

 th
e 

be
sp

ok
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. T

he
se

 p
la

ns
 w

ill
 

se
cu

re
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 s
ys

te
m

 w
id

e 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
gr

ow
 u

p 
in

 c
ar

in
g 

fa
m

ili
es

 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

T
he

 
B

oa
rd

s 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

m
ak

in
g 

th
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
m

uc
h 

cl
ea

re
r 

ab
ou

t 
th

ei
r 

ro
le

 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

 a
nd

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f o

ur
 fo

cu
s.

 
 8.

5.
 

T
he

 r
is

ks
 to

 th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

re
la

te
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 to
: 

 
o

 
R

ec
ru

iti
ng

, r
et

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 s

ta
ff 

– 
no

t j
us

t s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
, b

ut
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff 

in
 o

th
er

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
ns

 
o

 
D

el
ay

 i
n 

m
ak

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

ch
an

ge
 i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l 

bu
dg

et
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

, 
w

hi
ch

 c
re

at
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 w
hi

ch
 r

eq
ui

re
 u

rg
en

t a
nd

 u
np

la
nn

ed
 b

ud
ge

t c
ut

s 
o

 
A

 la
ck

 o
f c

on
fid

en
ce

 o
r 

be
lie

f i
n 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 to

 d
riv

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
ch

an
ge

. 
 8.

6.
 

F
or

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
ris

ks
 w

e 
ha

ve
 p

la
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

: 
 

o
 

O
ur

 s
oc

ia
l 

ca
re

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 p

la
n 

is
 r

ob
us

t 
an

d 
w

e 
ar

e 
w

el
l 

on
 c

ou
rs

e 
fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
of

 n
ew

 a
nd

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 s
oc

ia
l 

w
or

ke
rs

 d
ur

in
g 

th
is

 y
ea

r.
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
fe

w
 l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

na
tio

na
lly

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 r

ev
is

in
g 

its
  

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

w
e 

ha
ve

 r
ob

us
t 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 p

la
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

. 
o

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 i

nt
ro

du
ce

d 
a 

st
ro

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
, 

in
iti

al
ly

 t
hr

ou
gh

 C
H

IP
P

, 
an

d 
no

w
 e

xt
en

di
ng

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
H

S
C

B
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
br

in
gi

ng
 t

he
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 a
nd

 m
om

en
tu

m
 

be
hi

nd
 a

ct
ua

l d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

ls
o.

 
o

 
C

on
fid

en
ce

 is
 g

ro
w

in
g,

 a
nd

 is
 b

ac
ke

d 
up

 b
y 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 M

ul
ti-

A
ge

nc
y 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
H

ub
, 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 c
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 t
he

 i
m

pa
ct

 o
f 

th
e 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

ac
ad

em
y 

on
 n

ew
ly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
so

ci
al

 
w

or
ke

rs
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

en
ha

nc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 H
IP

S
S

 a
nd

 T
IS

S
. T

he
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

an
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

ca
n 

be
 h

on
es

t 
ab

ou
t 

w
ha

t 
th

ey
 w

an
t 

to
 s

ee
, 

ca
n 

ha
ve

 d
iff

ic
ul

t 
co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 r

ea
ch

 d
iff

ic
ul

t d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

an
 p

re
di

ct
 a

nd
 m

iti
ga

te
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

be
fo

re
 th

ey
 o

cc
ur

. 
 9.

 
M

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

tly
 th

ou
gh

, t
he

 w
or

k 
w

e 
ar

e 
do

in
g 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 d

o,
 is

 d
on

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 c

ul
tu

re
. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 g

et
 t

hi
ng

s 
rig

ht
 a

ll 
th

e 
tim

e,
 b

ut
 w

e 
le

ar
n 

by
 d

oi
ng

. 
W

e 
be

co
m

e 
st

ro
ng

er
 a

s 
a 

sy
st

em
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 t
ha

t 
le

ar
ni

ng
. 

56



Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 1

3 

  10
. 

F
in

al
ly

, o
ur

 r
ol

e 
is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 b

rin
g 

up
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
el

l, 
an

d 
th

at
 th

os
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

ha
ve

 g
oo

d 
ou

tc
om

es
. W

e 
kn

ow
 f

ro
m

 d
ire

ct
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

, t
ha

t w
he

n 
w

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
em

, b
ui

ld
 

on
 t

he
ir 

st
re

ng
th

s 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

ho
ne

st
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 t
he

m
, 

th
at

 w
e 

cr
ea

te
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

to
 p

ut
 r

ig
ht

 th
ei

r 
is

su
es

, a
nd

 m
ov

e 
on

. E
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

t e
ve

ry
 le

ve
l o

f t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

ha
t t

hi
ng

s 
ar

e 
lik

e 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 is
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

l t
o 

ou
r 

ne
xt

 s
te

p 
of

 g
et

tin
g 

to
 g

oo
d.

  

57



58



  Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

 

 

O
FS

TE
D

 IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

 M
A

Y 
20

14
 - 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 

K
ey
:  
 

• 
O
fs
te
d 
P
ar
a 
N
um

be
r 
re
fe
rs
 to
 th
e 
A
re
a 
of
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
de
nt
ifi
ed
 in
 th

e 
O
fs
te
d 
In
sp
ec
tio
n 
O
ut
co
m
e 
of
 3
0 
Ju
ne
 2
01

4 

• 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
of
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
’s
 I
m
pr
ov
em

en
t 
an
d 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 P
ro
gr
am

m
e 
(C
H
IP
P
) 
is
 t
he

 t
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s 
w
el
lb
ei
ng
 a
nd

 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 
pa
rt
ne

rs
 w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 b
e 
th
e 
ve
hi
cl
e 

th
ro
ug
h 
w
hi
ch
 a
ll 
th
e 
O
fs
te
d 
ar
ea

s 
fo
r 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 
w
ill
 b
e 
de

liv
er
ed

. 
  
E
ac
h 
ar
ea
 f
or
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t 
th
er
ef
or
e 
ha
s 
be
en

 a
llo
ca
te
d 
w
ith
in
 t
he

 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
a 
cl
ea

r 
le
ad
 a
nd
 c
on

si
st
en
t 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 to
 it
s 
de

liv
er
y.
   

 N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

1.
 

 1
7.
  

(5
7,
 

13
8)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
as
el
oa

ds
 in
 c
hi
ld
re
n 

in
 n
ee
d 
an
d 
lo
ok
ed
 a
fte
r 

ch
ild
re
n’
s 
te
am

s 
re
m
ai
n 

m
an
ag
ea

bl
e 
 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
, 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt
 (
P
M
) 
 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f M

ed
ic
ar
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
.  

A
ug
us
t 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  
A
ll 
ca
se
s 

no
w
 tr
an

sf
er
re
d 
ba

ck
 to
 

th
e 
fie
ld
w
or
k 
te
am

s 

G
 

W
ee
kl
y 
ca
se
lo
ad

 r
ep
or
ts
.  
  

M
on

th
ly
 r
ep

or
ts
 to
 M
on
th
ly
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
pe

rf
or
m
an
ce
 c
ha

lle
ng
e 

m
ee
tin
g 
w
ith
 L
ea

de
r,
 C
X
, C

ab
in
et
 

M
em

be
r 
an
d 
G
ro
up
 L
ea
de

rs
.  
 

2.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

(K
P
) 

P
ro
fil
e 
ca
se
lo
ad

s 
to
 e
st
ab

lis
h 
w
ha

t 
a 
re
as
on
ab
le
 c
as
el
oa
d 
w
ou

ld
 lo
ok
 

lik
e 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
 

A
ug
us
t 

20
14
 

W
ee
kl
y 
re
po

rt
s 
no

w
 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
to
 e
na
bl
e 
tr
en

d 
an

al
ys
is
 a
nd

 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

ac
tio
n 
ca
n 
be

 ta
ke
n 

qu
ic
kl
y 
if 
pe
ak
s 
em

er
ge
. 

P
ilo
t o
f C

as
el
oa
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t t
oo

l 
(w
ei
gh
tin
g)
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
n 

du
rin
g 
S
ep

te
m
be

r 
 a
nd
 

ev
id
en

ce
 th
at
 c
as
e 
lo
ad
s 

co
nt
in
ue

 to
 b
e 
at
 a
 

m
an
ag
ea

bl
e 
le
ve
l -
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
.  
   
 

G
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

3.
 

  
 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
: 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

&
 F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt
 

F
or
ec
as
tin
g 
of
 s
up
po

rt
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

m
ed

iu
m
 te

rm
 s
ta
ffi
ng
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 

ba
se
d 
on
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t o
f 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 d
at
a 
to
 in
fo
rm

 d
ire
ct
 

w
or
k 
se
rv
ic
e 
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t. 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

A
ss
es
sm

en
t o
f 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 d
at
a 
in
 

pr
og
re
ss
 

G
 

M
on

ito
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
C
H
IP
P
.  
  

H
ea

lth
 a
nd

 S
oc
ia
l C

ar
e 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 

an
d 
S
cr
ut
in
y 
C
om

m
itt
ee
. 

59



  Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

4.
 

  
 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
: 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

&
 F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt
 (
P
M
) 

A
 r
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 e
va
lu
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 

w
ho

le
 s
er
vi
ce
 w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 b
e 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 to
 e
st
ab

lis
h 
w
he

th
er
 

th
e 
in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 is
 r
ig
ht
 a
nd

 to
 

in
fo
rm

 s
er
vi
ce
 s
ta
ffi
ng
 a
nd

 
m
an
ag
em

en
t a
rr
an

ge
m
en
ts
.  
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

T
he
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f b

ud
ge
ts
 h
as
 

be
en
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 b
y 
H
ea

ds
 

of
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 P
ro
je
ct
 

Le
ad
s 
an
d 
ar
e 
du
e 
to
 b
e 

pr
es
en

te
d 
to
 D
ire
ct
or
at
e 

Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 in
 

O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
4 
fo
r 

di
sc
us
si
on

 a
nd
 d
ec
is
io
n 
- 

co
m
pl
et
ed
.  
  

G
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

  C
H
IP
P
 P
ro
gr
am

m
e 
B
oa
rd
 a
nd
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

5.
 

 1
7.
  

(1
38

) 

 

R
ed

uc
e 
ca
se
lo
ad

s 
w
ith
in
 th
e 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 
se
rv
ic
e 

so
 th
at
 a
ll 
so
ci
al
 w
or
ke
rs
 h
av
e 

su
ffi
ci
en

t t
im
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 c
hi
ld
re
n 

w
ith
 th

e 
le
ve
l o
f s
er
vi
ce
 th
ey
 

re
qu
ire
. 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

T
w
o 
ad

di
tio
na

l s
oc
ia
l w

or
ke
rs
 to

 b
e 

em
pl
oy
ed

 in
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

Ju
ne

 2
01
4  

C
om

pl
et
ed
 a
s 
at
 J
un
e 

20
14
 

G
 

 

6.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

A
n 
in
te
rim

 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f t
he
 C
W
D
 

se
rv
ic
e 
to
 ta

ke
 p
la
ce
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

th
er
e 
is
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 c
ap
ac
ity
 in
 li
gh
t o

f 
th
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
F
am

ili
es
 A
ct
 2
01
4 

an
d 
th
e 
C
ar
e 
A
ct
 2
01
4 
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

A
 fu

rt
he
r 
fiv
e 
so
ci
al
 

w
or
ke
rs
 h
av
e 
be

en
 

re
cr
ui
te
d 
to
 th
e 
C
W
D
 

te
am

 a
s 
fr
om

 D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
.  
 A
n 
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed
 

pe
rm

an
en
t  
te
am

 
m
an
ag
er
 h
as
 n
ow

 a
ls
o 

be
en
 a
pp
oi
nt
ed
 w
ho

 h
as
 

su
bs
ta
nt
ia
l c
hi
ld
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
ex
pe

rie
nc
e.
  

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

7.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

A
 c
om

pr
eh
en

si
ve
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f t
he
 

C
W
D
 s
er
vi
ce
 to

 b
e 
un
de

rt
ak
en
 

ov
er
 a
 1
2 
m
on
th
 p
er
io
d 
to
 c
on

si
de
r 

to
 th
e 
po
te
nt
ia
l f
or
 a
n 
in
te
gr
at
ed
 

se
rv
ic
e 
m
od

el
 in
 th
e 
co
nt
ex
t o
f  
th
e 

C
ar
e 
A
ct
 2
01
4 
an
d 
th
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

an
d 
F
am

ili
es
 A
ct
; t
he

 in
no

va
tio
n 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e,
 p
er
so
na
liz
at
io
n,
 a
du
lts
 

w
el
lb
ei
ng
 tr
an

sf
or
m
at
io
n 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
an
d 
he

al
th
 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 a
nd
 th
e 
po

te
nt
ia
l f
or
 

a 
di
ffe

re
nt
 in
te
gr
at
ed
 s
er
vi
ce
 

m
od
el
.  
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

15
 

T
hi
s 
re
vi
ew

  i
s 
no

w
 a
 

pr
oj
ec
t w

ith
in
 C
H
IP
P
 a
nd

 
a 
pr
oj
ec
t m

an
ag
er
 w
ill
 b
e 

ap
po
in
te
d.
   

G
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou
ng
 P
eo

pl
e 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 

C
ab

in
et
 

60



  Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

.  
  

8.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

T
o 
su
pp
or
t t
he

 C
W
D
 r
ev
ie
w
, 

ex
te
rn
al
 e
xp
er
tis
e 
an
d/
or
 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
ne
ed

ed
.  
T
he
 

le
ad

 m
an
ag
er
 fo

r 
th
e 
C
W
D
 r
ev
ie
w
 

w
ill
 in
ve
st
ig
at
e 
be

st
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
to
 

in
co
rp
or
at
e 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
re
vi
ew

. 

D
ec
em

be
r 
 

20
15
 

T
he
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

O
ut
co
m
es
 fo
r 
Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e 
in
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

ex
te
rn
al
 c
on

su
lta
nt
 r
ep
or
t 

w
ill
 in
fo
rm

 th
e 
C
W
D
 

pr
oj
ec
t. 
  

V
is
its
 to

 o
th
er
 lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
iti
es
 to
 lo
ok
 a
t b
es
t 

pr
ac
tic
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
on

go
in
g 

an
d 
co
nd
uc
te
d 
by
 th
e 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
s 
an

d 
T
ea
m
 M
an

ag
er
 fo
r 
C
W
D
.  
  

G
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
  

9.
 

 1
8.
  

(9
6,
 

12
2,
 

13
0,
 

13
1,
13

2
, 1

33
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
el
ec
tr
on
ic
 c
as
e 

an
d 
pe

rf
or
m
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

sy
st
em

 in
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 

pr
ov
id
es
 a
cc
ur
at
e 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
  

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
 

(M
G
) 
in
 

co
nj
un

ct
io
n 

w
ith
  S

er
vi
ce
 

M
an

ag
er
 –
 

IC
T
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
(D
L)
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 

M
an

ag
er
 is
 im

pl
em

en
tin
g 
th
e 

pr
oj
ec
t p

la
n,
 w
ith
 fu

ll 
sy
st
em

 
re
vi
si
on

 to
 b
e 
co
m
pl
et
ed

 b
y 
en
d 

20
14
/1
5.
   
 D
ev
el
op

m
en
t o
f F

W
I 

an
d 
in
te
gr
at
ed
 d
at
a 
sh
ar
in
g 
ac
ro
ss
 

he
al
th
, s
oc
ia
l c
ar
e 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic
 

he
al
th
.  
.D
ev
el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
up

gr
ad

es
 o
f F

W
I w

ill
 ta

ke
 p
la
ce
  

.  

M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

T
he
 tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
of
 

fr
am

ew
or
ki
 is
 p
ro
gr
es
si
ng
 

on
 s
ch
ed

ul
e.
   
 

 F
ur
th
er
 u
pg
ra
de

 to
 th
e 

ca
re
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
te
m
 

in
 D
ec
em

be
r 
20

14
 

 W
or
k 
is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 in
 

pr
oc
es
s 
w
ith
 r
eg
ar
d 
to
 

cr
ea

tin
g 
an

 E
D
T
 c
on
ta
ct
 

ep
is
od
e 
w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 

ev
id
en

ce
 a
 r
an

ge
 o
f 

ac
tio
ns
 ta
ke
n 
by
 E
D
T
 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
w
he

th
er
 th
e 

ch
ild
 w
as
 d
et
ai
ne
d 
in
 

cu
st
od

y.
  T

hi
s 
is
 d
ue
 to
 b
e 

si
gn
ed

 o
ff 
in
 J
an
ua

ry
 w
ith
 

a 
go
 li
ve
 d
at
e 
of
 3
1 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

15
.  

G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
an

d 
pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t r
ep

or
ts
 w
ill
 fo

cu
s 
on
 

im
pa

ct
 o
f c
ha
ng
es
 to

 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
 

S
er
vi
ce
 M
an

ag
er
 –
 IC

T
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 

61



  Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

C
ur
re
nt
ly
 d
ev
el
op

in
g 
th
e 

fin
an

ce
 m
od
el
 to

 p
ay
 

ch
ild
re
n 
in
 r
es
id
en
tia
l 

pl
ac
em

en
ts
 v
ia
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
.  
 T
he

 fi
na
nc
e 

m
od
el
 w
en

t l
iv
e 
on

 1
7 

D
ec
em

be
r 
20
14
 fo

r 
th
e 

re
si
de

nt
ia
l p
la
ce
m
en
t 

co
m
po
ne
nt
.  
 

A
 n
ew

 r
ep

or
tin
g 
to
ol
 h
as
 

be
en
 im

pl
em

en
te
d 
w
hi
ch
 

w
ill
 e
na

bl
e 
re
po

rt
s 
to
 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 m
or
e 
qu
ic
kl
y 

an
d 
ac
cu
ra
te
ly
.  

A
n 
au
th
or
is
at
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 

pl
ac
em

en
t o
f a

 c
hi
ld
 o
n 
an
 

un
pl
an
ne
d 
ba
si
s 
ha
s 
no
w
 

be
en
 im

pl
em

en
te
d 
w
ith
in
 

fr
am

ew
or
ki
.  

T
he
 L
A
C
 m
od

ul
e 

re
co
nf
ig
ur
at
io
n 
co
nt
in
ue
s 

an
d 
th
is
 w
ill
 li
nk
 to

 th
e 

pe
rs
on
al
 e
du
ca
tio
n 
pl
an
s.
   

10
. 

  
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
 in
 

co
nj
un

ct
io
n 

w
ith
  S

er
vi
ce
 

M
an

ag
er
 –
 

IC
T
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 

A
s 
th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t i
s 
re
ac
hi
ng
 c
lo
su
re
 a
 

be
ne
fit
s 
re
vi
ew

 w
ill
 b
e 
un

de
rt
ak
en
 

to
 e
st
ab

lis
h 
th
e 
sk
ill
s 
an

d 
ca
pa
bi
lit
ie
s 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 m

ai
nt
ai
n 

an
d 
de

ve
lo
p 
th
e 
sy
st
em

  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
   

N
ot
 y
et
 s
ta
rt
ed
 a
nd

 it
 is
 

an
tic
ip
at
ed

 th
is
 w
ill
 b
e 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 b
y 
M
ar
ch
 

20
15
.  

A
 

C
H
IP
P
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
  

S
er
vi
ce
 M
an

ag
er
 –
 IC

T
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 

11
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
Q
A
 a
nd
 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 
is
 b
ei
ng
 

in
te
gr
at
ed

 w
ith
in
 th
e 
H
S
C
B
’s
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up

  

H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 s
ub
 g
ro
up
 

62



  Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
)H
S
C
B
 

B
us
in
es
s 

M
an

ag
er
  

fr
am

ew
or
k 
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
jo
ur
ne
y 
of
 

th
e 
ch
ild
 th

ro
ug
h 
th
e 
pa
rt
ne

rs
hi
p 

an
d 
its
 s
ys
te
m
s 
an
d 
se
rv
ic
es
 

12
. 

 1
9.
  

(1
34

) 

 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ud

it 
an
d 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t i
s 

ro
bu

st
ly
 a
nd

 r
ou
tin
el
y 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 b
y 
m
an
ag
er
s 
ac
ro
ss
 

ch
ild
re
n’
s 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 is
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
us
ed

 to
 d
ev
el
op

 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 to
 im

pr
ov
e 
th
e 

qu
al
ity
 o
f p

ra
ct
ic
e.
   

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
Q
A
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
ha

s 
be
en
 a
pp

ro
ve
d 
an
d 

is
 b
ei
ng
 im

pl
em

en
te
d.
  A

ny
 

irr
eg
ul
ar
iti
es
 in
 th

e 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

re
po

rt
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
ro
ut
in
el
y 
au

di
te
d 
by
 

th
e 
Q
A
 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
T
ea
m
 a
nd
 

re
le
va
nt
 c
or
re
ct
iv
e 
ac
tio
n 
w
ill
 b
e 

ta
ke
n.
   

Q
ua

rt
er
ly
 r
ep

or
ts
 w
ill
 b
e 
pr
es
en
te
d 

to
 H
ea
ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 D
LT

.  
 A
n 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an

 w
ith
 r
es
pe
ct
 to

 d
ef
ic
it 

is
su
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
w
ill
 b
e 

in
co
rp
or
at
ed

 in
to
 th
e 
re
po

rt
.  

Le
ar
ni
ng
 fr
om

 a
ud

it 
to
 in
fo
rm

 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en

t n
ee
ds
 o
f 

se
rv
ic
e 
th
ro
ug
h 
in
te
gr
at
io
n 
of
 Q
A
 

an
d 
C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
T
ea
m
 w
ith
 S
oc
ia
l 

W
or
k 
A
ca
de
m
y 

 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

   S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

O
w
in
g 
to
 s
ic
kn
es
s 
an

d 
th
e 

ap
po
in
tm
en
t o
f s
om

e 
ne
w
 

te
am

 m
an
ag
er
s 
th
er
e 
ha

s 
be

en
 s
om

e 
sl
ip
pa

ge
 in
 

au
di
t c
om

pl
et
io
n 
by
 te
am

 
m
an
ag
er
s.
   
H
ea
ds
 o
f 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

di
sc
us
si
ng
 th

e 
si
tu
at
io
n 

w
ith
 th

e 
re
le
va
nt
 te
am

 
m
an
ag
er
s.
   
Q
A
 a
nd

 
C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
m
an
ag
er
s 
ar
e 

pr
ov
id
in
g 
th
e 
su
pp
or
t t
o 

th
e 
H
ea
ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 a
nd

 
T
ea
m
 M
an

ag
er
s 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 A
ud

it 
Is
su
es
 

Lo
g 
ha

s 
be

en
 in
tr
od

uc
ed

 
so
 th
at
 th
em

es
 c
an

 b
e 

ca
pt
ur
ed
 fr
om

 m
on
th
ly
 

ca
se
 a
ud

it 
ac
tiv
ity
. T

he
 

lo
g 
is
 u
pd

at
ed

 o
n 
a 

m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
 a
nd

 
re
vi
ew

ed
.  

A
 

Q
ua

rt
er
ly
 r
ep

or
ts
 to
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
 

H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 S
ub

 G
ro
up
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
&
 F
am

ily
 S
up
po

rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

Q
ua

rt
er
ly
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 C
ab

in
et
 

R
ep

or
ts
 

 

13
. 

 2
0.
  

(5
8,
 

12
8)
 

 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
on
si
st
en

t a
nd

 h
ig
h 

qu
al
ity
 fo

rm
al
 s
up
er
vi
si
on

 o
f 

so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
st
af
f i
s 
pr
ov
id
ed

 a
nd

 
th
at
 a
ll 
st
af
f h
av
e 
re
gu
la
r 

su
pe

rv
is
io
n 
th
at
 p
ro
vi
de

s 
re
fle
ct
io
n 
an
d 
ch
al
le
ng
e.
  

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

A
ll 
m
an
ag
er
s 
to
 b
e 
tr
ai
ne

d 
in
 

re
fle
ct
iv
e 
su
pe

rv
is
io
n 
an
d 
in
 li
ne
 

w
ith
 th

e 
ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns
 o
f t
he
 

su
pe

rv
is
io
n 
po

lic
y.
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

T
he
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en

t f
or
 a
ll 

ne
w
 m

an
ag
er
s 
to
 h
av
e 
a 

fo
rm

al
 in
du

ct
io
n 
w
hi
ch
 

in
cl
ud

es
 s
up

er
vi
si
on

 is
 in
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 

F
ur
th
er
 a
ud

it 
w
hi
ch
 w
as
 

du
e 
to
 b
e 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 in
 in
 

D
ec
em

be
r 
20
14
 w
ill
 n
ow

 
ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 in
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

du
e 
to
 r
ep
rio
rit
iz
at
io
n 
of
 

Q
A
 w
or
k 
to
 fo

cu
s 
on
 r
e-

A
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

63



  Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

re
fe
rr
al
 a
nd
 C
w
D
. 

14
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

S
up

er
vi
si
on

 s
ur
ve
y 
co
m
m
is
si
on
ed
 

w
ith
 B
ris
to
l U

ni
ve
rs
ity
 ta

ki
ng
 p
la
ce
 

in
 J
un
e 
20
14

 a
nd
 w
ill
 b
e 
in
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
to
 C
hi
ld
ca
re
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a
nd
 jo
in
t s
en

io
r 

m
an
ag
em

en
t t
ea
m
  

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 C
om

pl
et
ed
.  
   

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

15
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

S
up

er
vi
si
on

 A
ud
it 
as
 p
ar
t o
f a

nn
ua

l 
cy
cl
e 
of
 a
ud

its
 is
 d
ue
 to
 ta

ke
 p
la
ce
 

in
  J
ul
y/
A
ug
us
t 2
01

4,
 r
ep

or
tin
g 
in
 

S
ep

t 2
01
4.
  A

s 
pa

rt
 o
f t
he

 o
ut
co
m
e,
 

th
er
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
co
m
m
en
da

tio
ns
 a
s 

to
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
ac
tio
ns
 a
nd
 fu

rt
he

r 
au
di
t 

ac
tiv
ity
 w
ith
 r
es
pe

ct
 to
 s
up

er
vi
si
on

.  
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

F
ur
th
er
 a
ud

it 
w
hi
ch
 w
as
 

du
e 
to
 b
e 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 in
 in
 

D
ec
em

be
r 
20
14
 w
ill
 n
ow

 
ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 in
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

A
 

H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 G
ro
up
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

16
. 

 2
1.
  

(1
34

) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 r
eg
ul
ar
 c
as
e 
fil
e 

au
di
ts
 a
nd
 r
e-
au
di
ts
 w
ith
in
 s
oc
ia
l 

w
or
k 
te
am

s 
ar
e 
un
de

rt
ak
en

 a
nd
 

ar
e 
us
ed
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
ar
ea
s 
of
 

st
re
ng
th
 a
nd

 d
ev
el
op
m
en

t a
nd
 to

 
m
ea

su
re
 th
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en

es
s 
of
 

ac
tio
ns
 ta
ke
n 
to
 im

pr
ov
e 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
.  

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
ha

s 
be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve
d 

an
d 
is
 b
ei
ng
 im

pl
em

en
te
d.
 fo
r 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 b
e 
re
fr
es
he

d 
on

 a
n 

an
nu
al
 b
as
is
.  

Le
ar
ni
ng
 fr
om

 a
ud

it 
to
 in
fo
rm

 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en

t n
ee
ds
 o
f 

se
rv
ic
e 
th
ro
ug
h 
in
te
gr
at
io
n 
of
 Q
A
 

an
d 
C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
T
ea
m
 w
ith
 S
oc
ia
l 

W
or
k 
A
ca
de
m
y 
is
 u
nd
er
w
ay
. 

 

Ju
ly
 2
01

4 
A
ud

it 
an

al
ys
is
 c
on

tin
ue
s 

to
 b
e 
sh
ar
ed

 a
t 

op
er
at
io
na

l t
ea
m
 

m
ee
tin
gs
.  
H
ow

ev
er
, t
he

re
 

ha
s 
be
en
 s
om

e 
sl
ip
pa
ge
 

in
 c
om

pl
et
in
g 
au
di
ts
 b
y 

th
e 
te
am

 m
an
ag
er
s 
ow

in
g 

to
 s
ic
kn
es
s 
an
d 

m
an
ag
em

en
t c
ha
ng
es
 

w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 b
ei
ng
 

ad
dr
es
se
d 
by
 th

e 
re
le
va
nt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
s.
  

Q
A
C
M
’s
 m

ee
t w

ith
 th

e 
so
ci
al
 w
or
k 
ac
ad

em
y 
to
 

sh
ar
e 
au
di
t f
in
di
ng
s.
 F
or
 

ex
am

pl
e,
 th
e 
so
ci
al
 w
or
k 

ac
ad
em

y 
is
 lo
ok
in
g 
at
 

im
pr
ov
in
g 
su
pp

or
t t
o 

so
ci
al
 w
or
ke
rs
 

un
de
rt
ak
in
g 
pa

re
nt
in
g 

as
se
ss
m
en

t w
he

re
 

pa
re
nt
s 
ha

ve
 a
dd

iti
on
al
 

le
ar
ni
ng
 n
ee
ds
 r
es
ul
tin
g 

A
 

Q
ua

rt
er
ly
 r
ep

or
ts
 to
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
 

H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 S
ub

 G
ro
up
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
&
 F
am

ily
 S
up
po

rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

64



  Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

fr
om

 c
hi
ld
ho
od

 a
bu

se
. 

T
he
 Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
w
ill
 

be
 r
ef
re
sh
ed
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 

in
co
rp
or
at
e 
le
ar
ni
ng
 a
s 
it 

ar
is
es
 fr
om

 a
ud
its
.  
 

17
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 
 

Q
A
 a
nd
 C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty
 in
cr
ea

se
d.
   
 

 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

 

18
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

T
he
 c
re
at
io
n 
of
 a
 n
ew

 le
ad

 
m
an
ag
er
 w
ill
 o
ve
rs
ee

 Q
A
 a
nd
 th
e 

S
oc
ia
l W

or
k 
A
ca
de
m
y 
in
te
gr
at
io
n,
 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
its
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t f
un
ct
io
n.
   
T
hi
s 
po

st
 

ho
ld
er
 w
ill
 h
av
e 
le
ad

 r
es
po

ns
ib
ili
ty
 

fo
r 
en

su
rin
g 
th
e 
re
vi
ew

 a
nd
 r
ev
is
io
n 

of
 th
e 
qu
al
ity
 a
ss
ur
an

ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

an
d 
w
ill
 tr
ac
k 
pr
og
re
ss
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e 

Q
A
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an

 in
 a
cc
or
da

nc
e 
w
ith
 

th
e 
ag
re
ed

 g
ov
er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
.  

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 G
ro
up
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

19
. 

 2
2.
  

(4
8,
 5
0,
 

52
, 5
4)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th

re
sh
ol
ds
 fo

r 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
re
 

un
de
rs
to
od
 a
nd

 c
on

si
st
en

tly
 

ap
pl
ie
d 
by
 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
st
af
f 

an
d 
pa

rt
ne
r 
ag
en

ci
es
, s
o 
th
at
 

ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
fa
m
ili
es
 g
et
 th
e 
rig
ht
 

he
lp
 a
t t
he

 r
ig
ht
 ti
m
e.
   

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 
 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 r
ev
is
io
n 
of
 L
ev
el
s 
of
 

N
ee

d 
/  
th
re
sh
ol
ds
 g
ui
da

nc
e 

.  
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 P
&
P
 G
ro
up
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up

  

C
hi
ld
re
n 
&
 Y
ou
ng
 P
eo
pl
e’
s 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
  

H
ea

lth
 a
nd

 W
el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa

rd
  

 

20
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

La
un
ch
 a
nd

 im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 n
ew

 
gu
id
an

ce
.  
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 –
 

M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

M
ul
ti-
ag
en

cy
 w
or
ks
ho

ps
 

ar
e 
be

in
g 
he

ld
 th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 

O
ct
ob
er
 to

 M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 
to
 

la
un

ch
 th

e 
ne

w
 g
ui
da

nc
e.
   

G
 

H
S
C
B
 S
tr
at
eg
ic
 B
oa

rd
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
&
 Y
ou
ng
 P
eo
pl
e’
s 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

65



  Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

H
S
C
B
 M
A
S
H
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
G
ro
up
 

21
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

R
eg
ul
ar
 th

em
at
ic
 a
ud

its
 w
ill
 b
e 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 to
 e
st
ab

lis
h 
th
e 

em
be
dd
in
g 
an

d 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en

es
s 
of
 th
e 

gu
id
an

ce
.  

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

R
eg
ul
ar
 th

em
at
ic
 a
ud

its
 

pl
an

ne
d 
in
 li
ne

 w
ith
 th
e 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k.
 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 S
ub

 G
ro
up
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

22
. 

 2
3.
 

(5
5,
 5
6)
  

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
in
de
pe
nd

en
t 

re
vi
ew

in
g 
of
fic
er
s 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 

st
ru
ct
ur
e 
an

d 
m
an

ag
e 
ch
ild
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
co
nf
er
en
ce
s 
an

d 
de

ve
lo
p 
sp
ec
ifi
c 
an
d 
m
ea

su
ra
bl
e 

ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
pl
an

s.
  

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

In
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 a
n 
on

go
in
g 
pa

re
nt
al
 

fe
ed
ba

ck
 m
ec
ha
ni
sm

.  
T
he

 
fe
ed
ba

ck
 w
ill
 b
e 
an
al
ys
ed

 a
nd

 u
se
d 

to
 in
fo
rm

 s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y.
   
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 

al
so
 e
na

bl
e 
an
 o
ng
oi
ng
 c
he

ck
 b
ac
k 

as
 to

 th
e 
su
cc
es
s 
of
 th
e 
pl
an
s 
to
 

im
pr
ov
e 
C
P
 P
la
ns
 d
et
ai
le
d 
be

lo
w
.  

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  

D
at
a 
co
lle
ct
io
n 
fr
om

 
pa

re
nt
al
 fe
ed
ba

ck
 w
ill
 

co
nt
in
ue

 a
nd

 th
e 
fin
di
ng
s 

fr
om

 th
at
 d
at
a 
w
ill
 b
e 

an
al
ys
ed

 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 a
nd
 

th
e 
fin
di
ng
s 
re
po
rt
ed

 to
 

ch
ild
ca
re
 m
an
ag
er
s 
an
d 

H
S
C
B
.  
A
ny
 fi
nd

in
gs
 w
ill
 

th
en
 fe
ed

 in
to
 a
ny
 

le
ar
ni
ng
.  
   
  

 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

23
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

In
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 ti
m
e 
lim

ite
d 
ag
en

cy
 

fe
ed
ba

ck
 m
ec
ha
ni
sm

.  
 T
hi
s 
w
ill
 

pr
ov
id
e 
cr
iti
ca
l f
ee

db
ac
k 
on

 th
e 

qu
al
ity
 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv
en

es
s 
of
 C
P
 

C
on
fe
re
nc
es
 to
 s
ec
ur
e 
a 
st
ro
ng
 

ev
id
en

ce
 b
as
e 
to
 e
st
ab
lis
h 
th
e 

sc
al
e 
of
 a
ny
 is
su
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
an

d 
pi
np

oi
nt
 th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
ta
l n
ee
ds
.  
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  
  

T
im
e 
lim

ite
d 
ag
en

cy
 

fe
ed
ba

ck
 w
ill
 b
e 

co
nd
uc
te
d 
fo
r 
on

e 
m
on
th
 

on
 a
n 
an
nu
al
 b
as
is
.  
 

T
he
 a
na

ly
si
s 
of
 th
e 

fin
di
ng
s 
w
ill
 th

en
 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed
 in
to
 c
hi
ld
ca
re
 

m
an
ag
er
s 
an
d 
th
e 
H
S
C
B
.  
   

G
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

24
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

Im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
qu
al
ity
 o
f t
he

 
fo
rm

ul
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 
O
ut
lin
e 
C
P
 P
la
n 

by
 b
en

ch
m
ar
ki
ng
 w
ha

t a
 g
oo

d 
“O
ut
lin
e”
 C
P
 P
la
n 
fr
om

 o
th
er
 lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
iti
es
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  

A
 s
am

pl
e 
re
vi
ew

 o
f t
he
 

ne
w
 o
ut
lin
e 
C
P
 p
la
n 
w
ill
 

ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 in
 J
an
ua

ry
 to

 
en

su
re
 th
at
 th
ey
 a
re
 b
ei
ng
 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 L
G
A
 D
ia
gn
os
tic
 

66



  Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 3
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

6 
15

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

em
be
dd
ed
.  
 

W
or
k 
w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

en
su
re
 th
at
 th
e 
qu
al
ity
 

S
M
A
R
T
 C
P
 c
on

tin
ue
 to
 

im
pr
ov
e.
   
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

m
on

ito
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
di
p 

sa
m
pl
in
g 
w
ith
 o
ng
oi
ng
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t s
es
si
on

s 
w
ith
 th

e 
IR
O
s.
   

   
  

25
. 

  
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
 

(M
G
) 

Im
pr
ov
e 
F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 to

 b
et
te
r 

su
pp
or
t t
he
 fo

rm
ul
at
io
n 
of
 a
 q
ua

lit
y 

O
ut
lin
e 
C
P
 P
la
n 
at
 C
on
fe
re
nc
e 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
  

G
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

26
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

D
ire
ct
 o
bs
er
va
tio
ns
 o
f c
on
fe
re
nc
e 

by
 s
er
vi
ce
 m

an
ag
er
 a
nd
 k
ey
 

pa
rt
ne

r 
ag
en

ci
es
 (
N
am

ed
 N
ur
se
) 
 

 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

D
ire
ct
 o
bs
er
va
tio
n 
by
 

se
rv
ic
e 
m
an

ag
er
 a
nd

 
na

m
ed

 n
ur
se
 h
as
 

co
m
m
en
ce
d 
an
d 
it 
is
 

pl
an

ne
d 
th
at
 1
0 

co
nf
er
en
ce
 w
ill
 b
e 

ob
se
rv
ed

 a
nd

 a
 r
ep
or
t 

pr
ov
id
ed

 fo
r 
H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 

S
ub

 G
ro
up
.  

T
he
 r
em

ai
ni
ng
 

ob
se
rv
at
io
ns
 w
ill
 ta

ke
 

pl
ac
e 
du

rin
g 
Ja
nu
ar
y 
an

d 
a 
re
po

rt
 w
ill
 b
e 
pr
ep

ar
ed
 

fo
r 
th
e 
H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 S
ub
 

gr
ou

p 
fo
r 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
5.
  

A
 

 H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 S
ub

 G
ro
up
 

27
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

T
he
 H
S
C
B
 d
ia
gn
os
tic
 h
as
 b
ee

n 
co
m
m
is
si
on

ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
LG

A
 to

 
su
pp
or
t t
he
 e
va
lu
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 

su
cc
es
sf
ul
 im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 th
e 

ab
ov
e.
   
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

T
he
 L
G
A
 h
av
e 
co
nd
uc
te
d 

th
ei
r 
re
vi
ew

 a
nd

 th
e 

H
ea

lth
 a
nd

 S
oc
ia
l C

ar
e 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd

 S
cr
ut
in
y 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 w
ill
 b
e 

re
ce
iv
in
g 
a 
re
po

rt
 o
n 
4 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

H
ea

lth
 a
nd

 S
oc
ia
l C

ar
e 
S
cr
ut
in
y 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

67



  Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

F
eb

ru
ar
y 
20

15
. 

E
xt
ra
or
di
na

ry
 M
ee

tin
g 
of
 

H
S
C
B
 to

ok
 p
la
ce
 o
n 
2n

d  
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
14
 to

 r
ev
ie
w
 

th
e 
fin
di
ng
s,
 w
hi
ch
 in
fo
rm

 
th
e 
pr
op

os
al
 a
s 
to
 th
e 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f t
he
 H
S
C
B
 

st
ru
ct
ur
e 
at
 it
’s
 J
an
ua

ry
 

m
ee
tin
g 

 

28
. 

 2
3.
 

(6
7?

, 
80

) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
er
e 
is
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 

le
ad

er
sh
ip
, p

ra
ct
ic
e,
 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
an
d 
ca
pa

ci
ty
 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
In
de
pe
nd

en
t R

ev
ie
w
in
g 

O
ffi
ce
r 
se
rv
ic
e.
   

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f S

af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
an

d 
R
ev
ie
w
 s
er
vi
ce
 (
in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 

co
nf
er
en
ce
 c
ha

irs
 a
nd

 IR
O
s)
 

un
de
rw
ay
 a
nd

 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an

 a
s 
ab

ov
e 

to
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe

d.
  

 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

.T
he

 r
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 s
co
pi
ng
 

ex
er
ci
se
 h
as
 b
ee

n 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 a
nd

 a
 p
ro
je
ct
 

pl
an

 w
ill
 b
e 
dr
aw

n 
up

 to
 

su
pp
or
t i
m
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
as
 

pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 C
H
IP
P
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
   

 

A
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up

  

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

C
H
IP
P
 P
ro
gr
am

m
e 
B
oa
rd
 

29
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 
 

T
he
 b
us
in
es
s 
pl
an
 fo

r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

w
ill
 b
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 

th
e 
is
su
es
 a
re
 c
on
ta
in
ed

 w
ith
in
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p
la
n.
  

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

30
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 
 

Im
m
ed

ia
te
 r
ec
ru
itm

en
t t
o 
cu
rr
en
t 

va
ca
nc
y 
un

de
rw
ay
.  
 

A
ug
us
t 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

  

31
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

S
ec
on
dm

en
t o
f S

M
 in
to
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

w
ith
 s
pe

ci
al
is
t e

xp
er
tis
e 
in
 L
A
C
 

fr
om

 A
ug
us
t. 

 

A
ug
us
t 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
  

G
 

 

32
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

Se
lf-
as
se
ss
m
en
t 
ag
ai
ns
t 
IR
O
 

H
an
db
oo
k 
an
d 
C
ar
e 
Pl
an
ni
ng
 

R
eg
ul
at
io
ns
 t
o 
be
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
to
 

A
pr
il 
20

15
 

S
E
F
 C
om

pl
et
ed

 a
nd
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t d
ay
 ta

ki
ng
 

pl
ac
e 
29

th
 J
an
ua

ry
 2
01
5 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

68



  Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

(J
R
) 
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
w
he
re
 t
he
 g
ap
s 
ar
e 
an
d 

to
 p
rio
rit
is
e 
th
e 
ac
tio
ns
 n
ee
de
d 
in
 

or
de
r 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t.
 

to
 d
ev
el
op

 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an

 a
nd

 
fe
ed
 in
to
 C
H
IP
P
 p
ro
je
ct
 

pl
an

   
 

C
H
IP
P
 P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 

 

33
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

Im
pr
ov
e 
bu
si
ne

ss
 p
ro
ce
ss
 s
o 
th
at
 

m
in
ut
es
 a
re
 d
is
tr
ib
ut
ed
 in
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
ith
 a
gr
ee
d 
tim

es
ca
le
s 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  
 F
ul
l 

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
as
 fr
om

 
S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20
14
.  
 

T
ra
ck
in
g 
m
ec
ha
ni
sm

 n
ow

 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
to
 m
on
ito
r 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e.
  

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
er
s 

34
. 

 2
4.
  

(6
6)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
ch
ild
re
n 
w
ith
 a
 

di
sa
bi
lit
y 
kn
ow

n 
to
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

se
rv
ic
es
 a
re
 r
ig
or
ou

sl
y 
as
se
ss
ed
 

to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
ei
r 
ne
ed

s 
ar
e 

m
et
 a
nd
 th
at
 th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
is
 

fu
lfi
lli
ng
 it
s 
st
at
ut
or
y 
fu
nc
tio
ns
.  
  

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

A
n 
au
di
t o
f a

ll 
hi
gh
 c
os
t p

la
ce
m
en
ts
 

is
 b
ei
ng
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
to
 e
st
ab

lis
h 
th
e 

qu
al
ity
 o
f a

ss
es
sm

en
ts
 a
nd
 th
at
 

ne
ed
s 
ha

ve
 b
ee
n 
co
rr
ec
tly
 

id
en

tif
ie
d.
   
T
he

 o
ut
co
m
e 
of
 th
e 

au
di
t w

ill
 in
fo
rm

 p
rio
ris
at
io
n 
as
 to
 

pr
ac
tic
e 
is
su
es
 a
nd

 a
ny
 r
el
ev
an

t 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en

t. 
 

 

A
ug
us
t 

20
14
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

15
 

T
he
 fi
nd
in
gs
 fr
om

 th
e 

au
di
t w

ill
 fo

rm
 p
ar
t o
f t
he

 
C
W
D
 p
ro
je
ct
 w
ith
in
 

C
H
IP
P
.  
 

G
 

C
om

pl
ex
 N
ee
ds
 P
an
el
 

Jo
in
t G

ro
up

 C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

 

35
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

A
 c
om

pr
eh
en

si
ve
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f t
he
 

C
W
D
 s
er
vi
ce
 to

 b
e 
un
de

rt
ak
en
 in
 

th
e 
co
nt
ex
t o
f  
th
e 
C
ar
e 
A
ct
 a
nd
 th
e 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
an
d 
F
am

ili
es
 A
ct
; A

du
lts
 

W
el
lb
ei
ng
 T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 

W
el
lb
ei
ng
; h
ea

lth
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
;  

th
e 
in
no

va
tio
n 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e,
 

pe
rs
on
al
iz
at
io
n 
an
d 
th
e 
po
te
nt
ia
l 

fo
r 
a 
di
ffe

re
nt
 in
te
gr
at
ed
 s
er
vi
ce
 

m
od
el
. .
  

 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

15
 

T
hi
s 
is
 n
ow

 a
 p
ro
je
ct
 w
ith
 

th
e 
C
H
IP
P
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 

an
d 
a 
pr
oj
ec
t m

an
ag
er
 w
ill
 

be
 a
pp

oi
nt
ed
  

G
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
  

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou
ng
 P
eo

pl
e 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 

C
ab

in
et
 

36
. 

 2
5.
  

(6
2,
 6
4,
 

65
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ab
ou

t 
ch
ild
re
n 
w
ho

 g
o 
m
is
si
ng
 is
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
sh
ar
ed

 a
nd

 r
ob

us
tly
 

an
al
ys
ed

 b
et
w
ee

n 
pa
rt
ne

r 
ag
en

ci
es
.  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 

D
ev
el
op

 H
S
C
B
 m
ec
ha
ni
sm

 fo
r 
th
e 

on
go
in
g 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
ov
er
si
gh
t o
f 

co
or
di
na
te
d 
m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 

re
sp
on

se
s 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
w
ho

 g
o 

m
is
si
ng
.  
 T
he
 C
S
A
R
 s
ub

 g
ro
up

 w
ill
 

en
su
re
 th
e 
an
al
ys
is
 o
f m

is
si
ng
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

M
ul
ti-
ag
en

cy
 o
pe

ra
tio
na
l 

gr
ou

p 
is
 e
st
ab
lis
he

d 
to
 

sh
ar
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n,
 id
en
tif
y 

th
em

es
 a
nd
 tr
en
ds
 to
 

re
sp
on
d 
co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 –
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 b
ut
 fu
rt
he

r 

G
 

H
S
C
B
 B
us
in
es
s 
P
la
n 
20
14

/1
5 
 

H
S
C
B
 S
tr
at
eg
ic
 B
oa

rd
 

H
S
C
B
 S
ex
ua

l E
xp
lo
ita
tio
n 
an
d 

69



  Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

ch
ild
re
n 
da
ta
 a
nd
 id
en
tif
y 
sp
ec
ifi
c 

th
em

es
, g
ro
up
s 
an
d 
tr
en

ds
 w
hi
ch
 

m
ay
 id
en

tif
y 
ris
k 
ar
ea

s 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
co
un

ty
 a
nd
 r
eg
io
na

lly
 a
nd

 d
ev
el
op

 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
 r
es
po

ns
e.
  

w
or
k 
on

 e
m
be
dd
in
g 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
an
d 
th
e 
da
ta
 

se
t c
on
tin
ue
s 
w
ith
in
 th

is
 

gr
ou

p 
   

T
ra
ffi
ck
in
g 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 G
ro
up
 

37
. 

  
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
 

(M
G
) 

D
ev
el
op

 a
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
m
ec
ha
ni
sm

 
w
ith
in
 fr
am

ew
or
ki
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
be

st
 

id
en

tif
ic
at
io
n 
an

d 
be

st
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
in
 

re
sp
ec
t o
f m

is
si
ng
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 

en
ab
le
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
tin
g 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
re
tu
rn
 in
te
rv
ie
w
 

ou
tc
om

es
.  
  

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
  

G
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

38
. 

 2
6.
  

(6
8)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
pa
rt
ne

r 
ag
en

ci
es
 

an
d 
th
e 
co
m
m
un

ity
 a
re
 a
w
ar
e 
of
 

th
e 
ne

ed
 to
 n
ot
ify
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 o
f p

riv
at
e 

fo
st
er
in
g 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
.  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
of
 fr
on
tli
ne

 s
ta
ff 
ar
ou
nd

 
pr
iv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g.
 

R
ef
re
sh
 o
f p

riv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g 

aw
ar
en

es
s 
ra
is
in
g 
st
ra
te
gy
. T

hi
s 
to
 

in
cl
ud

e 
lo
ca
l p
re
ss
, s
ch
oo

ls
 

(e
xc
ha

ng
e 
st
ud
en

ts
) 
an
d 
ch
ild
re
n’
s 

ce
nt
re
s 
ea

rly
 y
ea

rs
 s
et
tin
gs
 a
nd

 th
e 

pu
bl
ic
 a
t l
ar
ge
.  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

P
ra
ct
ic
e 
st
an

da
rd
s 
dr
af
te
d 

by
 H
ea

d 
of
 C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 
an

d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t (
D
C
) 
w
hi
ch
 

ne
ed
 to
 b
e 
si
gn
ed

 o
ff.
 

M
ee

tin
g 
ha

s 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e 

w
ith
 C
om

m
un
ic
at
io
n 
U
ni
t 

to
 u
pd

at
e 
cu
rr
en

t p
os
te
rs
 

an
d 
pu

bl
ic
at
io
ns
. 

T
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
fr
on

tli
ne
 s
ta
ff 

ar
ou

nd
 p
riv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g 
is
 

st
ill
 o
ut
st
an
di
ng
.  
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

st
an

da
rd
s 
gi
vi
ng
 g
re
at
er
 

cl
ar
ity
 a
ro
un

d 
th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc
e 
be
tw
ee

n 
a 

pr
iv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
t a
nd
 k
in
sh
ip
 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
t h
av
e 
no
t 

be
en
 d
ra
fte

d.
 

R
ad

io
 c
am

pa
ig
n 
st
ar
te
d 

on
 th
e 
1s

t  D
ec
 2
01
4.
 

A
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up

  

S
cr
ut
in
y 

39
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

R
ef
re
sh
 o
f c
ur
re
nt
 p
os
te
rs
 a
nd
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
le
af
le
ts
 a
nd
 c
on

si
de

r 
w
id
er
 s
tr
at
eg

y 
as
 to

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

70



  Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

sh
ar
in
g 
an

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
sh
ar
in
g.
   
 

40
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

A
na

ly
si
s 
of
 d
at
a 
fr
om

 c
om

pa
ra
to
r 

an
d 
go
od
 p
er
fo
rm

in
g 
au
th
or
iti
es
 a
s 

to
 w
ha

t n
um

be
r 
of
 p
riv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 w
ou

ld
 b
e 
ex
pe

ct
ed
 

in
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 a
nd
 le
ar
n 
fr
om

 
ap

pr
oa
ch
es
 th
ey
 ta

ke
. 

A
pr
il 
20

15
 

P
riv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g 
ha

s 
be
en

 
tr
an

sf
er
re
d 
to
 th
e 
ki
ns
hi
p 

an
d 
S
G
O
 h
ub
 s
o 
th
at
 

th
er
e 
is
 g
re
at
er
 o
ut
si
gh
t. 
 

C
om

pa
ra
tiv
e 
da

ta
 w
ill
 b
e 

on
e 
of
 th
ei
r 
pr
im
ar
y 
ta
sk
s.
 

A
lis
on

 F
or
sh
aw

 is
 d
ue

 to
 

m
ee
t w

ith
 M
A
S
H
 to

 r
ev
ie
w
 

th
e 
nu
m
be

r 
of
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 

be
in
g 
re
ce
iv
ed

 a
s 
to
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
ca
pa
ci
ty
 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
S
G
O
 a
nd

 K
in
sh
ip
 H
ub

 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
6 
w
ee

kl
y 
vi
si
ts
 

ca
n 
be
 c
om

pl
et
ed
. 

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
  

41
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

C
la
rif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 w
ha

t a
 p
riv
at
e 

fo
st
er
in
g 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
t i
s 
as
 p
ar
t o
f 

th
e 
pr
ac
tic
e 
st
an
da

rd
s 
fo
r 
ki
ns
hi
p 

an
d 
pr
iv
at
e 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
. 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

P
ra
ct
ic
e 
st
an

da
rd
s 
ha
ve
 

be
en
 d
ra
fte

d.
  W

e 
ar
e 

w
or
ki
ng

 w
ith
 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

in
 W

or
ce
st
er
 to
 tr
y 
an

d 
br
in
g 
co
ns
is
te
nc
y 
ar
ou
nd

 
ki
ns
hi
p 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
t 

he
ar
d 
in
 c
ou
rt
.  
T
hi
s 
ha
s 

al
so
 in
cl
ud
ed

 jo
in
t t
ra
in
in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 k
in
sh
ip
 

pl
ac
em

en
ts
. 

A
 

In
te
rn
al
 P
ol
ic
y 
an

d 
P
ro
ce
du

re
s 

G
ro
up

  

42
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

T
o 
pr
ov
id
e 
su
ffi
ci
en
t l
ea
de

rs
hi
p 
an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty
 to

 a
ch
ie
ve
 a
bo
ve
 a
ct
io
ns
, 

re
sp
on

si
bi
lit
y 
fo
r 
pr
iv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g 
to
 

m
ov
e 
in
to
 th
e 
K
in
sh
ip
 a
nd

 S
G
O
 

hu
b 

A
pr
il 
20

15
 

M
on

ito
rin
g 
of
 P
riv
at
e 

fo
st
er
in
g 
ha

s 
be
en

 a
dd
ed

 
to
 th
e 
ro
le
s 
an
d 

re
sp
on

si
bi
lit
ie
s 
of
 S
G
O
 

an
d 
K
in
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
 

M
an

ag
er
, w

ho
 w
ill
  r
ep

or
t 

to
 C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an

ag
er
s 
 

si
x 
m
on

th
ly
. .
 . 

A
lis
on

 F
or
sh
aw

 is
 d
ue

 to
 

m
ee
t w

ith
 M
A
S
H
 to

 r
ev
ie
w
 

th
e 
nu
m
be

r 
of
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 

be
in
g 
re
ce
iv
ed

 a
s 
to
 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 
m
on

th
ly
 

71



  Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
ca
pa
ci
ty
 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
S
G
O
 a
nd

 K
in
sh
ip
 H
ub

 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
6 
w
ee

kl
y 
vi
si
ts
 

ca
n 
be
 c
om

pl
et
ed
. 

43
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

U
pd

at
e 
pr
iv
at
e 
fo
st
er
in
g 
w
or
kf
lo
w
 

on
 fr
am

ew
or
ki
 a
s 
cu
rr
en
tly
 n
ot
 fi
t 

fo
r 
pu

rp
os
e 
to
 e
na
bl
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin
g 
an

d 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 

re
po

rt
in
g 
of
 s
uc
h 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
.  
  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
de

liv
er
ed

 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
fr
am

ew
or
ki
 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 p
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n.
  

O
ut
st
an
di
ng
  

A
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

44
. 

 2
7.
  

(7
0)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
E
m
er
ge
nc
y 
D
ut
y 

T
ea
m
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 
su
pp

or
ts
 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op
le
 h
el
d 
in
 p
ol
ic
e 
cu
st
od

y 
ou
t 

of
 h
ou

rs
 a
nd

 th
at
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 

al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n 
is
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
to
 p
re
ve
nt
 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op
le
 b
ei
ng
 h
el
d 
in
 p
ol
ic
e 

cu
st
od

y 
ov
er
ni
gh
t. 

 H
ea

d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

(K
P
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f E

D
T
 o
pe

ra
tio
na

l 
pr
ot
oc
ol
s 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

Le
ad
 C
om

m
is
si
on
er
, H

oS
 

LA
C
 a
nd
 H
oS

 F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

ha
ve
 r
ev
ie
w
ed

 o
pe

ra
tio
na

l 
pr
ot
oc
ol
.  
 U
pd
at
ed

 d
ra
ft 

to
 b
e 
di
sc
us
se
d 
w
ith
 E
D
T
 

in
 A
ug
us
t 2
01
4.
   
 

O
nc
e 
pr
ot
oc
ol
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

ag
re
ed

, t
he

n 
ne

w
 

fu
nc
tio
na

lit
y 
ne

ed
s 
to
 b
e 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
w
ith
in
 

fr
am

ew
or
k.
  

M
ee

tin
g 
to
 b
e 
he

ld
 in
 

O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
4 
to
 fi
na
lis
e 

th
e 
pr
ot
oc
ol
.  

  

A
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
er
s 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

45
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
(P
G
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 w
ith
 Y
O
S
 a
nd

 p
ol
ic
e 

co
lle
ag
ue

s 
as
 to

 e
xp
ec
ta
tio
ns
 a
nd
 

pr
ac
tic
e 
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

Y
O
S
 C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g,
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 a
nd
 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss
ur
an

ce
 M
an
ag
er
 is
 

cu
rr
en

tly
 in
ve
st
ig
at
in
g 

is
su
es
  a

ro
un
d 
ov
er
ni
gh
t 

de
te
nt
io
n 
of
 y
ou

ng
 p
eo
pl
e 

w
or
k 
w
ith
 th

e 
W
es
t M

er
ci
a 

E
D
T
s.
 

A
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

Y
O
S
 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 

46
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
(P
G
) 

Id
en
tif
y 
pr
ov
id
er
s 
of
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 

ac
co
m
m
od

at
io
n 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

E
xp
lo
rin
g 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
’s
 e
xi
st
in
g 

“S
af
e 
B
as
e”
 c
on

tr
ac
t a
s 
a 

po
te
nt
ia
l m

od
el
 to
 fo

llo
w
, 

or
 a
s 
an
 o
pt
io
n 
th
e 
E
D
T
 

sh
ou

ld
 a
lre
ad
y 
ha

ve
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
.  

A
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
er
s 

72



  Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

47
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 
an

d 
H
ea

d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

(K
P
) 

R
ep

or
tin
g 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 to

 b
e 

di
sc
us
se
d 
an
d 
ag
re
ed
 w
ith
 p
ol
ic
e 

 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

C
as
es
 w
he

re
 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op
le
 a
re
 h
el
d 
in
 c
us
to
dy
 

ov
er
ni
gh
t a

re
 n
ow

 fl
ag
ge
d 

by
 th

e 
E
D
T
 d
ut
y 
m
an
ag
er
 

an
d 
th
e 
du
ty
 H
O
S
 is
 

co
nt
ac
te
d 
w
er
e 

ag
re
em

en
t/ 
ch
al
le
ng
e 
is
 

br
ou

gh
t a

ro
un
d 
th
e 
te
rm

s 
fo
r 
th
e 
yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on
 

be
in
g 
he

ld
 a
nd
 w
he

th
er
 o
r 

no
t t
he

y 
sh
ou
ld
 r
et
ur
n 
to
 

pl
ac
em

en
t. 
  

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

48
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

Lo
ok
ed

 
C
hi
ld
re
n 

D
ev
el
op

 c
le
ar
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ith
 p
ol
ic
e 

to
 tr
ou
bl
e 
sh
oo
t s
uc
h 
is
su
es
 lo
ca
lly
 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
de
fin
iti
on

 o
f ‘
se
cu
re
’. 
  

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

R
em

an
d 
P
ro
to
co
l h
as
 

be
en
 s
ha

re
d 
at
 H
O
S
 le
ve
l 

an
d 
w
ill
 n
ee

d 
to
 b
e 

pr
og
re
ss
ed

 th
ro
ug
h 

go
ve
rn
an

ce
. 

 P
et
er
 M
er
ry
 h
as
 c
om

pl
ie
d 

a 
ve
ry
 g
oo

d 
 r
ep
or
t 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
po

lic
e 

in
sp
ec
tio
n 
w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 lo
ok
 

at
 r
ec
og
ni
zi
ng
 o
ffe

nd
er
s 

un
de
r 
18

 a
s 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 

im
pr
ov
in
g 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

cu
st
od

y 
su
it 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

in
 H
er
ef
or
d.
  T

he
re
 is
 a
ls
o 

gr
ea

te
r 
cl
ar
ity
 a
ro
un

d 
th
e 

te
rm

 ‘s
ec
ur
e’
 a
nd

 h
ow

 th
is
 

is
 u
se
d.
  O

ng
oi
ng
 M
ee
tin
g 

he
ld
 J
an

 2
01
5 
– 
w
or
k 

re
qu
ire
d 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

w
ith
 th

e 
po

lic
e 

A
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

49
. 

  
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
 

D
ev
el
op

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep

or
t t
o 

m
on

ito
r 
an
d 
ev
al
ua
te
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
in
 

re
du

ci
ng
 fr
eq
ue

nc
y 
of
 u
se
 o
f 

cu
st
od

y 
in
ap
pr
op

ria
te
ly
. 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

W
or
k 
is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 in
 

pr
oc
es
s 
w
ith
 r
eg
ar
d 
to
 

cr
ea

tin
g 
an

 E
D
T
 c
on
ta
ct
 

ep
is
od
e 
w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 

ev
id
en

ce
 a
 r
an

ge
 o
f 

ac
tio
ns
 ta
ke
n 
by
 E
D
T
 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
w
he

th
er
 th
e 

ch
ild
 w
as
 d
et
ai
ne
d 
in
 

cu
st
od

y.
  P

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

A
 

H
S
C
B
 S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

Y
O
S
 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 

73



  Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

re
po

rt
 w
ill
 b
e 
pr
od

uc
ed
 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
go
 li
ve
 o
f t
he

 
ep

is
od
e 
at
 th
e 
en
d 
of
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

15
.  
  

E
D
T
 n
ow

 h
av
e 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 in
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 w
hi
ch
 is
 

pe
nd
in
g 
th
e 
bu

ild
 fo
r 
th
e 

ne
w
 e
pi
so
de
.  

50
. 

 2
8.
  

(7
3)
 

F
ul
ly
 u
til
is
e 
F
am

ily
 G
ro
up

 
C
on
fe
re
nc
es
 to
 in
fo
rm

 c
ar
e 

pl
an

ni
ng
, p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 w
he

re
 c
ar
e 

pr
oc
ee
di
ng
s 
ar
e 
be
in
g 

co
ns
id
er
ed
.  

H
ea

d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

(K
P
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 r
es
ou

rc
e 
F
G
C
 s
er
vi
ce
 

to
 e
ns
ur
e 
ro
bu

st
 r
es
po
ns
e 
to
 

re
qu
ire
m
en

ts
 o
f P

ub
lic
 L
aw

 O
ut
lin
e,
 

an
d 
ca
se
 la
w
 im

pl
ic
at
io
ns
.  
  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

A
ll 
ca
se
s 
th
at
 a
re
 

pr
es
en

te
d 
to
 L
eg
al
 

G
at
ew

ay
 (
ne

w
 n
am

e 
fo
r 

th
e 
m
ee
tin
g)
 n
ow

 h
av
e 
an

 
ac
tio
n 
to
 c
on

ve
ne

 a
 F
G
C
.  

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

51
. 

  
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
 

(M
G
) 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
on

 F
G
C
 

ac
tiv
ity
 a
nd

 o
ut
co
m
es
 d
ev
el
op

ed
.  
  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

A
 s
pe

ci
fic
 m
od
ul
e 
fo
r 
F
C
G
 

is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 u
nd

er
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t. 
F
G
C
 

se
rv
ic
e 
in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 in
to
 

re
vi
ew

 a
nd

 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

of
 d
ire
ct
 w
or
k 
se
rv
ic
es
 in
 

C
H
IP
P
 

A
 

C
H
IP
P
 P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 

52
. 

 2
9.
  

(5
1 
, 

14
7)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 d
iv
er
si
ty
 is
su
es
 a
nd

 
th
e 
et
hn
ic
 a
nd
 c
ul
tu
ra
l i
de

nt
ity
 o
f 

ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
th
ei
r 
fa
m
ili
es
 a
re
 

th
or
ou

gh
ly
 a
ss
es
se
d 
an
d 

ad
dr
es
se
d.
   

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

C
ou

nc
il 
an
d 
pa
rt
ne

rs
hi
p 
w
id
e 

st
ra
te
gy
 to

 b
e 
de

ve
lo
pe
d 
w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 

in
cl
ud

e 
ac
tio
ns
 a
nd
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
an

d 
ev
al
ua

tio
n 
m
ec
ha

ni
sm

s.
   
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

A
 m
ee

tin
g 
ha
s 
ta
ke
n 

pl
ac
e 
w
ith
 th

e 
H
ea
d 
of
 

A
dd

iti
on
al
 N
ee
ds
.  
  

A
n 
au
di
t h
as
 b
ee
n 

re
qu
es
te
d 
w
hi
ch
 lo
ok
s 
at
 

go
od

 a
nd
 b
ad

 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
in
 

co
nn
ec
tio
n 
w
ith
 d
iv
er
si
ty
 

H
ea

d 
of
 C
W
D
 a
nd
 

P
ra
ct
ic
e 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t w

ill
 

lia
is
e 
w
ith
 th

e 
ch
ild
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
’s
 c
on

su
lta
nt
 

to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th

is
 m
at
te
r 

is
 c
on

ta
in
ed

 w
ith
in
 th
e 

ne
w
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un
g 

G
 

C
ab

in
et
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou
ng
 P
eo

pl
e’
s 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 

 

74



  Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

pe
op
le
’s
 p
la
n 

53
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

E
ng
ag
e 
w
ith
 E
qu
al
iti
es
 M
an

ag
er
 to
 

en
su
re
 th
at
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
di
ve
rs
ity
 

is
su
es
 a
re
 fu
lly
 e
m
be
dd
ed

 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
co
un

ci
l’s
 d
iv
er
si
ty
 s
tr
at
eg
y.
  

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 a
s 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e 

en
co
m
pa
ss
ed
 w
ith
 th

e 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
’s
 p
la
n.
  

G
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 

54
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

D
ev
el
op

 e
nh
an

ce
d 
re
po
rt
in
g 
an

d 
Q
A
 o
f a

ss
es
sm

en
ts
 to
 e
va
lu
at
e 

qu
al
ity
 o
f a

w
ar
en

es
s 
of
 d
iv
er
si
ty
 

is
su
es
 to
 in
fo
rm

 tr
ai
ni
ng
 n
ee

ds
.  
  

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

A
n 
au
di
t w

ill
 ta

ke
 p
la
ce
 to

 
id
en

tif
y 
go
od

 a
nd

 b
ad
 

pr
ac
tic
e.
   
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 th

en
 

in
fo
rm

 tr
ai
ni
ng
 n
ee
ds
 fo
r 

sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 a
nd

 fa
m
ily
 

su
pp
or
t. 
 

G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

55
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

Id
en
tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 g
oo

d 
pr
ac
tic
e 

ex
am

pl
es
 w
he

re
 d
iv
er
si
ty
 is
su
es
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
th
or
ou
gh
ly
 c
on

si
de

re
d.
   

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

T
he
 a
ud

it 
of
 c
as
es
 w
ill
 

pr
ov
id
e 
ex
am

pl
es
 o
f g
oo

d 
pr
ac
tic
e.
  

G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 
 

56
. 

30
.  

 

Im
pl
em

en
t a
nd
 m
on

ito
r 
a 
ro
bu
st
 

sy
st
em

 fo
r 
m
ak
in
g 
tim

el
y 

de
ci
si
on

s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
er
e 
ar
e 
no

 
de

la
ys
 in
 a
cc
om

m
od
at
in
g 

ch
ild
re
n 
w
he

n 
th
ey
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 

lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r.
  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 
an

d 
H
ea

d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

(K
P
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f p

ro
ce
ss
es
 fo
r 
de

ci
si
on
 

m
ak
in
g 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
re
so
ur
ce
 p
an
el
, 

le
ga
l p
la
nn

in
g 
an
d 
C
N
S
. 

 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

Le
ga
l g
at
ew

ay
 te

rm
s 
ha
ve
 

be
en
 r
ev
ie
w
ed

 a
nd

 
im
pl
em

en
te
d.
 

C
N
S
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
vi
ew

ed
 

an
d 
 s
ig
ne

d 
of
f N

ov
 2
01
4.
 

T
O
R
 fo
r 
re
so
ur
ce
 p
an

el
/ 

pl
ac
em

en
t p
an

el
 h
as
 n
ow

 
be

en
 u
pd
at
ed

 a
nd
 

ci
rc
ul
at
ed

 to
 s
ta
ff 
an

d 
ag
re
em

en
t t
o 

ac
co
m
m
od

at
e 
a 
ch
ild
 is
 

no
w
 b
ei
ng
 r
ai
se
d 
at
 

as
si
st
an

t d
ire
ct
or
 le
ve
l 

an
d 
si
gn
ed
 o
ff 
w
he

n 
ap

pr
op
ria
te
.  
T
he
 

pl
ac
em

en
t a

gr
ee
m
en
t 

pr
oc
es
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
ed
 o
ut
 to
 a
ll 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 T
ea
m
  

75



  Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

st
af
f 

57
. 

 
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 
 

A
s 
pa

rt
 o
f r
ev
ie
w
, r
ep

or
tin
g 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 to
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe

d 
to
 

ev
id
en

ce
 ti
m
el
in
es
s 
of
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 

an
d 
es
ca
la
tio
n 
pr
oc
es
s 
if 
de

la
y 
is
 

id
en

tif
ie
d.
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

W
or
k 
on
 th
e 
 lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
w
or
kf
lo
w
 is
 n
ot
 

ye
t i
n 
FW

i. 

T
he
 p
er
m
an
en
ce
 p
ro
ce
ss
 

fo
r 
LA

C
 is
 b
ei
ng
 lo
ok
ed
 

w
ith
in
 C
H
IP
P
. 

A
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

58
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

C
on

tin
ue
d 
jo
in
t w

or
ki
ng
 b
et
w
ee

n 
E
dg
e 
of
 C
ar
e 
an
d 
re
so
ur
ce
 p
an
el
.  

D
ire
ct
 w
or
k 
se
rv
ic
e 
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t t
o 

en
su
re
 d
ed
ic
at
ed
 e
dg
e 
of
 c
ar
e 

re
sp
on

se
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
al
l a
ct
io
ns
 h
av
e 

be
en
 ta

ke
n 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 th
e 
ch
ild
 

re
m
ai
ni
ng
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
fa
m
ily
.  
  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

A
 r
ep

re
se
nt
at
iv
e 
fr
om

 
fa
m
ily
 s
up

po
rt
 h
as
 n
ow

 
be

en
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
an
d 
w
ill
 

pr
es
en

t a
 r
ep
or
t a
t 

re
so
ur
ce
 p
an
el
 in
 o
rd
er
 to

 
m
on

ito
r 
yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 o
n 

th
e 
ed

ge
 o
f c
ar
e.
 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

C
H
IP
P
 P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 

59
. 

 3
1.
  

(7
8)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 p
la
ns
 fo

r 
pe

rm
an

en
cy
 a
re
 m
ad

e 
an

d 
cl
ea

rly
 r
ec
or
de

d 
at
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

se
co
nd
 lo
ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
re
vi
ew

 in
 

lin
e 
w
ith
 n
at
io
na
l g
ui
da
nc
e.
  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 
 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t a
nd

 r
ol
l o
ut
 o
f 

pe
rm

an
en
cy
 p
ol
ic
y 
an

d 
its
 

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n.
   
  

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

P
er
m
an
en
ce
 p
ol
ic
y 
is
 in
 

dr
af
t b
ut
 h
as
 to
 b
e 
ag
re
ed

 
by
 a
 m

ul
ti-
ag
en

cy
 g
ro
up

 
be
fo
re
 b
ei
ng
 s
ig
ne

d 
of
f. 
 

T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
lo
ok
ed

 a
t a
s 

pa
rt
 o
f C

H
IP
P
. 

 

A
 

P
ol
ic
y 
ap

pr
ov
al
:  
C
ab

in
et
/C
ab

in
et
 

M
em

be
r 
 

60
. 

  
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
  

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m
ea

su
re
m
en
t r
ep
or
ts
 

to
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe

d 
to
 e
vi
de

nc
e 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

D
ue

 to
 c
ap
ac
ity
 is
su
es
 

an
d 
co
m
pe

tin
g 
pr
io
rit
ie
s,
 

th
e 
LA

C
 m
od
ul
e 
w
ill
 g
o 

liv
e 
at
 th

e 
en

d 
of
 J
an

ua
ry
 

20
15
 

A
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 to
 b
e 
re
po
rt
ed

 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
br
oa

de
r 
pe

rf
or
m
an
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

61
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 
 

S
ec
on
dm

en
t o
f S

M
 in
to
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

w
ith
 s
pe

ci
al
is
t e

xp
er
tis
e 
in
 L
A
C
 w
ill
 

le
ad

 o
n 
se
lf-
as
se
ss
m
en
t a

ga
in
st
 

C
ar
e 
P
la
nn
in
g 
re
gu
la
tio
ns
 a
nd

 L
A
C
 

R
ev
ie
w
 P
ro
ce
ss
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

ag
en

da
. 

 

A
ug
us
t 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

 

62
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

R
ev
is
ed

 L
A
C
R
 R
ec
or
ds
 d
ra
fte

d 
an

d 
du

e 
to
 b
e 
tr
ia
le
d 
– 
th
es
e 
gi
ve
 

S
ep

te
m
be

D
oc
um

en
ts
 c
om

pl
et
ed

 
G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

76



  Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

(J
R
) 
 

gr
ea

te
r 
fo
cu
s 
to
 p
er
m
an
en

ce
 

pl
an

ni
ng
 a
nd

 b
et
te
r 
ev
id
en

ce
 Q
A
 

by
 IR

O
s 

r 
20

14
 

an
d 
ar
e 
be
in
g 
tr
ia
le
d.
  

W
or
k 
on
 th
e 
LA

C
 m
od
ul
e 

w
ill
 b
e 
co
m
pl
et
ed

 b
y 
th
e 

en
d 
of
 J
an

ua
ry
 2
01

5 

63
. 

 3
2.
  

(8
1)
 

D
ev
el
op

 s
pe

ci
fic
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t 

m
et
ho

ds
 to

 in
fo
rm

 d
ec
is
io
ns
 

ab
ou
t w

he
th
er
 s
ib
lin
gs
 s
ho

ul
d 
be

 
pe

rm
an

en
tly
 p
la
ce
d 
to
ge
th
er
 o
r 

ap
ar
t. 
R
ec
or
d 
as
se
ss
m
en
ts
 a
nd

 
de

ci
si
on

s 
in
 d
et
ai
l t
o 
re
fle
ct
 th
e 

si
gn
ifi
ca
nc
e 
of
 th
e 
de

ci
si
on

 b
ei
ng
 

m
ad
e.
  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

R
ef
re
sh
 g
ui
da
nc
e 
do

cu
m
en
ta
tio
n 

an
d 
sh
ar
e 
be

st
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
ex
am

pl
es
 

ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
   
 

 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

S
ib
lin
g 
as
se
ss
m
en

ts
 a
re
 

be
in
g 
co
m
pl
et
ed

 b
y 
th
e 

ad
va
nc
ed

 p
ra
ct
iti
on
er
 

se
rv
ic
e.
  C

le
ar
 m

at
ch
in
g 

do
cu
m
en
t a

lre
ad

y 
be

in
g 

us
ed

 to
 m
at
ch
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
to
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 p
la
ce
m
en
ts
. 

G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

64
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
Q
A
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 in
co
rp
or
at
e 

an
al
ys
is
 o
f i
m
pa

ct
 o
f u
se
 o
f t
hi
s 

gu
id
an

ce
 in
 im

pr
ov
in
g 
ou

tc
om

es
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  
 A
n 
au
di
t w

ill
 

be
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
n 
in
 

O
ct
ob
er
/N
ov
em

be
r 
to
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
th
e 
im
pa

ct
 o
f 

us
e 
of
 th
e 
gu
id
an
ce
.  
 D
ue

 
to
 c
ap
ac
ity
 is
su
es
, t
hi
s 

au
di
t h
as
 n
ot
 y
et
 

co
m
m
en
ce
d.
  

A
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
F
am

ily
 S
up

po
rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce
 

65
. 

 3
3.
  

(7
9)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 r
eg
ul
ar
 a
na
ly
si
s 
an

d 
re
po

rt
in
g 
fr
om

 th
e 
ad
vo
ca
cy
 

se
rv
ic
e 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
n 
ac
cu
ra
te
 

ac
co
un
t o
f e
m
er
gi
ng
 th
em

es
.  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
(P
G
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f t
he

 c
on

tr
ac
t t
o 
en
su
re
 

an
al
ys
is
 o
f i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
ga
th
er
ed

 
in
fo
rm

s 
fu
tu
re
 c
om

m
is
si
on

in
g,
 g
oo

d 
pr
ac
tic
e 
an
d 
m
os
t e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
m
ea

ns
 

of
 s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y 

A
gr
ee

 o
ut
co
m
es
 fo
r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
th
at
 

de
m
on

st
ra
te
 th
e 
di
ffe

re
nc
e 

ad
vo
ca
cy
 h
as
 m
ad
e 
to
 th

e 
ex
pe

rie
nc
e 
of
 th
e 
ch
ild
 

 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

C
on

tr
ac
t i
s 
fo
rm

al
ly
 

m
on

ito
re
d 
on

 a
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 

ba
si
s 
w
ith
 th

e 
pr
ov
id
er
. 

C
on

tin
uo
us
 d
is
cu
ss
io
ns
 

ab
ou
t o
pe

ra
tio
na

l a
sp
ec
ts
, 

an
d 
th
em

es
 e
m
er
gi
ng
 to

 
im
pr
ov
e 
se
rv
ic
es
. 

O
ut
co
m
e 
m
ea

su
re
s 
ha
ve
 

no
w
 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo
pe
d 

w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 e
vi
de

nc
e 

di
ffe

re
nc
e 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
ha

s 
m
ad
e 
– 
re
po

rt
in
g 
on

 th
es
e 

is
 s
til
l i
n 
its
 in
fa
nc
y 
an
d 

th
e 
fa
ct
 it
 is
 o
nl
y 
on

 a
 

qu
ar
te
rly
 b
as
is
   
 

 

A
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
  

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

77



  Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

66
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
(P
G
) 

S
pe

ci
fic
 d
ev
el
op

m
en

ts
 o
f a

dv
oc
ac
y 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fo
r 
yo
un
ge
r 
ch
ild
re
n 

an
d 
C
W
D
 a
s 
pa

rt
 o
f c
on
tr
ac
t 

re
fr
es
h.
   
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

T
he
 c
on
tr
ac
t h
as
 b
ee
n 

re
vi
ew

ed
 a
nd

 p
ro
vi
si
on

 fo
r 

yo
un

ge
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 

C
W
D
 is
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
ex
is
tin
g 

co
nt
ra
ct
; t
hi
s 
ha

s 
be

en
 

ad
dr
es
se
d 
w
ith
 th
e 

pr
ov
id
er
 a
nd

 a
w
ar
en

es
s 

no
w
 n
ee

ds
 to
 h
ap
pe
n 
w
ith
 

in
te
rn
al
 s
ta
ff 
to
 m
ak
e 

re
fe
rr
al
s 

A
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

67
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 

A
na

ly
si
s 
of
 r
es
ou

rc
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 

ac
hi
ev
e 
ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns
 o
f v
oi
ce
 o
f 

ch
ild
 s
tr
at
eg
y 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

T
en
de

r 
fo
r 
th
is
 s
er
vi
ce
 

cl
os
ed

 e
ar
ly
 J
an

ua
ry
 2
01

5 
w
ith
 a
im
 to

 a
w
ar
d 
co
nt
ra
ct
 

in
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
5.
   

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

68
. 

 3
4.
  

 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
vi
rt
ua

l s
ch
oo

l 
de

ve
lo
ps
 a
nd

 im
pl
em

en
ts
 a
 

st
ra
te
gy
 to

 n
ar
ro
w
 th

e 
ga
p 
in
 

at
ta
in
m
en
t b
et
w
ee

n 
lo
ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
al
l o
th
er
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
in
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
.  

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

In
cr
ea

se
 o
ur
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f t
he
 

ed
uc
at
io
na
l n
ee
ds
 o
f t
he

 c
ur
re
nt
 

LA
C
 c
oh
or
t t
o 
id
en
tif
y 
ba

rr
ie
rs
 to

 
le
ar
ni
ng
 a
nd
  t
o 
in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 

st
re
ng
th
s 
an
d 
w
ea

kn
es
se
s 
in
 c
or
e 

cu
rr
ic
ul
um

 s
ub
je
ct
s.
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

  

A
na

ly
si
s 
se
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 

E
du

ca
tio
n 
Li
ai
so
n 
fo
r 
LA

C
 

se
rv
ic
e 
pl
an

ne
d 
fo
r 
12

th
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 

S
es
si
on

 h
el
d 
an
d 
an
al
ys
is
 

sh
ee

t b
ei
ng
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 b
y 

te
am

 m
em

be
rs
 

A
na

ly
si
s 
an

d 
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t  

se
ss
io
n 
pl
an

ne
d 
fo
r 
27
 

N
ov
em

be
r 
w
ith
 S
en

io
r 

LA
C
 E
du
ca
tio
n 
O
ffi
ce
r 

In
te
rv
en

tio
ns
 b
ei
ng
 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
to
 s
up
po

rt
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f e

m
ot
io
na

l 
he

al
th
 o
f p

rim
ar
y 
ag
ed

 
lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n.
 T
ria
l 

de
liv
er
y 
du

rin
g 
S
pr
in
g 

T
er
m
 2
01

5.
 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

69
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

D
ev
el
op

 a
 c
or
e 
da
ta
 p
ac
ka
ge
 fo

r 
E
du

ca
tio
n 
Li
ai
so
n 
fo
r 
Lo
ok
ed
 A
fte

r 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 u
nd
er
st
an
d 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

W
ill
 c
om

e 
ou
t o
f s
es
si
on
 

on
 2
7 
N
ov
em

be
r.
 

D
at
a 
ga
th
er
in
g 
sh
ee
t 

G
 

 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

78



  Pa
ge

 2
1 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

th
e 
ba

rr
ie
rs
 to

 le
ar
ni
ng
 o
f t
he

 
in
di
vi
du

al
 c
hi
ld
 c
om

in
g 
in
 to

 th
e 

ca
re
 s
ys
te
m
 is
 g
at
he

re
d 
an
d 
us
ed

 
to
 d
ev
el
op

 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 p
ac
ka
ge
s 
of
 

su
pp
or
t. 

 

de
vi
se
d,
 b
ei
ng
 tr
ia
lle
d 
w
ith
 

ne
w
 c
as
es
. 

70
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

Id
en
tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 c
rit
ic
al
 fr
ie
nd
 to
 a
ct
 

as
 c
ha

lle
ng
e 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
ro
bu

st
 

st
ra
te
gy
.  
  

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

T
he
 S
ch
oo

l I
m
pr
ov
em

en
t 

A
dv
is
or
 w
ill
 a
ct
 a
s 
a 

cr
iti
ca
l f
rie
nd
.  

R
eg
ul
ar
 s
er
ie
s 
of
 

m
ee
tin
gs
 e
st
ab
lis
he

d 
an
d 

st
ar
te
d.
 

R
ol
e 
of
 c
rit
ic
al
 fr
ie
nd

 to
 b
e 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
fo
rm

al
ly
 

pr
ov
id
e 
ag
en

da
 fo

r 
m
ee
tin
gs
. 

R
ol
e 
be

in
g 
de
ve
lo
pe

d 
in
 

m
ee
tin
g 
w
ith
 C
rit
ic
al
 

F
rie
nd

. 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

71
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

C
on

du
ct
  r
ev
ie
w
 o
f E

LL
 S
er
vi
ce
 

w
or
ki
ng

 p
ra
ct
ic
es
 a
nd
 w
or
kl
oa

ds
, 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
ex
pl
or
at
io
n 
of
 e
xt
en

di
ng
 

re
m
it 
of
 V
irt
ua
l S

ch
oo

l f
ro
m
 0
 –
 2
5.
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

R
ev
ie
w
 u
nd

er
w
ay
S
ec
on

d 
dr
af
t c
om

pl
et
ed
 a
nd

 w
ith
 

H
ea

d 
of
 S
er
vi
ce
 

A
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

72
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

D
ev
el
op

 IC
T
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
to
 a
llo
w
 

cl
os
er
 tr
ac
ki
ng
 o
f p

ro
gr
es
s 
an
d 

at
te
nd

an
ce
. 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

Lo
ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C
al
l 

en
ga
ge
d 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 d
at
a 

fo
r 
th
os
e 
pl
ac
ed
 o
ut
 o
f 

co
un

ty
. S

et
 u
p 
m
ee
tin
g 

ar
ra
ng
ed

 fo
r 
w
ee

k 
co
m
m
en
ci
ng
 1
4t
h  

S
ep

te
m
be

r 

Lo
ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C
al
l n
ow

 
co
lle
ct
in
g 
O
ut
 C
ou
nt
y 

D
at
a 
he
ld
 w
ith
 e
G
ov
 

D
ig
ita
l t
o 
lo
ok
 e
le
ct
ro
ni
c 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

79



  Pa
ge

 2
2 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

P
E
P
s 
as
 a
 w
ay
 o
f 

ga
th
er
in
g 
da

ta
.. 

Lo
ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C
al
l n
ow

 
co
lle
ct
in
g 
in
 c
ou
nt
y 
da

ta
. 

T
hi
s 
no

w
 in
cl
ud

es
 

co
lle
ct
io
n 
of
 a
tta

in
m
en

t 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
 

eP
E
P
 r
ec
om

m
en

da
tio
n 
in
 

re
vi
ew

 p
ap

er
. 

73
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

D
ev
el
op

 in
te
rv
en

tio
n 
st
ra
te
gi
es
 a
t 

co
un

ty
, s
ch
oo

l, 
gr
ou

p 
an

d 
in
di
vi
du

al
 le
ve
l 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

T
o 
fo
llo
w
 fr
om

 s
es
si
on

 o
n 

12
th
 S
ep
te
m
be

r.
 

T
ea
m
 p
ro
m
ot
in
g 

st
ra
te
gi
es
 a
nd
 m
ak
in
g 
us
e 

of
 E
du
ca
tio
n 
E
nd
ow

m
en

t 
F
un

d 
w
eb

si
te
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
 

E
m
ot
io
na
l h
ea
lth
 

in
te
rv
en

tio
n 
in
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t. 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

74
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

U
se
 o
f E

P
 ti
m
e,
 c
om

m
is
si
on

ed
 w
ith
 

P
up

il 
P
re
m
iu
m
 m
on
ey
 to

 h
el
p 
w
ith
 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g 
an

d 
pl
an
ni
ng
 fo

r 
th
os
e 
LA

C
 w
ith
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 

ch
al
le
ng
in
g 
ne

ed
s 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

N
o 
ap
pl
ic
an

ts
 a
nd
 a
 

fu
rt
he

r 
ad

ve
rt
 p
la
ce
d.
 

T
w
o 
as
se
ss
m
en
ts
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 b
y 
cu
rr
en

t 
te
am

 m
em

be
rs
. 

P
os
t r
em

ai
ns
 v
ac
an

t. 

A
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

75
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

D
ev
el
op

 in
te
rv
en

tio
n 
st
ra
te
gi
es
 a
t 

co
un

ty
, s
ch
oo

l, 
gr
ou

p 
an

d 
in
di
vi
du

al
 le
ve
l 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

In
iti
al
 tr
aw

l o
f s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 

re
co
m
m
en
de
d 
by
 te
am

 
pl
an

ne
d 
fo
r 
se
ss
io
n 
on
 

12
th
 S
ep
te
m
be

r.
 

S
es
si
on

 h
el
d,
 fo

llo
w
 u
p 
to
 

be
 h
el
d 
w
ith
 D
es
ig
na

te
d 

T
ea
ch
er
s 
du

rin
g 

N
ov
em

be
r 
ne
tw
or
k 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

80



  Pa
ge

 2
3 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

m
ee
tin
g 
(p
la
nn
ed

 fo
r 
12
 

N
ov
em

be
r)
 

D
es
ig
na

te
d 
te
ac
he

rs
 

co
nf
er
en
ce
 p
la
nn
ed
 fo

r 
27

 
M
ar
ch
, w

ill
 lo
ok
 a
t c
lo
si
ng
 

th
e 
ga
p.
 

76
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

D
ev
el
op

 d
at
a 
on
 c
om

pa
ra
tiv
e 

ef
fe
ct
iv
en

es
s 
of
 in
te
rv
en

tio
ns
 b
y 

de
m
on

st
ra
tin
g 
pr
og
re
ss
 to

 s
up
po
rt
 

de
ci
si
on

 m
ak
in
g 
in
 c
ho
ic
e 
of
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 in
te
rv
en

tio
ns
 fo

r 
LA

C
. 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

D
ev
el
op

in
g 
us
in
g 

E
du

ca
tio
n 
E
nd
ow

m
en

t 
F
un

d 
w
eb

si
te
. 

D
is
cu
ss
ed

 a
t d
es
ig
na
te
d 

te
ac
he
r 
m
ee

tin
g 
in
 

D
ec
em

be
r,
 w
ill
 b
e 
pa

rt
 o
f 

th
e 
co
nf
er
en

ce
 in
 M
ar
ch
. 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

77
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

D
em

on
st
ra
te
 g
oo

d 
pr
og
re
ss
 fo

r 
al
l 

an
d 
ac
ce
le
ra
te
d 
pr
og
re
ss
 fo

r 
th
e 

m
aj
or
ity
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

15
 

Y
ea

r 
en

d 
da

ta
 r
eq
ui
re
d 

A
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

78
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

A
ss
es
s 
im
m
ed
ia
te
 im

pa
ct
 o
f 

Le
tte
rb
ox
 C
lu
b 
on
 in
iti
al
 c
oh

or
t 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

P
ro
je
ct
 to
 b
e 
of
fe
re
d 
to
 

T
ra
in
ee

 E
du

ca
tio
na
l 

P
sy
ch
ol
og
is
t w

he
n 
sh
e 

st
ar
ts
. 

T
ra
in
ee

 E
P
 is
 d
ev
el
op

in
g 

ev
al
ua

tio
n 
m
et
ho
do

lo
gy
. 

E
va
lu
at
io
n 
un

de
rw
ay
. 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

79
. 

 3
5.
  

(8
7,
 8
8,
 

89
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
lo
ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 m
ak
e 

co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 g
oo

d 
or
 b
et
te
r 

pr
og
re
ss
 a
t e

ve
ry
 s
ta
ge
 o
f t
he

ir 
ed

uc
at
io
n 
an
d 
cl
os
e 
th
e 

at
ta
in
m
en
t g
ap
 b
et
w
ee

n 
lo
ok
ed

 
af
te
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
al
l c
hi
ld
re
n 
in
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
.  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 (
S
L)
 

A
na

ly
se
 c
ur
re
nt
 L
A
C
 c
oh

or
t t
o 

id
en

tif
y 
ba

rr
ie
rs
 to

 le
ar
ni
ng
 a
nd

 to
 

in
cl
ud

e 
th
e 
st
re
ng
th
s 
an
d 

w
ea

kn
es
se
s 
in
 c
or
e 
cu
rr
ic
ul
um

 
su
bj
ec
ts
. 

 
A
na

ly
si
s 
se
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 

E
du

ca
tio
n 
Li
ai
so
n 
fo
r 
LA

C
 

se
rv
ic
e 
pl
an

ne
d 
fo
r 
12

th
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r.
 

A
s 
ab
ov
e 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

80
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l 
A
nn

ua
l r
ep
or
t t
o 
C
or
po
ra
te
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

R
ep

or
t p

re
pa

re
d.
 

G
 

N
ov
em

be
r 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
ar
en

tin
g 

81



  Pa
ge

 2
4 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

H
ea

dt
ea

ch
er
 

P
ar
en

tin
g 
P
an
el
 o
n 
LA

C
 a
tta

in
m
en
t 

 

20
14
 

P
an

el
 

81
. 

  
 

V
irt
ua

l H
ea
d 

T
ea
ch
er
 

D
ev
el
op

 te
rm

ly
 r
ep

or
t f
or
 L
oo

ke
d 

af
te
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
P
la
ce
m
en
t O

pe
ra
tio
n 

G
ro
up

 (
LA

C
P
O
G
) 
to
 s
ho

w
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

ag
ai
n 
ke
y 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
ta
rg
et
s 
an

d 
id
en

tif
yi
ng
 k
ey
 c
as
es
 c
au

si
ng
 

co
nc
er
n 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

R
ep

or
t p

re
pa

re
d 
an
d 

up
da
te
d 
on
 a
 m
on
th
ly
 

ba
si
s.
 

G
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

82
. 

 3
6.
  

E
ns
ur
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
jo
in
t w

or
ki
ng

 
w
ith
 th

e 
po

lic
e 
an
d 
yo
ut
h 

of
fe
nd

in
g 
se
rv
ic
es
 to

 r
ou

tin
el
y 

re
co
rd
 a
nd

 a
na

ly
se
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

ab
ou
t l
oo

ke
d 
af
te
r 
ch
ild
re
n 

en
ga
ge
d 
in
 o
ffe

nd
in
g 
be
ha

vi
ou

r.
  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

A
ud

it 
of
 c
oh
or
t o
f y
ou

ng
 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith
 h
is
to
ry
 o
f o

ffe
nd
in
g 
an

d 
re
of
fe
nd

in
g.
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

T
hi
s 
ta
sk
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
st
ar
te
d 

bu
t i
s 
st
ill
 o
ng
oi
ng
.  

O
ut
st
an
di
ng
 ta
sk
 li
nk
ed
 to

 
w
or
k 
be

in
g 
co
m
pl
et
ed

 
w
ith
in
 C
Y
P
P
. 

A
 

Y
O
S
 B
oa

rd
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

83
. 

  
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io

n 
M
an

ag
er
 

(P
G
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f r
ec
or
di
ng
 a
nd
 a
na
ly
si
s 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
ro
bu

st
 a
nd

 
re
gu
la
r 
re
po

rt
in
g 
an
d 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 

is
su
es
 is
 in
 p
la
ce
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 a
nd
 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 
M
an
ag
er
 

to
 li
ai
se
 w
ith
 th

e 
po

lic
e 

an
d 
Y
O
S
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
er
e 

ar
e 
ro
bu
st
 r
ep
or
tin
g 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 in
 p
la
ce
.  
 

T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
lin
ke
d 
to
 th
e 

re
vi
ew

 o
f t
he

 L
A
C
 m
od
ul
e 

w
ith
in
 F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 w
hi
ch
 

co
m
m
en
ce
d 
in
 A
ug
us
t. 
  

T
hi
s 
w
ill
 n
ow

 b
e 
liv
e 
as
 

fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry
 2
01

5.
  

 

A
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

84
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 
 

S
co
pi
ng
 o
f P

re
ve
nt
 a
nd
 d
et
er
 w
or
k 

w
ith
 L
A
C
 y
ou

ng
 p
eo

pl
e 
11

+ 
O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

T
hi
s 
is
 b
ei
ng
 lo
ok
ed

 a
t a
s 

pa
rt
 o
f i
nt
eg
ra
te
d 
yo
ut
h 

ap
pr
oa
ch
.  
Jo
in
t m

ee
tin
gs
 

ha
ve
 ta

ke
n 
pl
ac
e 
be
tw
ee

n 
Y
O
S
, 1

6+
 a
nd

 y
ou

th
 

co
nt
ra
ct
s.
 

A
 

Y
O
S
 B
oa

rd
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

82



  Pa
ge

 2
5 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

85
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t o
f  
N
or
th
um

be
rla
nd
 

R
is
k 
M
od

el
. 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

P
ol
ic
y 
an

d 
te
rm

s 
of
 

re
fe
re
nc
e 
no

w
 a
gr
ee

d.
  

N
ee

d 
to
 a
gr
ee

 p
an
el
 

co
m
po
si
tio
n 
an
d 

fr
eq
ue
nc
y 
of
 m
ee

tin
gs
.  

C
on

si
de

ra
tio
n 
be

in
g 
gi
ve
n 

to
 th
e 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
C
S
E
 g
ro
up

 
he

ar
in
g 
th
es
e 
ca
se
s 
gi
ve
n 

th
e 
ne

ed
 fo
r 
se
ni
or
 o
ffi
ce
r 

ou
ts
ig
ht
 a
nd

 a
gr
ee

m
en
t t
o 

ac
tio
ns
. 

D
ra
ft 
pl
an
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

co
m
pi
le
d 
by
 A
ng
el
a 

R
ob

in
so
n 
an
d 
sh
ar
ed

 w
ith
 

H
S
C
B
. 

A
 

Y
O
S
 B
oa

rd
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

86
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t o
f I
nt
eg
ra
te
d 
yo
ut
h 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 w
ith
 Y
O
S
/ 1
6+

/ Y
ou

th
 

C
on

tr
ac
t/P

ol
ic
e/
 H
ea
lth
. 

 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

O
ut
st
an
di
ng
 ta
sk
.  
A
ng
el
a 

R
ob

in
so
n 
ha

s 
dr
af
te
d 
a 

pr
op

os
al
 b
ut
 th

is
 is
 

su
bj
ec
t t
o 
fu
rt
he

r 
di
sc
us
si
on

 w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

an
d 
is
 li
nk
ed

 to
 w
or
k 

be
in
g 
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
w
ith
in
 

C
H
IP
P
 

A
 

C
H
IP
P
 P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
&
 Y
ou
ng
 P
eo
pl
e’
s 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 

C
ab

in
et
 

87
. 

 3
7.
  

(9
3)
 

D
ev
el
op

 a
nd
 im

pl
em

en
t w

or
ki
ng
 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l C

hi
ld
 

an
d 
A
do

le
sc
en
t M

en
ta
l H

ea
lth
 

S
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
vi
de

rs
 to

 e
na
bl
e 

be
tte
r 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
or
 

lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n.
  

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
: 

E
du

ca
tio
n 
&
 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
(C
B
) 

R
ef
re
sh
 o
f C

A
M
H
S
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
hi
ch
 

w
ill
 th

en
 fe
ed

 in
to
 w
id
er
 

re
co
m
m
is
si
on

in
g 
of
 m
en

ta
l h
ea

lth
 

se
rv
ic
es
.  
S
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ill
 c
on

ta
in
 

ac
tio
ns
 fo
r 
12
 m
on

th
s 
to
 im

pr
ov
e 

em
ot
io
na
l h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 w
el
lb
ei
ng
  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

E
m
ot
io
na
l h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 

w
el
lb
ei
ng
 s
tr
at
eg

y 
ag
re
ed

 
at
 C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e’
s 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 O
ct
 

20
14
, i
m
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
to
 

be
 o
ve
rs
ee
n 
th
ro
ug
h 

st
ee

rin
g 
gr
ou

p.
  

H
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 a
t h
ea
lth
 a
nd

 
w
el
lb
ei
ng
 b
oa

rd
 N
ov
 

20
14
. 

R
ev
ie
w
 m

ee
tin
g 
ta
ki
ng
 

pl
ac
e 
w
/c
 1
9 
Ja
n 
20

15
 

A
 

C
ab

in
et
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou
ng
 P
eo

pl
e’
s 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 p
ro
vi
de

 m
on

ito
rin
g 
 

H
ea

lth
 &
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 

83



  Pa
ge

 2
6 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

88
. 

  
 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
: 

E
du

ca
tio
n 
&
 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
(C
B
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
C
A
M
H
S
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
in
cl
ud

es
 

ea
rly
 y
ea

rs
 c
om

po
ne
nt
  

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

N
H
S
 E
ng
la
nd

 A
rd
en
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 a
nd
 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 h
as
 

en
su
re
d 
th
at
 e
m
ot
io
na
l 

w
el
lb
ei
ng
 a
lre
ad

y 
 fo

rm
s 

pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 c
on
tr
ac
tu
al
 

re
qu
ire
m
en

ts
 o
f t
he
 h
ea
lth
 

vi
si
tin
g 
se
rv
ic
e 

sp
ec
ifi
ca
tio
n.
 In
 th

is
 w
ay
 

w
or
k 
on

 th
e 
0 
– 
2 
ye
ar
s 

in
iti
at
iv
e 
fo
rm

s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
ie
r 

1 
un

iv
er
sa
l o
ffe

rin
g 
an
d 

ho
pe
s 
to
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
fu
tu
re
 

ge
ne

ra
tio
ns
 d
ev
el
op
m
en

t 
of
 m
en

ta
l h
ea

lth
 p
ro
bl
em

s 
 

G
 

C
ab

in
et
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou
ng
 P
eo

pl
e’
s 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 p
ro
vi
de

 m
on

ito
rin
g 
 

H
ea

lth
 &
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 

89
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
re
la
tio
ns
hi
p 
be
tw
ee

n 
C
A
M
H
S
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 
th
e 
H
IP
P
S
 a
nd
 T
IS
S
 d
ev
el
op

m
en
ts
 

ar
e 
cl
ea

rly
 d
ef
in
ed
.  
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

M
ee

tin
g 
ha

s 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e 

w
ith
 C
A
M
H
S
 lo
ca
l o
ffi
ce
 

(M
ar
k 
H
em

m
in
g)
 a
nd
 

ag
re
ed

 th
at
 w
e 
ne
ed

 a
 

re
la
un

ch
 o
f t
he
 s
er
vi
ce
 in
 

th
e 
fo
rm

 o
f a

 p
ar
tn
er
s 

ev
en

t a
nd
 c
la
rit
y 
ar
ou

nd
 

cr
ite
ria
 fo

r 
re
fe
rr
in
g 
ca
se
s.
  

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 d
at
a 

re
qu
es
te
d 
fr
om

 C
A
M
H
S
. 

G
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou
ng
 P
eo

pl
e’
s 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 p
ro
vi
de

 m
on

ito
rin
g 
 

H
ea

lth
 &
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 

Jo
in
t C

om
m
is
si
on

in
g 
G
ro
up

  

90
. 

 3
8.
 

(9
4)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
ch
ild
re
n 
in
 c
ar
e 

co
un

ci
l i
s 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e,
 is
 

re
pr
es
en
ta
tiv
e 
of
 th
e 
ra
ng
e 
of
 

lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
ha
s 

m
em

be
rs
hi
p 
of
 th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 

co
rp
or
at
e 
pa

re
nt
in
g 
gr
ou

p.
  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 (
JK

),
 c
ha

ir 
of
 

co
rp
or
at
e 
pa

re
nt
in
g,
 c
ha

ir 
of
 C
iC
 

co
un

ci
l a
nd

 c
ar
e 
le
av
er
s 
ch
am

pi
on

  
to
 d
ev
el
op

 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
to
  i
nf
or
m
 

co
rp
or
at
e 
pa

re
nt
in
g 
st
ra
te
gy
. 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 K
ey
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
 a
nd
 K
P
I’s
 

se
t f
ro
m
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01

5 
in
 

lin
e 
w
ith
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
pl
ed
ge
, 

he
al
th
 a
nd
 e
du

ca
tio
n 

as
pi
ra
tio
ns
. A

gr
ee
m
en
t t
o 

th
es
e 
K
P
I’s
 is
 s
ub

je
ct
 to
 

ag
re
em

en
t a
t c
or
po
ra
te
 

pa
re
nt
in
g 
pa

ne
l t
hi
s 

m
on
th
 (
Ja
nu

ar
y 
20
15

) 

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

84



  Pa
ge

 2
7 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

91
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

A
s 
fr
om

 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
14

, y
ou

ng
 

pe
op
le
 w
ill
 h
av
e 
m
em

be
rs
hi
p 
of
  

co
rp
or
at
e 
pa

re
nt
in
g 
pa
ne

ls
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

92
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 (
JK

) 
to
 b
e 
se
nt
 m

in
ut
e 

fr
om

 C
iC
 fo

r 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
an
d 
ac
tio
n 

w
he

n 
re
qu
ire
d.
 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

 

93
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

A
do

pt
 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
h 
th
e 
P
le
dg
e 
fo
r 

Lo
ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
C
hi
ld
re
n,
 a
s 
a 

de
m
on

st
ra
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
co
m
m
itm

en
t 

of
 th
e 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
ar
en
t t
o 
ou

r 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C
hi
ld
re
n.
 

 

S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
. 

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

94
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

D
ev
el
op

 C
iC
C
 w
eb

si
te
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
it 

is
 r
ep

re
se
nt
at
iv
e 
of
 th
e 
vo
ic
e 
of
 o
ur
 

LA
C
 a
nd
 is
 a
 u
se
fu
l r
es
ou

rc
e 
fo
r 

th
em

 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

H
A
C
K
 te

st
in
g 
da
y 
ta
ki
ng
 

pl
ac
e 
on

 2
8 
Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
. 

A
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
  

95
. 

 3
9.
  

(1
25

, 
13

6)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
al
l l
oc
al
 a
ut
ho
rit
y 
el
ec
te
d 

m
em

be
rs
 u
nd
er
st
an
d 
an

d 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
un

de
rt
ak
e 
th
ei
r 
ro
le
 a
s 

a 
co
rp
or
at
e 
pa

re
nt
.  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

M
em

be
rs
’ S

em
in
ar
 in
 

O
ct
ob
er
/N
ov
em

be
r 
re
 C
or
po

ra
te
 

P
ar
en

tin
g.
   
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
. 

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

96
. 

  
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

B
us
in
es
s 

In
te
lli
ge
nc
e 

M
an

ag
er
 

P
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 M
em

be
rs
’ S

em
in
ar
s 

in
 p
la
ce
 u
p 
un

til
 F
eb

ru
ar
y 
20

15
.  
 

N
ew

 r
ol
lin
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
to
 b
e 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
af
te
r 
20
15

 lo
ca
l 

el
ec
tio
ns
.  
 

F
eb

ru
ar
y 

20
15
 

O
ng
oi
ng
.  
H
av
e 
al
so
 

ag
re
ed

 to
 s
en
d 
bi
 m
on
th
ly
 

up
da
te
s 
on

 h
ow

 a
re
 L
A
C
 

co
ho

rt
 a
re
 g
et
tin
g 
on
 a
nd

 
an

y 
pa

tte
rn
s 
or
 tr
en
ds
 

w
hi
ch
 m

em
be

rs
 c
ou
ld
 

su
pp
or
t t
o 
ad
dr
es
s.
 

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

97
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

S
ur
ve
y 
of
 M
em

be
rs
’ u
nd

er
st
an
di
ng
 

of
 th
ei
r 
co
rp
or
at
e 
pa

re
nt
in
g 
ro
le
 to
 

be
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
n 
an
d 
re
pe
at
ed
 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 s
em

in
ar
s 

to
 e
va
lu
at
e 
im
pa

ct
.  
  

M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

F
ol
lo
w
 u
p 
qu
es
tio
nn
ai
re
 to

 
be

 s
en
t p
rio
r 
to
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
C
or
po

ra
te
 

pa
re
nt
in
g 
se
m
in
ar
. 

O
ut
st
an
di
ng
  

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

Jo
in
t S

en
io
r 
M
an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 

85



  Pa
ge

 2
8 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

98
. 

  
 

C
ab

in
et
 

M
em

be
r:
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(J
M
) 

W
or
k 
be
in
g 
un
de

rt
ak
en
 b
y 
C
ab

in
et
 

M
em

be
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
W
el
lb
ei
ng
 to

 
m
ak
e 
pr
op
os
al
s 
to
 th
e 
G
ro
up

 
Le

ad
er
s 
re
 m
an
da
to
ry
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo

r 
al
l C

ou
nc
ill
or
s 
at
 th

e 
st
ar
t o
f e

ac
h 

ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n 
ye
ar
 to

 a
tte
nd

 
sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 a
nd

 c
or
po
ra
te
 

pa
re
nt
in
g 
se
m
in
ar
s.
  T

he
 p
ro
po

sa
l 

w
ill
 r
ec
om

m
en

d 
th
at
  f
ai
lu
re
 to

 
at
te
nd

 w
ill
 r
es
ul
t i
n 
m
em

be
rs
 

al
lo
w
an

ce
s 
no

t b
ei
ng
 p
ai
d.
   

A
ug
us
t 

20
14
 w
ith
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
 

fr
om

 M
ay
 

20
15
 

N
ot
e 
to
 G
ro
up
 L
ea
de

rs
 

ha
d 
be

en
 d
ra
fte

d 
an
d 
is
 to

 
be

 a
gr
ee
d.
  

G
 

C
ab

in
et
 

99
. 

  
 

C
ab

in
et
 

S
up

po
rt
 

M
em

be
r 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
(J
M
) 

C
ab

in
et
 S
up
po

rt
 M
em

be
r 
is
 li
ai
si
ng
 

w
ith
 v
ar
io
us
 lo
ca
l b
us
in
es
s 
le
ad

er
s 

ab
ou
t a
pp

re
nt
ic
es
hi
ps
 a
nd

 w
or
k 

ex
pe

rie
nc
e 
fo
r 
lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n.
  

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

B
ei
ng
 a
dd
re
ss
ed
 w
ith
in
 

co
nt
ex
t o
f w

id
er
 

ap
pr
en
tic
es
hi
p 
an
d 

ba
rr
ie
rs
 to

 w
or
k 
pr
oj
ec
t 

w
ith
in
 C
H
IP
P
 

G
 

C
ab

in
et
  

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

C
H
IP
P
 P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 

10
0.
 
 4
0.
  

(1
03

?)
 

R
ef
re
sh
 a
nd

 r
e-
la
un

ch
 th
e 

re
cr
ui
tm

en
t s
tr
at
eg
y 
to
 in
cr
ea

se
 

th
e 
nu
m
be

r 
of
 a
do
pt
er
s 
fo
r 

ch
ild
re
n 
w
ith
 c
om

pl
ex
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 

fo
r 
la
rg
er
 s
ib
lin
g 
gr
ou

ps
.  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

R
ec
ru
itm

en
t t
o 
a 
m
ar
ke
tin
g 
an

d 
re
cr
ui
tm

en
t p
os
t w

ith
in
 th

e 
ad
op

tio
n 

an
d 
fo
st
er
in
g 
se
rv
ic
e 
w
ith
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 

in
ve
st
m
en

t i
n 
so
ci
al
 m
ed

ia
. 

  

Ju
ly
 2
01

4 
M
ar
ke
tin
g 
an

d 
re
cr
ui
tm
en

t 
po

st
 in
 a
do
pt
io
n 
no
w
 

ap
po
in
te
d.
 

 F
os
te
rin
g 
m
ar
ke
tin
g 
an
d 

re
cr
ui
tm

en
t p
os
t 

ad
ve
rt
is
ed

. 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

10
1.
 
  

 
H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

T
he
 r
ec
ru
itm

en
t s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
ac
ro
ss
 

th
e 
W
es
t M

er
ci
a 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
an
d 
ar
e 
du
e 
to
 b
e 

si
gn
ed

 o
ff 
in
 S
ep

te
m
be
r.
  

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
14
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
. 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

10
2.
 
 4
1.
  

(1
10

, 
11

1)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
pa
th
w
ay
 p
la
ns
 

ar
e 
up
 to

 d
at
e,
 a
re
 o
f g
oo

d 
qu
al
ity
, a

re
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
a 
ro
bu

st
 

an
al
ys
is
 o
f n

ee
d,
 w
ith
 c
le
ar
 a
nd
 

ag
re
ed

 g
oa

ls
 a
nd

 a
re
 r
eg
ul
ar
ly
 

re
vi
ew

ed
.  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t o
f P

at
hw

ay
 p
la
n 
w
ith
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
 a
nd
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
 

Ju
ly
 2
01

4.
 

P
at
hw

ay
 p
la
n 
is
 n
ow

 a
t 

po
in
t o
f s
ig
n 
of
f t
hr
ou

gh
 

C
or
iu
s.
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
de
liv
er
ed

 N
ov
 

20
14
 

G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

10
3.
 
  

 
H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

A
ud

it 
ac
tiv
ity
 w
ith
 r
es
pe
ct
 to
 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 a
nd
 q
ua

lit
y 
of
 p
at
hw

ay
 

pl
an

s 
w
ill
 b
e 
un
de

rt
ak
en
 a
s 
pa

rt
 o
f 

th
e 
Q
A
 fr
am

ew
or
k 
an

d 
an

y 
le
ar
ni
ng
 

M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
   
 

G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

86



  Pa
ge

 2
9 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

(D
C
) 

w
ill
 b
e 
in
co
rp
or
at
ed
.  
  

10
4.
 
  

 
M
en

to
rin
g 
an
d 

P
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n 

O
ffi
ce
r 
(D
B
) 

In
 c
on
ju
nc
tio
n 
w
ith
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pr
oc
es
s 
a 
su
rv
ey
 o
f y
ou

ng
 p
eo
pl
e 

w
ill
 ta

ke
 p
la
ce
 to

 u
nd
er
st
an

d 
th
ei
r 

ex
pe

rie
nc
e 
of
 th
e 
pa
th
w
ay
 p
la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc
es
s.
   

M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

O
n 
tr
ac
k 

G
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

10
5.
 
 4
2.
 

(1
12

) 

 E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
ca
re
 le
av
er
s 

re
ce
iv
e 
a 
co
py
 o
f t
he

ir 
he

al
th
 

re
co
rd
s.
   

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t o
f h
ea

lth
 p
as
sp
or
t f
or
 

ca
re
 le
av
er
s.
  

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

B
es
t p

ra
ct
ic
e 
ex
am

pl
e 

id
en

tif
ie
d 
an
d 
be

in
g 

ad
ap
te
d 
fo
r 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
.  

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
 m
ov
in
g 
fr
om

 fo
st
er
 

ca
re
 a
re
 c
on

tin
ui
ng
 to

 u
se
 

th
e 
fu
ll 
he
al
th
 p
as
sp
or
t, 

ca
re
 le
av
er
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
m
or
e 

co
nd
en

se
d 
bu
t w

ill
 in
cl
ud

e 
ad

vi
ce
 a
nd

 m
ed

ic
at
io
n 

de
ta
ils
 fo
r 
lif
e 
lim

iti
ng
 

ill
ne

ss
es
. 

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 C
ar
e 
M
an
ag
er
s 
 

Q
A
 F
ra
m
ew

or
k 

10
6.
 
 4
3.
  

(8
2,
 

11
7,
 

13
7)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
lo
ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
ca
re
 le
av
er
s 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
 th
ei
r 
rig
ht
s,
 

re
sp
on

si
bi
lit
ie
s 
an

d 
en
tit
le
m
en
ts
 

an
d 
re
ce
iv
e 
th
e 
gu
id
an
ce
, 

su
pp
or
t a

nd
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 to
 r
ea

lis
e 

th
em

.  

H
ea

d 
of
 L
A
C
 

(J
K
) 

R
ef
re
sh
 o
f C

or
po

ra
te
 p
ar
en

tin
g 

st
ra
te
gy
 to

 in
cl
ud

e 
th
e 
rig
ht
s 
an

d 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
, 

in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 
m
on

ito
rin
g 
an

d 
ev
al
ua

tio
n 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 

al
l c
hi
ld
re
n 
ar
e 
en
ab

le
d 
to
 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
 th
ei
r 
rig
ht
s.
   
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 p
ar
en
tin
g 

st
ra
te
gy
 to

 b
e 
up

da
te
d 
fo
r 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

15
. 

A
 m
on

ito
rin
g 
m
ec
ha
ni
sm

  
w
ill
 b
e 
in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 w
ith
 

th
e 
re
vi
ew

 o
f t
he

 L
A
C
 

re
vi
ew

 o
f f
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

m
od
ul
e 
an

d 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
lin
k 

to
 th
e 
V
oi
ce
 o
f t
he
 C
hi
ld
 

G
ro
up

.  
R
ig
ht
s 
of
 th
e 
ch
ild
 

w
ill
 a
ls
o 
fe
at
ur
e 
on
 th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
 w
eb

si
te
. 

G
 

C
or
po

ra
te
 P
ar
en
tin
g 
P
an

el
 

10
7.
 
 4
4.
  

(1
35

) 
E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 le
ar
ni
ng
 fr
om

 
co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
an

d 
re
pr
es
en

ta
tio
ns
 

fr
om

 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un
g 
pe

op
le
, 

pa
re
nt
s 
an
d 
ca
re
rs
 a
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
 

us
er
s 
is
 s
ys
te
m
at
ic
al
ly
 c
ol
la
te
d 

an
d 
an

al
ys
ed

 a
nd
 is
 u
se
d 
to
 

im
pr
ov
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
de

liv
er
y 
an

d 

H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 

pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
an
d 
gu
id
an

ce
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

re
vi
se
d 
an

d 
in
co
rp
or
at
ed

 w
ith
in
 th

e 
Q
A
 a
nd
 C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
S
er
vi
ce
 to

 
st
re
ng
th
en
 a
cc
ou
nt
ab

ili
ty
, 

kn
ow

le
dg
e,
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
, l
ea

rn
in
g 

an
d 
di
ss
em

in
at
io
n 
of
 le
ar
ni
ng
 

M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  

F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
a 
re
ce
nt
 

an
al
ys
is
 o
f c
om

pl
ai
nt
s,
 

fu
rt
he

r 
gu
id
an
ce
 n
ee
ds
 to

 
be

 p
ro
du

ce
d 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 

do
cu
m
en
ta
tio
n 
th
at
 

in
de

pe
nd
en

t i
nv
es
tig
at
in
g 

G
 

Q
ua

rt
er
ly
 r
ep

or
ts
 to
 H
ea
ds
 o
f 

S
er
vi
ce
 

H
al
f y
ea

rly
 r
ep

or
t t
o 
Jo
in
t S

M
T
 a
nd
 

m
em

be
rs
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 A
nn

ua
l C

om
pl
ai
nt
s 
R
ep
or
t 

w
ill
 b
e 
pr
od
uc
ed
 fo

r 
ye
ar
 e
nd
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 a
nd
 p
re
se
nt
ed

 to
 A
ud

it 
an
d 

87



  Pa
ge

 3
0 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

N
o
.  

O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 
N
o
 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 
W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
/A
/G
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t. 
 

 
of
fic
er
s 
ha
ve
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 

en
su
re
 th
at
 D
at
a 

P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
le
gi
sl
at
io
n 
is
 

no
t b
re
ac
he
d 
an
d 
w
ha

t 
th
ey
 h
av
e 
re
ce
iv
ed

.  
   
  

G
ov
er
na

nc
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
, H

S
C
B
 

S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

10
8.
 
  

 
H
ea

d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ith
 

D
is
ab

ili
tie
s 

an
d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

(D
C
) 

N
ew

 in
te
gr
at
ed

 Q
A
 a
nd
 S
W
 

ac
ad
em

y 
se
rv
ic
e 
w
ill
 e
na

bl
e 

le
ar
ni
ng
 fr
om

 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
to
 b
e 
bu

ilt
 

in
to
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op

m
en

t p
la
n.
   

M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
  

G
 

C
hi
ld
ca
re
 M
an
ag
er
s 

 

88



  Pa
ge

 3
1 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

H
S
C
B
 O
F
S
T
E
D
 IN
S
P
E
C
T
IO
N
 M
A
Y
 2
01
4 
– 
IM
P
R
O
V
E
M
E
N
T
 P
L
A
N
 

K
ey
:  
 

• 
H
S
C
B
 is
 th

e 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
B
oa

rd
 

• 
O
fs
te
d 
P
ar
a 
N
um

be
r 
re
fe
rs
 to

 th
e 
A
re
a 
of
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
de
nt
ifi
ed
 in
 th

e 
O
fs
te
d 
In
sp
ec
tio
n 
O
ut
co
m
e 
of
 3
0 
Ju
ne
 2
01

4 

 

 
O
fs
te
d
 

P
ar
a 

N
o
 

B
u
si
n
es
s 

P
la
n
 

R
ef
er
en
c

e 

O
fs
te
d
 A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

L
ea
d
 

A
ct
io
n
 

B
y 

W
h
en
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
A
G
 

R
at
in
g
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

an
d
 

E
va
lu
at
io
n
 

1.
 
 

14
9 

4.
1 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 g
ov
er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 b
et
w
ee

n 
th
e 

LS
C
B
 a
nd

 th
e 
Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
 a
re
 c
la
rif
ie
d.
  

In
de
pe

nd
en

t C
ha
ir 

of
 H
S
C
B
 

A
gr
ee

 p
ro
to
co
l w

hi
ch
 s
et
s 
ou
t t
he

 
go
ve
rn
an

ce
 a
rr
an

ge
m
en

ts
 b
et
w
ee

n 
H
S
C
B
  a

nd
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t B

oa
rd
.  

O
ct
ob
e

r 
20

14
 

P
ro
to
co
l s
ig
ne
d 
ag
re
ed
 a
t t
he
 O
ct
ob
er
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 B
oa
rd
 a
nd

 Im
pr
ov
em

en
t B

oa
rd
.  

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

G
 

C
ha

irs
 o
f 

H
S
C
B
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

B
oa

rd
 a
nd
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
  

2.
 
 

15
0 

2.
2 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 L
S
C
B
 p
ol
ic
ie
s 
an
d 

pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 a
re
 u
p 
to
 d
at
e 
an
d 

in
co
rp
or
at
e 
is
su
es
 s
pe
ci
fic
 to
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
. 

C
ha

ir 
of
 

P
ol
ic
y 

an
d 

P
ro
ce
du
r

es
 

W
es
t M

er
ci
a 
in
de
pe
nd
en

t c
ha

irs
 to

 
ag
re
e 
su
b 
re
gi
on
al
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
to
 p
ol
ic
y 

an
d 
pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t. 

Ja
nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f e

xi
st
in
g 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 a
nd

 a
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
fo
r 
re
vi
si
on

 
de

ve
lo
pe

d.
   
 M
ee

tin
g 
w
ith
 W

es
t M

er
ci
a 

pe
er
s 
w
as
 p
os
tp
on
ed
 a
nd
 d
ue
 to

 b
e 
re
-

ar
ra
ng
ed

 fo
r 
th
e 
ne

w
 y
ea
r.
   

A
 

H
S
C
B
 

S
te
er
in
g 

G
ro
up
 

3.
 
 

 
2.
2 

 
C
ha

ir 
of
 

P
ol
ic
y 

an
d 

P
ro
ce
du
r

es
 

In
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 
w
ith
 T
ri-
x,
 th

re
e 
ye
ar
 

tim
et
ab

le
 to

 b
e 
ag
re
ed

 o
n 
a 
re
gi
on

al
 

ba
si
s 
fo
r 
a 
sy
st
em

at
ic
 r
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 
up
da
te
 o
f b

es
po
ke
 p
ol
ic
y 
an

d 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 in
 c
on

su
lta
tio
n.
  T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b
e 
in
fo
rm

ed
 b
y 
cu
rr
en

t, 
an

d 
kn
ow

n 
ab

ou
t f
ut
ur
e,
 n
at
io
na

l a
nd

 
lo
ca
l p
rio
rit
ie
s.
 

Ja
nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

M
ee

tin
g 
w
ith
 W

es
t M

er
ci
a 
pe
er
s 
w
as
 

po
st
po
ne
d 
an
d 
du
e 
to
 b
e 
re
-a
rr
an

ge
d 
fo
r 

th
e 
ne
w
 y
ea

r.
   

A
 

H
S
C
B
 

S
te
er
in
g 

G
ro
up
 

4.
 
 

 
2.
2 

 
C
ha

ir 
of
 

P
ol
ic
y 

an
d 

P
ro
ce
du
r

es
 

P
rio
rit
y 
to
 b
e 
gi
ve
n 
to
 c
hi
ld
 s
ex
ua

l 
ex
pl
oi
ta
tio
n 
an

d 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
M
is
si
ng
 

pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 o
n 
th
e 
ba
si
s 
of
 O
fs
te
d 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
.  

O
ct
ob
e

r 
20

14
 

O
pe

ra
tio
na

l p
ro
ce
ss
es
 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
in
 M
A
S
H
 

fr
om

 5
 N
ov
em

be
r 
20
14
 a
nd
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

re
po

rt
in
g 
in
to
 th

e 
C
S
A
R
 o
pe

ra
tio
na

l a
nd
 

in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
no
w
 c
om

m
en

ce
d.
   

G
 

H
S
C
B
 

S
te
er
in
g 

G
ro
up
 

5.
 
 

15
1 

1.
4 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th

e 
LS

C
B
 r
ec
ei
ve
s 

ac
cu
ra
te
 a
nd
 r
el
ev
an

t 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
fr
om

 
its
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 e
na
bl
e 
it 
to
 

as
su
re
 it
se
lf 
on
 th

e 
qu
al
ity
 o
f 

C
ha

ir 
of
 

th
e 
Q
A
 

S
ub

 
G
ro
up
 

D
ev
el
op

 a
 m

ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 c
hi
ld
’s
 

jo
ur
ne

y 
sc
or
ec
ar
d.
   
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 c
le
ar
ly
 

de
fin
e 
w
ha

t d
at
a 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
ce
iv
ed

, t
he

 
fo
rm

at
 a
nd

 th
e 
fr
eq
ue
nc
y.
   
 

Ja
nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

T
he
 c
on
te
nt
s 
of
 a
 d
ra
ft 
sc
or
ec
ar
d 
ha

s 
 

be
en
 a
gr
ee

d 
an
d 
re
po
rt
in
g 
ag
ai
ns
t i
t i
s 

st
ill
 in
 d
ev
el
op
m
en

t. 
  T

hi
s 
w
ill
 n
ee

d 
to
 b
e 

re
vi
ew

ed
 a
ga
in
st
 a
ny
 r
ec
om

m
en

da
tio
ns
 

fr
om

 th
e 
LG

A
 p
ee
r 
di
ag
no
st
ic
 o
n 
th
e 

A
 

H
S
C
B
 

S
te
er
in
g 

G
ro
up

   

89



  Pa
ge

 3
2 

of
 3

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
6 

15
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

 

 

90



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

MEETING DATE: 4 FEBRUARY 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Mandatory training for elected members 

REPORT BY: Cabinet Member (Young People and 
Children’s Wellbeing) 

Alternative options 

1 The current system is retained ie, training is available but is not mandatory and/or no 
sanction is applied if training is not completed. This is not recommended because 
experience has shown that not all elected members complete training. The risks 
associated with a lack of awareness of key issues, roles and responsibilities were 
highlighted during the Ofsted inspection of children’s safeguarding; introducing a 
mandatory requirement for training mitigates that risk. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To gain the support of the Committee on the principle of making training mandatory 

 Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To consider a proposal for mandatory corporate parenting and safeguarding training for all 
Councillors. 

Recommendation 

THAT:  
(a) the Committee endorse the principle of mandatory training for elected 

members in respect of safeguarding and corporate parenting, and 
comment on the proposals set out at paragraph 7. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

91



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

and seek the Committee’s views on the proposals for doing so. 

Key considerations 

3 In 2012 Ofsted graded Herefordshire’s children’s safeguarding services “inadequate”.   
Amongst the areas needing improvement, the lack of councillor interest and 
responsibility in these safeguarding were key indicators of inadequate management, 
leadership and governance of these services All elected members are expected to 
take an appropriate interest in children’s and adult’s safeguarding issues and 
understand that safeguarding forms a fundamental part of councillor’s duties, in the 
same way that the economy, roads and planning are.   

4 In 2014, Ofsted reinspected the Council and re-graded the service as “requires 
improvement”.   This grading demonstrated the improvements made. One of the 
elements of that improvement was the significant engagement by all members in 
safeguarding and corporate parenting, since 2012. Ofsted also reinforce the point that 
to get to “good”, the authority has to further sharpen and embed many aspects of the 
improvement it had started to deliver within its services.   Amongst these was further 
strengthening and embedding of the involvement of all councillors, as well as the 
involvement of specific councillor post holders, in key aspects of children’s services. 
Although regular member seminars are held throughout the year, there is currently no 
requirement for members to complete training and development or any sanction 
applied if they do not do so. 

5 Following the 2014 Ofsted report, recommendations made by the Safeguarding Task 
Group for the HOSC, and questions asked by members at Council, the leader of the 
council asked the cabinet member young people and children's wellbeing to draft a 
proposal for improving this situation on a permanent basis to ensure our looked after 
children obtain the full support and involvement as required from every elected 
member as a corporate parent and to ensure that all members have a full awareness 
of safeguarding issues, roles and responsibilities. 

6 At present all members have access to induction training when first elected and 
subsequent regular invitations to children’s wellbeing seminars held every two to 
three months. All such training and development opportunities are optional (although 
recommended) and no sanction is applied to members if they do not take up this 
training and development offer.   

7 As part of a wider review of member induction, training and development, it is 
proposed to make the following changes with effect from May 2015: 

· Councillors must complete mandatory training in a number of key areas to 
include safeguarding (children and adults) and corporate parenting.   Training 
will where possible be accessible online, and where it is necessary or desirable 
to have additional face to face sessions these will be run on more than one 
occasion to enable attendance. 

· Deadlines will be set over a reasonable timescale during the induction period 
within which members will be required to complete all mandatory training 
elements. Any member who fails to complete a mandatory training element by 
its due deadline could affect their entitlement to allowances.  (This is a concept 
used in other authorities with some success.) 

· The mandatory training programme will be available online throughout the year 

92



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

to enable any member to review the training at any time and for members 
joining the council mid term to complete the mandatory training. Where annual 
refresher sessions are mandatory (as with children’s safeguarding and 
corporate parenting) the deadlines for completion will be made clear to all 
members and the same sanction for non-completion may be applied. 

· The governance team will monitor completion rates of training and report any 
instances of con-compliance to the relevant group leader and the assistant 
director governance. The decision to apply a sanction if mandatory training has 
not been completed within agreed deadlines will rest with the assistant director 
governance having consulted with the relevant group leader. 

· Individual member’s training completion rates will also be available in the ‘my 
councillor’ section of the website (alongside register of interests etc). 

Community impact 

8 By enabling members to have the necessary information and skills to carry out their 
roles and responsibilities effectively the council will be better able to meet its 
corporate plan priorities, and its statutory duties.    

Equality duty 

9 Training for members will include gaining an understanding of how the council can 
ensure it is meeting its public sector equality duty. Training and development 
opportunities will be made available to members in such a way as to be fully 
accessible.   

Financial implications 

10 Budgetary provision is made for member induction and training; there are no 
additional financial implications arising from introducing a mandatory requirement in 
respect of that training. 

Legal implications 

11 The Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 require the 
council to provide for the payment of a basic allowance which must be the same for 
each member and also the opportunity for members to elect, giving notice in writing, 
to forgo their entitlement or any part of their entitlement to allowances. 

12 The Independent Remuneration Panel would have to make a recommendation to 
Council to amend the scheme. Options for ensuring that mandatory training is 
attended could involve setting the basic allowance at a certain rate and increasing it 
once mandatory courses are completed and or members electing to forgo a 
percentage of the allowance 

13 The allowance however could not be suspended or withheld as this is only permitted 
under the Regulations where the member is suspended or partially suspended from his 
responsibilities or duties as a member of the council. 

 

 

93



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

 

Risk management 

14 As identified in the alternative options above. 

Consultees 

15 Group leaders have been consulted and are supportive of the principle of introducing 
mandatory training elements and applying a sanction if those mandatory training 
elements are not completed in a timely manner.  

Appendices 

None. 

Background papers 

· None identified. 

 

 
 
 

94



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Helen Coombes, Director for Adults and Wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260339 

 

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

MEETING DATE: 4 FEBRUARY 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: CARE ACT 2014 UPDATE 

REPORT BY: Director of Adults and Wellbeing 
 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options.  The Care Act places new legal requirements on the 
Council from 1 April 2015.  The purpose of the briefing is to provide an update on 
implementation activity and timescales. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The Care Act represents the most significant change to adult social care in over 60 
years.  It is therefore essential that the Committee is informed of progress with the 
Act and its impacts locally.  

Key Considerations 

3 There are two parts to Care Act implementation – those aspects which take effect 
from April 2015 (most of the Care Act) and those which take effect from April 2016 
(which are mostly the funding reform aspects).  

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To update the Committee on the timeline for the Care Act implementation and progress on 
local implementation activities. 

Recommendation 

THAT: the Care Act update at Appendix A is noted. 

AGENDA ITEM 10

95



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Helen Coombes, Director for Adults and Wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260339 

 

4 Locally, implementation activities for the 2015 aspects of the Act are well under-way, 
although progress in certain areas has been limited as local authorities wait for 
clarifications from the Department of Health on areas where the regulations and 
guidance are unclear.  Herefordshire, like most local authorities, has adopted a risk 
analysis approach to prioritise certain aspects of the Act for implementation.  

5 Regular engagement with regional and national networks indicates that 
implementation progress in Herefordshire is very much on a par with other local 
authorities. 

6 The draft regulations and guidance for the 2016 aspects of the Care Act (e.g. the care 
cap and care account) are due to be released by the Department of Health for 
national consultation at the beginning of February.  Once we have sight of these draft 
documents we will be in a position to start planning for implementation of these other 
aspects of the Care Act. 

7 A significant amount of communications activity has taken place during 2014 to raise 
awareness about the Care Act both within the council and the wider care and support 
sector in Herefordshire.  Local communications and engagement will continue 
throughout 2015. 

8 A national communications campaign will run in Feb-March 2015 and will focus on 
the introduction of a national eligibility threshold, carer’s rights to assessments and 
the introduction of deferred payment agreements.  This campaign will use various 
media, including online, local radio adverts and leaflet door-drops to target postcode 
areas.  The local communications plan is in the process of being updated to ensure 
all stakeholders are briefed and informed on what communications activities are 
happening when. 

Community Impact 

9 The Care Act is intended to have a range of positive implications for Herefordshire 
residents, including service users and their families and carers. 

Equality and Human Rights 

10 By simplifying the care and support system, the Care Act intends to ensure that all 
those in need of care and support are treated equally and with respect.   

Financial Implications 

11 The Care Act will have significant financial implications for Herefordshire Council both 
in terms of implementation costs and on-going costs going forward. 

Legal Implications 

12 When the Care Act comes into effect in April 2015 (April 2016 for certain funding 
reforms), a number of new statutory duties and requirements will be placed on the 
local authority. 

Risk Management 

13 As the Care Act introduces a number of new statutory duties and requirements for 
local authorities, there will be significant risks for the council in failing to meet these 
new statutory requirements.  

96



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Helen Coombes, Director for Adults and Wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260339 

 

Consultees 

14 Not applicable – briefing note only. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 –Care Act 2014 Update by Work Area 

Appendix 2 – Care Act 2014 National Communications Campaign 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

97



98



 

Care Act Progress Update Appendix 1 
 

Work area: COMMISSIONING 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? Y  

Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 A 

Care Act areas covered 
Preventative services, info & advice service, advocacy service, carers support, sight register & market shaping.  
Progress Update 
• Carers contracts (HCS & short breaks) in negotiations. 
• Advocacy contract extended for 1 year whilst we gauge level & type of demand 
• IAS hub out to tender & in discussion with provider regarding online provision 
• Sight-register requirements included in current contract 
• Range of preventative services in place & on-going work 

Milestones Date 
Online info & advice scoping 26.01.2015 
Information, advice & signposting (IAS) hub tender evaluations start 09.02.2015 
IAS hub contract in place by 31.03.2015 
Confirmation of  regional bid for advocacy proposal by 31.01.2015 
Development of carers service specification February 2015 
New carers service contract in place by 31.03.2015 
Risks Mitigation 
Insufficient advocacy provision during 15/16 to 
meet Care Act driven  increases in demand 

Regional bid to fund research to inform 
commissioning of service.  Monitor closely. 

How to meet the eligible needs of carers equitably, 
particularly when demand is likely to increase 

Decision needed – do we wish to explore 
option of a Carers RAS? 

 
 

Work area: FINANCE & CHARGING 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? Y  

Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 A 

Care Act areas covered 
Direct Payments, charging, financial assessment, choice of accommodation, deferred payment agreements 
(DPA), debt recovery & transfer of assets 
Progress Update 
No significant changes to process– more focus on calculations, staff awareness and ensuring policies 
are legally compliant.  WFAT team trained on DPA changes & looking to purchase e-learning 
Milestones Date 
DPA policy and process to DLT 26.01.2015 
DPA policy elected-member sign off by 31.01.2015 
WFAT officer (DPA) recruitment February 2015 
Revised charging policy to DLT February 2015* 
Debt recovery policy review (pending DH toolkit) Tbc 
Risks Mitigation 
*Charging policy pending DH clarifications – 
significant changes may result in –ve impact on 
service users = need for consultation (time impact) 

Proceed with drafting policy & pursue DH via 
NAFAO. Seek legal advice on how to proceed if 
no response from DH. 

Lack of clarity between work of WFAT lead and 
personalisation lead regarding direct payments  

SG & Transformation lead to advise. 

 

99



 

 
 

Work area: SAFEGUARDING 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? Y  

Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 G 

Care Act areas covered 
Establishment of SAB and its duties (including safeguarding adult reviews.  Duty of the LA to enquire. 
Progress Update 
• SAB in place – structure, governance & work programme in development. 
• Regional work to revise W. Midlands safeguarding policy 
• MSP process changes, staff training & support and communications in place 

Milestones Date 
MSP go live 26.01.2015 
SAB annual report & strategic plan 31.03.2015 
W. Mids regional safeguarding policy finalised tbc 
Peer review March 2015 

Risks Mitigation 
Insufficient capacity to deliver new approach ART team review 
Staff not sufficiently trained in new approach On-going training – use of e-learning.  

Embedding culture change. 
 
 

Work area: ASSESSMENTS 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? ?  

Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 R/A 

Care Act areas covered 
Wellbeing, needs assessments, carers assessments, eligibility criteria, care and support planning, review 
Progress Update 
Close interdependencies with other changing areas of work has hindered progress (e.g. I&A, carers).  
Pragmatic approach taken to identify essential deliverables for 31.03.2015 = focus on developing 
assessment forms useable for supported self-assessment, ensuring decision-making is evidenced 
within FWi, written notification to SUs is built into the assessment process, policies are legally 
compliant & staff receive appropriate training (currently in discussions with selected training provider). 
Milestones Date 
FACE release of amended V7 forms by 31.01.2015 
Upgrade to V7 forms by 28.02.2015 
Operational staff training (face-to-face) End Feb – Mid-March 15 
Legal review of changes required to Community Care Policy by 13.02.2015 
Community Care Policy updated Tbc (pending above) 
Risks Mitigation 
Not yet able to see V7 forms from FACE, Maintain contact with FACE to seek assurance for 

CA compliance 
Systems changes for FWi (e.g. evidencing 
decision-making) not fully scoped – risk of not 
being able to implement in time  

Business Analyst in process of scoping 
requirements with FWi lead. 

 
 
 
 

100



 

 
 

Work area: TRANSITIONS 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? Y  

Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 A 

Care Act areas covered 
Provision of assessments for young adults and young carers approaching the age of 18 and for parent-carers 
with children approach the age of 18.  Duty to meet needs of assessed parent-carers and young carers. 
Progress Update 
• Project to deliver transitions pathway in development - improve coordination between AWB & 

CWB, develop offer for young adults & ensure sufficient capacity/skills for timely assessments, 
• Transitions episode now running in FWi to improve data sharing between CWB & AWB 

Milestones Date 
JDs for senior practitioner & AEO posts to Programme Manager by 30.01.2015 
Recruitment to new posts February 2015 
New transitions team in place by 31.03.2015 
Revised charging policy to DLT February 2015* 
Risks Mitigation 
Failure / delay to recruiting will result in risk of LA 
not being able to meet new duties in providing 
timely transitions assessments 

Prioritise progressing recruitment 

 
 

Work area: POLICIES 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? N  

Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 A/R 

Care Act areas covered 
Ordinary residence, moving between areas, provider failure.  (Also cross-links with other work areas – direct 
payments, charging,  DPA, third-party contribution, safeguarding, community care & other operational policies) 
Progress Update 
Purchase of practice guidance from Policy Partners (Tri.x) paused as Care Act Board agreed a policy 
framework must be in place to underpin any guidance.  Policy stock-check complete –significant 
amount of work already underway with few policy gaps.  Coventry LA has made regional fund bid to 
purchase Practice Guidance from Policy Partners, and make this available to all W.Mids LAs – is 
advisable we delay purchasing practice guidance in-case Coventry purchase is sufficient. 
Milestones Date 
Ordinary resident policy drafted by legal, by 13.02.2015 
Development of protocols with neighbouring LAs Pending OR policy 
Care Home Insolvency Plan review by legal (recent policy – low priority) Tbc 
Practice guidance developed/purchased See “progress update” 
Debt recovery policy review (pending DH toolkit) Tbc 
Risks Mitigation 
Legal capacity to review / write required policies Prioritise & maintain contact with legal. 
Unlikely to have developed protocols with 
neighbouring LAs by 01.04.2015  

Liaise with legal on the level of risk 

No standardised approach in AWB to policy 
development, storage, access & version control.   

Care Act PM to maintain track of policy work & 
discuss with IG lead on best sustainable solution 

 
 

101



 

 

Related Work Areas 
 

Work area: COMMUNICATIONS 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? N/A  

Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 G 

Care Act areas covered – N/A 
Progress Update 
• Staff briefings on national communications campaign underway (ART, WFAT).  On-going 

engagement programme with all key stakeholders regarding wider Care Act communications 
Milestones Date 
Face-to-face briefing sessions on national comms campaign complete by 30.01.2015 
Updated web-content, including FAQ in place by 30.01.2015 
Briefing note on campaign circulated to all operational staff & providers, by 30.01.2015 
AWB Forum 11. 02.2015 
Briefings for Health via at GP Parliament and Practice Managers Awaiting dates 
On-going engagement (e.g. HCS, Herefordshire Disability United) Jan-April 2015 
Risks Mitigation 
National communications campaign raises 
expectations and increases demand 

Plan to manage the national messages are in 
place in under-way. 

 
 

Work area: WORKFORCE 
Legal compliance 
for 01.04.15? 

N/A  
Confidence in delivery of 
local actions for 01.04.15 A 

Care Act areas covered – N/A 
Progress Update 
• Assessment training tender awarded - Most other training will be delivered internally by relevant 

leads (train the trainer training booked in). 
• Regional discussions re: purchase of me-learning in progress.  Care Act awareness training 

completed (or scheduled) for almost all AWB staff (incl. housing, public health).   
• See specific work areas for specific training updates 
• Additional capacity in place to support coordination of L&D requirements for Care Act 

Milestones Date 
Care Act Awareness training sessions for MH teams Pending dates 
Care Act awareness training session for LD team Awaiting reply 
Train the trainer training for all work areas 12-13 Feb 2015 
Legal literacy training for ASC legal (regional event) 13 Feb (provisional) 
Purchase e-learning (may be done at a regional level using regional fund) Tbc 
Refer to specific work areas for more details  
Risks Mitigation 
Staff are insufficiently trained / supported in 
the new requirements 

Training Plan prioritises what is required for 
01.04.2015 – focus on assessments & operational 
staff.   Will need on-going programme throughout 
2015 for further training & to embed culture 
change. 

 

102



Page 1 of 10 

 

 Appendix 2 
The Care Act: National care and support campaign Briefing Note 
 

Background 
Public Health England (PHE), on behalf of the Department of Health (DoH), will be running a 
public awareness campaign on “care and support”, instigated by the imminent arrival of the 
Care Act in April 2015.  There will be 2 broad phases to this national campaign: 
 
Table 1: national communication campaign phases 
 

 Focus Timescale Key messages on: 
Phase 1 April 2015 Care Act 

reforms 
January 2015 
- March 2015 

New eligibility criteria, deferred payment 
agreements, support for carers 

Phase 2 April 2016 Care Act 
reforms 

Later in 2015 Care cap and means test.  Behaviour 
change campaign around care and support 

  
è This briefing solely focusses on Phase 1 and outlines how the national campaign 

will run, the key messages and how communications locally will be shaped 
around this. 

 
 

National Awareness Campaign Phase 1 
 
National key messages 
The three priorities for the 2015 Care Act reforms that the national campaign will focus on are: 

• New national eligibility criteria 
• New support for carers 
• Deferred payment agreements (which we already offer in Herefordshire) 

 
The national key messages for each priority are outlined in Appendix A. 
 
National “care and support” branding 
For the purposes of the national communications campaign, the changes introduced by the 
Care Act will be badged under the heading of “care and support”.  All national communications 
will have a care and support logo plus DoH branding.  Any communications developed by 
Herefordshire Council will utilise the care and support logo and DoH branding alongside local 
authority branding.  Examples of the branding of national materials can be seen in Appendix A. 
 
 
 

103



Page 2 of 10 

 

 
National channels of communication & timescales 
 

Diagram 1: national timescales and channels of communication for phase 1 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A. Digital advertising / online search (9 January – 16 March) 
A national webpage for care and support has been created (www.gov.uk/careandsupport); to 
which people will be directed to if they enter certain terms into online search engines and also 
from digital advertising.  From this page people will be able to find out more about the changes 
and can also use a postcode locator that will direct them to their relevant council website.  For 
Herefordshire this will be www.herefordshire.gov.uk/careact. 
 

In Herefordshire we have had a Care Act webpage up and running since mid-2014.  We are in 
the process of updating the content of this page using web-content provided by PHE.  In 
addition to the 3 key national messages (outlined in Appendix A), the Herefordshire Care Act 
page will be localised to include additional information on: 

• High level information about the care cap and care account (as we have already 
received queries from the public on these) 

• The introduction of making safeguarding personal 
• Improvements to information, advice and advocacy 
• Further sections can be added as required 

 

The Herefordshire Care Act webpage will be updated by the end of January, with ongoing 
updates anticipated throughout 2015. 
 
B. Local radio advertising (2 February –15 March) 
There will be nationally developed adverts, aired via local radio stations, throughout the 
country during February and the beginning of March.  These adverts will raise broad level 
awareness of the reforms – there is likely to be one advert focused on care users and one 
advert focused on carers.  

 

February 2015 
 

March 2015 April 
2015 

 

Most 
Care Act 
reforms 

take 
effect 

Digital advertising / online search 

 

January 2015 

Local radio advertising 

Door drops 

Media Partnership 

104



Page 3 of 10 

 

 

For Herefordshire, these adverts will be on Free Radio.  The radio adverts will direct people to 
the national webpage (www.gov.uk/careandsupport), from where they can they be signposted 
onto local webpages (see digital advertising section above). 
 
C. Door Drops (dates not confirmed, but likely to be end of February) 
Leaflets about care and support will be sent to 2.5 million households nationally from the DoH.  
These households have been selected by PHE using Acorn group analysis to select postcodes 
that have a high index of the target audience of service users, self-funders, carers and families.  
An example leaflet is attached at Appendix A. 
 

In Herefordshire 10,000 households will receive the door drop leaflets. 
 

Table 2: door drop leaflet numbers in Herefordshire by postcode 
 

Postcode Area No. door drop 
leaflets  

HR5 3 Kington 2,264 
HR2 0 Golden Valley 1,937 
HR3 6 S of Kington (Eardisley and surrounds) 1,518 
HR6 0 Leominster 2,074 
HR6 9 Leominster 2,292 
 
D. Media Partnership (16 February – 15 March) 
To help communicate the care and support reforms to a number of consumer groups including 
carers and self-funders, PHE has established a media partnership with publishers Trinity Mirror 
and Hearst – this covers digital and print titles such as The Mirror, Sunday Mirror, Notebook, 
Love Sunday Real People and Best Magazine.  Communications will include adverts and 
editorial commentary. 
 
E GP waiting room leaflets (leaflets distributed to selected surgeries by 15 March)  
**NB.  This is not included on Diagram 1 as only 6 surgeries in Herefordshire are involved. 
GP surgeries signed up to the GP waiting room information service will be targeted with care 
and support campaign leaflets.  A full list of surgeries has not yet been established, with 80% 
of surgeries identified so far.  In Herefordshire there will be 6 surgeries that will receive these 
leaflets – Wargrave House (Hereford), Sarum House (Hereford), Bobblestock Surgery 
(Hereford), The Surgery at Ewyas Harold, Gold Valley Practice (Peterchurch) and Ledbury 
Market Surgery. 
 
 

105



Page 4 of 10 

 

Local communications activity to support Phase 1 
This briefing is focused on the national communications campaign and what local 
communications will need to be built around this campaign.  The Herefordshire Council Care 
Act communications strategy captures all communications components that need to be 
addressed in light of the reforms (not just those triggered by the national communications 
campaign).  This strategy is currently being revised and updated. 
 
Local channels of communication & timescales 
 

Diagram 2: local timescales and channels of communication for phase 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Local stakeholders 
In relation to local support for the national communications campaign, the key stakeholders 
locally will predominantly be those people, professionals and organisations that services users, 
carers and the general public may turn to if they have queries resulting from the national 
communications. 
Key stakeholders will include: 
 

Table 3: local stakeholders 
 

Internal External 
Contact Centre 
ART team 
Welfare and Financial Assessment 
Team 
Locality teams 
Elected members 

Providers and their staff 
Community and voluntary sector 
Healthwatch 
Health – CCG, GPs 
Service user groups 

 

 

February 2015 
 

March 2015 

National campaign 

 

January 2015 

Website update 

Stakeholder briefings 

Ongoing updates as required 

April 
2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Care Act 
reforms 

take 
effect 

Updates as required 

Resource development Ongoing re-evaluation and development as required 

Specific staff briefings Updates as required 

106



Page 5 of 10 

 

In addition, there will also be a need for communications with service users, carers and the 
general public to provide greater clarity and local specificity to aspects of the national 
communications campaign. 
 
Local messages and channels 
Almost all identified stakeholders have already received some form of Care Act awareness 
raising activity; be this face to face presentation, briefing note, training session or Q&A.  
Additional briefings will be required throughout January to make stakeholders aware of the 
national campaign, the national key messages, what it means at a local level and resources to 
support responses to any queries received. 
 

The briefings and support will be in the following format and channels 
 

Table 4: local communication resources and channels 
 

Resource/channel Comment 
Communications 
briefing paper 

This briefing paper will be shared with all key stakeholders (the paper 
may be amended to suit the audience) 

Local care act 
website 

Already exists.  To be further updated by end of January.  Available at 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/careact  

Public facing FAQ To be developed from PHE resource.  To be available online at the 
council Care Act webpage by the end of January 

Staff FAQ Already developed and available to council staff on the council intranet 
at http://intranet/intranet/content/64398.asp  

Staff briefing paper A new briefing paper, specifically on the 2015 reforms, will be issued to 
frontline staff by the end of January 

Provider briefing 
paper 

A new briefing paper for providers will be issued by the end of January 

Face-to-face 
briefings 

Briefings specifically for the ART team, WFAT and Contact Centre, who 
may receive queries by phone, will be delivered in January. 

AWB Bulletin items Items will appear regularly in the AWB bulletin to alert staff to the 
communications campaign 

Posters To display in public council buildings (e.g. libraries) to direct the public to 
the council careact webpage 

Leaflets/letters For example new service user leaflet on deferred payment agreements 

 

Due to the high level nature of the national communications material, and that each council is 
likely to operate differently, there will be a need to supplement the three national key 
messages with further detail about what this means locally.  This will both provide more 
accurate information to the public and also better equip key contact points (e.g. care workers, 
social workers, ART team) to respond to any queries about the national key messages.  The 
local messages that will be built around the national key messages are outlined in Appendix B. 

107



Page 6 of 10 

 

Appendix A: Example care and support leaflet produced by PHE on behalf of DoH (see attached pdf). 
 

 

1
0
8



Page 7 of 10 

 

1
0
9



Page 8 of 10 

 

Appendix B: Care and Support public awareness campaign – national & local messages 
 

 Key Messages (national) Local messages 

N
at
io
n
al
 e
lig

ib
ili
ty
 c
ri
te
ri
a 

• The way care & support needs are assessed is changing 
for the better 

• Decisions about the help you receive will consider your 
wellbeing & what is important to your family 

• There will be a national level of care & support needs that 
all councils will consider when they assess you – this may 
result in you being eligible for care & support, and will make 
it easier for you to make plans 

• If you decide to move to another area councils will have to 
work together to make sure there is no gap 

• If you receive care & support, you will be more in control of 
decisions that affect you, and of putting together a care plan 
tailored to your needs 

• You will know how much it will cost to meet your needs & 
how much the council will contribute towards the cost. You 
will have more control over how that money is spent 

• You may find that the support you need could be met by 
something going on in your local community 

• Whatever your level of need, your council will be able to put 
you in touch with the right organisations to support your & 
help you remain independent for longer. 

 
 
 
 
 

• Whilst the eligibility criteria will change from 1 April, it has 
been set at a level which is broadly similar to that which 
we already use in Herefordshire.  Therefore we do not 
anticipate significant changes in who is and who isn’t 
eligible for council support  

• The new eligibility criteria applies only to assessments 
and reviews that take place from 1 April 2015 onwards.  
Existing service users will only be affected in that when 
their needs are next reviewed, this will be in accordance 
with the new criteria. 

• Social care staff will receive training and support on the 
new criteria and approach to assessments.  The new 
approach to assessments is more about embedding the 
best practice we continue to work towards (e.g. person-
centered, outcomes focused) 

• To find out more people should be encouraged in the first 
instance to visit the council Care Act webpages 
(www.herefordshire.gov.uk/careact) alternatively they 
may call the council Contact Centre on 01432 260555 

 Key Messages (national) Local messages 

1
1
0



Page 9 of 10 

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
ca

re
rs
 

• Changes to the way care & support is provided mean you 
may be able to get more help so that you can carry on 
caring and look after your own wellbeing 

• You may be eligible for support, taken as a personal budget 
to spend on things that make caring easier, or practical 
support.  Or you may prefer to be put in touch with local 
support groups 

• The council covering the area where the person you care 
for lives can help you find the right support and may 
suggest you have a carers assessment 

• A carers assessment will look at the different ways caring 
affects your life and work out how you can carry on doing 
the things that are important to you and your family 

• Your physical and emotional wellbeing will be at the heart of 
the assessment 

• As a result of the assessment, you may be eligible for 
support from the council, who will also offer you advice and 
guidance to help you with your caring responsibilities 

• You can have a carers assessment even if the person you 
care for does not get any help from the council, and they 
will not need to be assessed 

 

• The council already offers support to carers through 
Herefordshire Carers Support, short break services and 
direct payments 

• To receive carers support services from the council, a 
carers assessment must be completed to identify 
whether the impact of caring upon the carer is such that 
they are eligible for support. 

• The council is reviewing the support it provides carers to 
make sure that this best meets the needs and outcomes 
that carers want to achieve 

• To find out more people should be encouraged in the first 
instance to visit the council Care Act webpages for 
carers (www.herefordshire.gov.uk/careact), alternatively 
they may call the council Contact Centre on 01432 
260555  

 Key Messages (national) Local messages 

1
1
1



Page 10 of 10 

 

D
ef
er
re
d
 p
ay
m
en

t 
ag

re
em

en
ts
 

• From April 2015 deferred payment agreements will be 
available across the county 

• People should not have to sell their homes in their lifetime 
to pay for their care as they have sometimes had to do in 
the past 

• A deferred payment is an arrangement with the council that 
will enable some people to use the value of their homes to 
fund residential care home costs 

• If you are eligible, your council will pay your residential care 
home bills on your behalf.  You can delay repaying the 
council until you choose to sell your home, or until after 
your death 

• Deferred payment agreements will suit some people’s 
circumstances better than others’ 

• Councils may charge interest on what is owed and there 
may also be a set-up fee 

• Deferred payment agreements are only one way to pay for 
care.  To find out more options available, you can speak to 
a financial advisor or an independent organisation (e.g. the 
Money Advice Service) 

• The council already operates a deferred payment 
scheme 

• The council may charge an admin fee to set an 
agreement up and may charge up to 2.65% interest 

• To apply, you must have: 

ü  capital(excluding your property) of less than £23,250 

ü Own or part own a property which is registered with 
the Land Registry 

ü Be professionally assessed as requiring and be 
entering permanent residential/nursing care 

ü Have mental capacity to agree or have a legally 
appointed agent willing to agree to this 

• The council may offer deferred payments to people in 
supported living accommodation independent living 
schemes, such as extra care 

• For more information, people should in the first instance 
be encouraged to visit the council care act webpages 
(www.herefordshire.gov.uk/careact) alternatively they 
may contact the council’s Welfare and Financial 
Assessment Team on 01432 363756 

 

1
1
2



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Penrose on Tel (01432) 383690 

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

MEETING DATE: 4 FEBRUARY 2015 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: HEALTHWATCH HEREFORDSHIRE 
REPORT BY: Independent Chairman, Healthwatch 

Herefordshire  
 

 

1. Classification  
 Open 

 

2. Key Decision  

 This is not an executive decision  
 

3. Wards Affected 

 County-wide  

 
4. Purpose 
4.1 To receive a report on the activities of Healthwatch Herefordshire 

5. Recommendations 

 THAT: The report be noted 
 

6. Appendices 
 Appendix 1 – Healthwatch Herefordshire Report. 

7. Background Papers 

 None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 11

113



114



 
H

ea
lt

hw
at

ch
 M

on
th

ly
 P

ar
tn

er
 B

ri
ef

in
g:

 1
 D

ec
 2

0
1

4
 –

 2
0

 J
a

n
 2

0
1

5
 

                 

H
ea

lt
h

w
a

tc
h

 in
 t

h
e 

M
ed

ia
 

In
 R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 u

np
re

ce
de

nt
ed

 d
em

an
d 

in
 A

&
E  

- H
er

ef
or

d 
Ti

m
es

 
&

 B
BC

 H
er

ef
or

d 
&

 W
or

ce
st

er
 R

ad
io

 

Pa
ul

 D
en

ee
n 

ca
lle

d 
fo

r 
a 

“f
un

da
m

en
ta

l 
re

vi
ew

” 
of

 b
ed

 u
se

 a
t 

H
er

ef
or

d 
C
ou

nt
y 

H
os

pi
ta

l.
 F

un
di

ng
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 f
ou

nd
 f

or
 a

t 
le

as
t 

an
ot

he
r 

40
 b

ed
s.

 

“I
t 

is
 n

ow
 c

le
ar

 t
ha

t 
to

 d
ea

l w
it

h 
th

e 
un

pr
ec

ed
en

te
d 

an
d 

ev
er

 i
nc

re
as

in
g 

de
m

an
ds

 

at
 t

he
 h

os
pi

ta
l,

 a
nd

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

 is
 f

ut
ur

e 
pr

oo
fe

d,
 a

dd
it

io
na

l 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
an

ot
he

r 
40

 b
ed

s 
be

in
g 

ad
de

d.
 

In
 t

he
 s

ho
rt

 t
er

m
, 

he
 s

ai
d,

 i
t 

w
as

 “
vi

ta
lly

 im
po

rt
an

t”
 t

ha
t 

an
yo

ne
 w

it
h 

a 
no

n-

ur
ge

nt
 c

on
di

ti
on

 s
ou

gh
t 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 t
o 

A&
E 

su
ch

 a
s 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

ph
ar

m
ac

ie
s,

 N
H

S 

11
1,

 G
Ps

, 
th

e 
w

al
k 

in
 c

en
tr

e 
at

 H
er

ef
or

d 
AS

D
A 

or
 t

he
 e

xt
en

de
d 

ho
ur

s 
G

P 
su

rg
er

ie
s 

at
 R

os
s-

on
-W

ye
, 

Le
om

in
st

er
 a

nd
 H

er
ef

or
d,

 C
it

y.
 

H
ea

lt
hw

at
ch

 P
ra

is
e 

D
ig

ni
ty

 In
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

at
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

H
os

pi
ta

l w
ar

m
 a

nd
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 c

ar
e 

– 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ti
m

es
. 

H
ea

lt
hw

at
ch

 u
se

d 
th

e 
En

te
r 

&
 V

ie
w

 v
is

it
 t

o 
en

ga
ge

 w
it

h 
pa

ti
en

ts
 li

vi
ng

 w
it

h 
a 

m
em

or
y 

im
pa

ir
m

en
t 

as
ki

ng
 t

he
m

 a
bo

ut
 t

he
ir

 c
ar

e 
in

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

ho
sp

it
al

, 
pa

ti
en

ts
 t

ol
d 

H
ea

lt
hw

at
ch

 i
t 

w
as

 t
he

 “
lit

tl
e 

th
in

gs
” 

th
at

 m
at

te
re

d 
m

os
t.

 

H
ea

lt
hw

at
ch

 h
av

e 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

to
 v

is
it

 R
os

s 
C
om

m
un

it
y 

H
os

pi
ta

l t
hi

s 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

vi
si

t 
Th

e 
C
ou

nt
y 

H
os

pi
ta

l o
n 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

21
st
. A

ll 
re

po
rt

s 
ar

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

on
 th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 

w
w

w
.h

ea
lt

hw
at

ch
he

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e.

co
.u

k 

Th
em

es
 a

nd
 T

re
nd

s 

· 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 G

P 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e,

 h
ar

d 
to

 
re

ac
h 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 ru

ra
l a

cc
es

s 

· 
H

om
ec

ar
e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

ho
m

ec
ar

e 
to

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
it

y ,
 a

nd
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
it

h 
he

al
th

ca
re

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

· 
D

is
ch

ar
ge

 fr
om

 h
os

pi
ta

l, 
co

or
di

na
tio

n 
&

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 

· 
Re

fe
rr

al
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
it

hi
n 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 o

ut
 o

f c
ou

nt
y 

– 
po

or
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

tr
ac

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 

· 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
e x

pe
ct

at
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

 a
bo

ut
 d

el
ay

s 
an

d 
w

ai
tin

g 
tim

es
 fo

r d
ia

gn
os

tic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

at
 th

e 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

· 
Co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
sy

st
em

s 
&

 h
an

dl
in

g 
co

ul
d 

be
 m

or
e 

st
an

da
rd

is
ed

 a
nd

 p
at

ie
nt

 c
en

tr
ed

 

· 
Th

e 
im

pa
ct

 to
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 h
ea

lth
 &

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

; p
ro

vi
si

on
, m

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
, 

tr
an

sp
or

t 

· 
Co

ns
id

er
in

g 
pa

ti
en

t a
nd

 c
ar

er
s 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h 
ac

ro
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

at
 th

e 
ho

sp
it

al
 

· 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 g
et

 th
e 

m
es

sa
ge

 to
 

th
e 

he
al

th
 &

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

st
af

f, 
an

d 
th

e 
w

id
er

 
pu

bl
ic

, a
bo

ut
 c

ho
os

in
g 

th
e 

rig
ht

 s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

ur
ge

nt
 o

r n
on

-u
rg

en
t c

ar
e 

 

115



   E
nq

ui
ri

es
 1

 D
ec

-2
01

4 
– 

20
th

 Ja
n-

20
15

 

N
um

be
r 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
&

 a
dv

ic
e 

re
fe

rr
al

s:
 1

6 

   

01234567

U
nk

no
w

n
26

 T
o 

34
45

 T
o 

54
55

 T
o 

64
65

 T
o 

74

Re
fe

rr
al

s 
By

 A
ge

Re
fe

rr
al

s 
By

 L
oc

at
io

n

U
nk

no
w

n
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ci
ty

Le
db

ur
y 

A
nd

 A
re

a

Le
in

tw
ar

di
ne

 A
nd

 A
re

a
Le

om
in

st
er

 A
nd

 A
re

a
Ro

ss
 A

nd
 A

re
a

Re
fe

rr
al

s 
By

 G
en

de
r

Fe
m

al
e

M
al

e
U

nk
no

w
n

0
1

1
2

2
3

3
4

4
5

U
nk

no
w

n

Cl
in

ic

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 E
ve

nt

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 W

eb
si

te

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 T
ea

m

Pu
bl

ic
ity

 &
 A

dv
er

tis
in

g

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

n

W
or

d 
of

 M
ou

th

Re
fe

rr
al

s 
By

 S
ou

rc
e

116



Se
rv

ic
e 

Ty
pe

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 Is

su
e 

CC
G

 
Re

qu
ire

d 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Ab

ou
t H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
lin

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 
As

si
st

an
ce

 re
qu

ire
d 

w
ith

 h
ou

si
ng

 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

Ra
is

e 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

O
f L

ac
k 

O
f P

ro
pe

r I
np

ut
 A

nd
 S

up
po

rt
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
W

ith
 

H
us

ba
nd

's
 D

ea
th

 
H

os
pi

ta
l 

Ad
ul

t W
ith

 A
SD

 &
 L

D
 T

ol
d 

N
ot

 T
o 

Co
m

e 
Ba

ck
 T

o 
EN

T 
If 

H
e 

Pu
ts

 T
hi

ng
s 

In
 

H
is

 E
ar

s 
U

nl
es

s 
Th

ey
 B

ec
om

e 
In

fe
ct

ed
. 

H
os

pi
ta

l 
Po

or
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
Fr

om
 A

dm
is

si
on

 T
o 

D
is

ch
ar

ge
 In

 H
os

pi
ta

l I
n 

D
em

en
tia

 
Ca

re
. 

H
os

pi
ta

l 
H

os
pi

ta
l: 

Lo
ng

 W
ai

t F
or

 R
ef

er
ra

l T
o 

O
pe

ra
tio

n 
(1

 Y
ea

r)
 P

oo
r O

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

An
d 

N
o 

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n.

 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Ca

re
 

La
ck

 O
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Vi
a 

N
H

S 
11

1 
O

R 
Al

to
n 

St
re

et
 S

ur
ge

ry
 A

bo
ut

 T
au

ru
s 

H
ub

s 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Ca

re
 

D
o 

O
ve

r 6
5'

S 
Re

ce
iv

e 
Fr

ee
 N

H
S 

D
en

ta
l T

re
at

m
en

t 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Ca

re
 

Bo
bb

le
st

oc
k 

Su
rg

er
y,

 D
r R

op
er

 E
xc

el
le

nt
 S

up
po

rt
iv

e 
An

d 
Ac

ce
ss

 T
o 

G
P 

Fa
nt

as
tic

. 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Ca

re
 

Co
nc

er
n 

Pr
os

ta
te

 B
lo

od
 T

es
ts

 D
o 

N
ot

 A
cc

ou
nt

 F
or

 D
ru

gs
 A

nd
 R

ec
or

d 
A 

Fa
ls

e 
N

or
m

al
 R

es
ul

t. 
H

ea
lt

hc
ar

e 
CO

PD
 C

la
ss

es
 R

eq
ui

re
d 

In
 L

ed
bu

ry
 N

ot
 A

t T
he

 C
ou

nt
y 

H
os

pi
ta

l D
ue

 T
o 

Co
st

 A
nd

 A
cc

es
s,

 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lt
h 

N
ee

ds
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
An

d 
A

dv
ic

e 
Ab

ou
t M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h 
Po

or
 A

cc
es

s 
To

 D
em

en
tia

 D
ia

gn
os

is
 A

nd
 T

re
at

m
en

t 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lt
h 

SU
 P

oo
r C

om
pl

ai
nt

 H
an

dl
in

g 
An

d 
Co

nc
er

ne
d 

Ab
ou

t L
ac

k 
O

f S
up

po
rt

 A
s 

A 
Re

su
lt 

O
f T

he
 2

G
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lt
h 

W
is

he
s 

To
 D

is
cu

ss
 M

H
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

W
ith

 H
W

H
 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t &

 V
ol

un
te

er
 S

um
m

ar
y 

0
1

2
3

4
5

2G
et

he
r T

ru
st

Bo
bb

le
st

oc
k 

Su
rg

er
y

G
P 

Su
rg

er
y

H
er

ef
or

d 
Co

un
ty

 H
os

pi
ta

l

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s

N
H

S 
11

1

H
ou

si
ng

H
CC

G

H
ea

lth
ca

re

D
en

tis
ts

Re
fe

rr
al

s 
By

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

0
2

4
6

8
10

12

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Ch
ar

ge
s

Co
nc

er
n 

ab
ou

t s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
si

on

D
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 re
sp

ec
t

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 C

ar
e

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

s

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

ta
ff

Sa
fe

ty

St
af

f c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

Su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 a
 s

er
vi

ce

W
ai

tin
g 

Ti
m

es

Re
fe

rr
al

s 
By

 Is
su

e 
Ty

pe

Po
si

tiv
e

N
eg

at
iv

e

Ch
ild

re
n 

&
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

· 
H

ea
lth

w
at

ch
 is

 a
ct

iv
e 

in
 re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
C 

&
 Y

P 
on

 th
e 

Ch
ild

re
n’

s 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
Bo

ar
d 

an
d 

th
e 

Ch
ild

re
n’

s 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 B

oa
rd

.  
· 

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 h
av

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

so
m

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
Vo

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
Ch

ild
 P

ro
je

ct
, t

o 
fin

d 
ou

t t
he

 v
ie

w
s 

of
 C

 &
 Y

P 
on

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 C

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

.  
· 

W
e 

al
so

 a
re

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

Ta
ur

us
 p

la
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
C 

&
 Y

P 
·  

W
e 

ha
ve

 v
is

ite
d 

an
d 

sp
ok

e 
w

ith
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
Si

xt
h 

Fo
rm

 C
ol

le
ge

s 
si

te
, a

nd
 th

at
 

w
e 

ar
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 to
 v

is
it 

a 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 in
 th

e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re

 
· 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 2

2 
po

lic
e 

ca
de

ts
 1

6-
18

 y
ea

r o
ld

s 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 a

bo
ut

 H
ea

lth
 &

 S
oc

ia
l 

ca
re

 

117



 
V

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

Vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 a

re
 a

 k
ey

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 w

or
k 

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
. W

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 h

av
e 

10
 

tr
ai

ne
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 a

nd
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 5

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 g
oi

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 D
BS

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

W
e 

ar
e 

re
cr

ui
tin

g 
fo

r a
 v

ol
un

te
er

 L
ea

de
r.

 

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
1st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

4 
w

e 
ha

ve
 u

se
d 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
35

 V
ol

un
te

er
 h

ou
rs

. 

 

En
te

r 
&

 V
ie

w
 

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 is
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

10
 p

oi
nt

 d
ig

ni
ty

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 a

s 
a 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
to

 
sp

ea
k 

to
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

an
d 

ca
re

rs
 a

bo
ut

 th
ei

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 h

ea
lth

 &
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

vo
ic

e 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
w

ith
 

de
m

en
tia

 a
nd

 th
ei

r c
ar

er
s,

 m
ak

in
g 

th
ei

r v
oi

ce
 h

ea
rd

 a
nd

 lo
ok

in
g 

fo
r 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
  

W
e 

ha
ve

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 o
ur

 w
eb

si
te

 fo
r v

is
its

 to
: O

ak
la

nd
s 

N
ur

si
ng

 h
om

e,
 W

av
er

le
y 

H
ou

se
 a

nd
 H

ig
hw

el
l H

ou
se

 N
ur

si
ng

 H
om

es
 a

nd
 

Le
om

in
st

er
 C

om
m

un
ity

 H
os

pi
ta

l. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

 v
is

it 
to

 R
os

s 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 H
os

pi
ta

l o
n 

7th
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
vi

si
tin

g 
Th

e 
Co

un
ty

 H
os

pi
ta

l o
n 

21
st

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

. 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t &

 E
ve

nt
s 

· 
Ca

re
rs

 H
ub

 –
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 t
o 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 o
ur

 E
nt

er
 a

nd
 V

ie
w

 f
in

di
ng

s 
&

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
 o

f 
H

ea
lth

w
at

ch
 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t M

em
or

y 
Ca

fé
 fi

nd
in

gs
 

· 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 P
ub

lic
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t E
ve

nt
. 

· 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 w

ith
 2

ge
th

er
 t

o 
pl

an
 jo

in
t 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

w
ith

 m
ig

ra
nt

 w
or

ke
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, i
nc

re
as

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 M

en
ta

l 
H

ea
lth

 fi
rs

t A
id

 a
nd

 o
f M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s;

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
Co

lle
ge

 a
nd

 L
et

’s
 T

al
k.

 
· 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

G
at

ew
ay

. H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 a
re

 le
ad

in
g 

in
 t

he
 s

et
 u

p 
te

rm
s 

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

of
 t

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 h

ub
 

fo
r 

co
or

di
na

ti
ng

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

ac
ro

ss
 H

ea
lt

h 
&

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 
· 

Fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 e
va

lu
at

in
g 

pa
tie

nt
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 T
au

ru
s 

Li
nk

 N
ur

se
 p

ro
je

ct
 

· 
Pu

bl
is

he
d 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 H

ea
lth

w
at

ch
 p

at
ie

nt
 &

 c
ar

er
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 o

f A
lz

he
im

er
’s

 S
oc

ie
ty

 M
em

or
y 

Ca
fé

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t e

ve
nt

s 
· 

En
ga

ge
d 

w
ith

 C
ar

er
s 

at
 3

 C
ar

er
s 

G
ro

up
s 

ac
ro

ss
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 
· 

In
pu

t t
o 

Br
an

do
n 

Tr
us

t C
on

su
lt

at
io

n 
– 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
· 

M
ac

m
ill

an
 &

 H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 p
la

nn
in

g 
se

ss
io

n 
to

 a
id

 &
 a

ss
is

t t
he

 s
et

 u
p 

of
 c

an
ce

r 
su

pp
or

t g
ro

up
s 

in
 K

in
gt

on
 &

 R
os

s 
· 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 lo
ca

lly
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
ea

lt
hw

at
ch

/C
Q

C 
sh

ar
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
· 

PL
A

CE
 –

 in
 p

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 s

ta
ge

s 
fo

r 2
01

5-
16

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 w

ith
 2

G
et

he
r.

 H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 ta

ke
 p

ar
t i

n 
W

VT
 P

LA
CE

. 
 

118



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from
David Penrose

 

MEETING: 
 

MEETING DATE: 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: 

REPORT BY: 
 

1. Classification  
 Open 

2. Key Decision  

 This is not an executive decision 

3. Wards Affected

 County-wide  

4. Purpose 
4.1 To consider the Committee’s work programme.

5. Recommendation

 THAT:  The work programme as appended be
the Committee wished to make.

6. Alternative Options
It is for the Committee to determine its work programme as it sees fit to reflect the 
priorities facing Herefordshire.  Any number of subjects could be included in the 
work programme.  However, the Committee does need to be selective and ensure 
that the work programme is focused on the key issues, realistic and deliverable 
within the existing resources available

7. Reasons for Recommendations
7.1 The Committee needs 

scrutiny is focused, effective and produces clear outcomes.

8. Key Considerations
8.1 The Committee is asked to note its work programme and to note progress on 

current work. 

9. Community Impact
9.1 The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to the County’s 

residents. 

Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officers, on Tel (01432) 383690

 

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

4 FEBRUARY 2015 

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

GOVERNANCE SERVICES MANAGER

 

This is not an executive decision  

Wards Affected 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 

Recommendation 
THAT:  The work programme as appended be noted, subject to any comments 
the Committee wished to make. 

Alternative Options 
It is for the Committee to determine its work programme as it sees fit to reflect the 
priorities facing Herefordshire.  Any number of subjects could be included in the 
work programme.  However, the Committee does need to be selective and ensure 
that the work programme is focused on the key issues, realistic and deliverable 
within the existing resources available. 

Reasons for Recommendations 
The Committee needs to develop a manageable work programme to ensure that 
scrutiny is focused, effective and produces clear outcomes. 

Key Considerations 
The Committee is asked to note its work programme and to note progress on 

Community Impact 
The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to the County’s 

 
383690 

OVERVIEW & 

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

SERVICES MANAGER 

noted, subject to any comments 

It is for the Committee to determine its work programme as it sees fit to reflect the 
priorities facing Herefordshire.  Any number of subjects could be included in the 
work programme.  However, the Committee does need to be selective and ensure 
that the work programme is focused on the key issues, realistic and deliverable 

to develop a manageable work programme to ensure that 

The Committee is asked to note its work programme and to note progress on 

The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to the County’s 

AGENDA ITEM 12

119



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officers, on Tel (01432) 383690 

 

 

  

10. Equality and Human Rights 
10.1 The topics selected need to have regard for equality and Human rights issues. 

11. Financial Implications 
11.1 The cost of the work of the Scrutiny Committee will have to be met within existing 

resources.  It should be noted the costs of running scrutiny will be subject to an 
assessment to support appropriate processes. 

12. Legal Implications 
12.1 The Council is required to deliver an Overview and Scrutiny function. 

13. Risk Management 
13.1 There is a reputational risk to the Council if the Overview & Scrutiny function does 

not operate effectively.   The arrangements for the development of the work 
programme should help mitigate this risk. 

14. Consultees 
14.1 Following initial consultations on topics for scrutiny with Directors and Members of 

the Cabinet, all members of the Council were invited to suggest items for scrutiny. 

15. Appendices 
15.1 Appendix 1 - An outline work programme for the Committee. 

Appendix 2 – Executive Rolling Programme 

16. Background Papers 
16.1 None identified. 

120



Appendix 1 

 

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
ITEMS IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Draft Work Programme 

 
 

Tuesday 24 March 2015 at 10.00am 

Accountability Session To hold a public accountability session for organisations 
within the health sector.  This session shall focus on Public 
Health, Health and Wellbeing Board and Healthwatch 
Herefordshire. 

Stroke Pathway To receive a progress report on the Stroke Pathway 

Wye Valley NHS Trust To receive an update on the performance of the Wye Valley 
NHS Trust following the CQC report 

Children’s Safeguarding 
Performance Data 

To examine and challenge the performance data on 
children’s safeguarding. 

Healthwatch update To receive  a verbal report on any issues of concern 
 
The following issues are suggestions from the public for inclusion 
 

The impact of housing developments in Herefordshire on Hereford hospital and other social 
services 

 
 
 
The following matters shall be dealt with via briefing notes 
 

• Changes to the scrutiny arrangements of Herefordshire Council including risks, mitigation 
and proposed changes 

• An update on the use of mobile devices by social workers 
• 2gether NHS Foundation Trust headlines for Key Performance Indicators 

121



122



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 1
0 

20
15

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
 E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 D
ec
is
io
n
s 
to
 b
e 
ta
ke
n
 –
 J
an
u
ar
y 
20
15
 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 &
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 G
J 
P
O
W
E
L
L
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

26
 J

an
ua

ry
 

20
15

 
K
E
Y
 

R
ec
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 
H
ea
lt
h
y 
C
h
ild
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
5-
19
 (
sc
h
o
o
l 

n
u
rs
in
g
) 
co
n
tr
ac
t 
an
d
 e
xt
en
si
o
n
 o
f 
cu
rr
en
t 
co
n
tr
ac
t 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 

co
m
m
en
ce
m
en
t 
o
f 
fo
rm
al
 t
en
d
er
in
g
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 

 T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 
th

e 
re

po
rt
 is

 t
o 

se
cu

re
 a

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
en

su
re

 a
 c

on
tr
ac

t 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 
fo

r 
th

e 
5-

19
 

H
ea

lth
y 

C
hi

ld
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

N
at

io
na

l 
C

hi
ld

 
M

ea
su

re
m

en
t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
(N

C
M

P
) 

po
st

 3
1s

t 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 t
he

 
cu

rr
en

t c
on

tr
ac

t t
o 

be
 e

xt
en

de
d 

by
 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
to

 a
llo

w
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 k
ey

 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

A
du

lts
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
, P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 

A
lis

on
 M

er
ry

, C
on

su
lta

nt
 

 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 &
 F
IN
A
N
C
E
: 
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 A
W
 J
O
H
N
S
O
N
, L
E
A
D
E
R
 O
F
 T
H
E
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
N

on
 

K
ey

 
S
oc

ia
l V

al
ue

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

 T
o 

se
cu

re
 m

em
be

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 fo

r 
a 

co
un

ci
l ‘

S
oc

ia
l V

al
ue

 S
ta

te
m

en
t’ 

 W
ay

ne
 W

al
sb

y?
 C

ha
se

d 
12

.0
1.

15
 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 P
M
 M
O
R
G
A
N
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

 
N

on
 

K
ey

  
F
ee

 P
ol

ic
y 

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

ca
ra

va
n 

si
te

s 

N
ew
 le
gi
sl
at
io
n 
al
lo
w
s 
th
e 
Lo
ca
l A
ut
ho
rit
y 
to
 c
ha
rg
e 
a 
fe
e 
fo
r 

ad
m
in
is
te
rin
g 
an
d 
en
fo
rc
in
g 
its
 d
ut
y 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 li
ce
ns
in
g 
m
ob
ile
 h
om

e 

E
co

no
m

y,
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 c

or
po

ra
te

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e.

 

C
la

ire
 C

or
fie

ld
 

123



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 1
0 

pa
rk
s 

 
N

on
 

K
ey

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f G
yp

sy
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 
P

ol
ic

y 
 

 T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

ne
w

 p
ol

ic
y 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

 C
la

ire
 C

or
fie

ld
 

 E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 D
ec
is
io
n
s 
to
 b
e 
ta
ke
n
 –
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
15
 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

(o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)

 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 H
o
ld
er
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  

M
ak
er
 

6 
F
eb

 2
01

5 
B
&
B
F
 

20
15

/1
6 

B
ud

ge
t S

et
tin

g 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
tr
at

eg
y 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 

 

6 
F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

B
&
P
F
 

P
ay

 P
ol

ic
y 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 p

ay
 p

ol
ic

y 
st

at
em

en
t f

or
 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n;

 a
nd

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 in

di
vi

du
al

 s
al

ar
y 

pa
ck

ag
es

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 £
10

0,
00

0 
be

fo
re

 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t. 

E
C

C
 

B
ill
 N

or
m

an
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

(o
n 

or
 

af
te

r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 H
o
ld
er
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 

su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

26
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

N
o
n
 

K
ey
 

B
ud

ge
t M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ep

or
t 

 T
o 
re
po
rt
 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 p
os
iti
on
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
fo
r 
bo
th
 

R
ev
en
ue
 a
nd
 C
ap
ita
l 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 –

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 A
W

 J
oh

ns
on

, L
ea

de
r 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 / 

P
et

er
 R

ob
in

so
n 

26
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

N
o
n
 

K
ey
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
or

t 
 T
o 
re
vi
ew
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
  

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 -
  

R
ic

ha
rd

 B
al

l 
 

26
 F

eb
 

20
15

 
K
E
Y
 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

S
tr
at

eg
ic

 A
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

&
 Y

ou
ng

 
P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili
tie

s 
an

d 
/ o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

 
 T
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
pp
ro
ac
h 
fo
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
&
 Y
ou
ng
 

P
eo
pl
e 
w
ith
 d
is
ab
ili
tie
s 
an
d 
/ o
r 
sp
ec
ia
l e
du
ca
tio
na
l n
ee
ds
 

 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 W
el
lb
ei
n
g
 –
 R
ic
h
ar
d
 W
at
so
n
 

26
 F

eb
 

N
o
n
 

S
ta

yi
ng

 P
ut

 P
ro

je
ct

 
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

 

124



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 1
0 

20
15

 
ke
y 

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

S
ta

yi
ng

 P
ut

 P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

Jo
 K

in
g,

 H
ea

d 
of

 L
A
C

 

26
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

N
on

 
K
ey

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

U
pd

at
e 

T
o 

in
fo

rm
 C

ab
in

et
 o

f t
he

 o
ut

co
m

e 
of

 th
e 

D
fE

 R
ev

ie
w

  
T
o 

in
fo

rm
 C

ab
in

et
 o

f t
he

 o
ut

co
m

e 
of

 th
e 

H
S
C

B
 L

G
A

 P
ee

r 
D

ia
gn

os
tic

  
T
o 

up
da

te
 C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

 
da

te
 o

n 
th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 –

 J
oh

n 
R

ou
gh

to
n 

26
 F

eb
 

20
15

 
K
ey
 

F
ut

ur
e 

of
 C

ol
w

al
l P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
f C

ol
w

al
l S

ch
oo

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
A
nd

y 
H

ou
gh

 

26
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

N
on

 
K
ey

 
P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 
H

ea
lth

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 –
 C

ou
nc

ill
or

 G
J 

P
ow

el
l 

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 / 
S
us

an
 L

lo
yd

 

N
ow

 a
 

C
ab

in
et

 
M

em
be

r 
de

ci
si

on
 

H
 &

 W
B
 –

 
D

at
e 

T
B
C

 

K
E
Y
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 B

et
te

r 
C

ar
e 

F
un

d 
T
o 

ag
re

e 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

ris
in

g 
fr
om

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

B
et

te
r 
C

ar
e 

F
un

d 
(B

C
F
) 
P

la
n 

(J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

5 
S

ub
m

is
si

on
) 

an
d 

to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
Jo

in
t C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
P

la
n,

 S
pe

nd
in

g 
P
la

ns
 a

nd
 B

C
F
 S

ec
tio

n 
75

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 2

01
5/

16
 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 –

 C
ou

nc
ill
or

 G
J 

P
ow

el
l 

A
du

lts
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

R
ob

er
t V

ic
ke

rs
 

26
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

K
E
Y
 

A
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
a 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

in
 r
es

pe
ct

 
of

 p
up

il 
re

fe
rr

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
T
o 

ob
ta

in
 C

ab
in

et
 a

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
un

de
rt
ak

e 
a 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

ex
er

ci
se

 u
til

is
in

g 
a 

te
nd

er
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 s

ec
tio

n 
4.

6.
13

.3
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 r
ul

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
a 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
pr

ov
id

er
 o

f p
up

il 
re

fe
rr

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

(in
cl

ud
es

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 p
up

il 
re

fe
rr

al
 fu

nc
tio

n,
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 
ou

tr
ea

ch
 fu

nc
tio

n 
an

d 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

ho
sp

ita
l e

du
ca

tio
n 

fu
nc

tio
n)

 

C
&

Y
P
 C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
 M

ill
ar

  
Le

s 
K
ni

gh
t 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 &
 R
O
A
D
S
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 P
 R
O
N
E
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

5 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
15
  

 R
eg
 1
0 
G
en
 

K
E
Y
 

L
o
ca
l H
ig
h
w
ay
s 
M
ai
n
te
n
an
ce
 C
h
al
le
n
g
e 
F
u
n
d
 

 S
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l b

id
 to

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
  T

ra
ns

po
rt
’s

 L
oc

al
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
ha

lle
ng

e 
F
un

d 
– 

ap
pr

ov
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 P
la

ce
 B

as
ed

  C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 

 

125



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 1
0 

E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
 

R
ef
: 
20
15
.0
12
 

hi
gh

w
ay

 a
ss

et
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
as

e 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt
s 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 b
id
 

C
liv

e 
H

al
l –

 H
ea

d 
of

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

5 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

  

N
on

 
K
ey

 
Lo

ca
l H

ig
hw

ay
s 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
ha

lle
ng

e 
F
un

d 
A
ut

ho
ris

e 
th

e 
A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 P

la
ce

 B
as

ed
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
to

 
su

bm
it 

a 
bi

d 
to

 th
e 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

ilo
t F

un
d 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 te
st

 n
ew

 
m

od
el

s 
fo

r 
jo

in
ed

-u
p 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

cr
os

s 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

bo
un

da
rie

s.
 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 P
la

ce
 B

as
ed

  C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 
 S
te

ve
 B

ur
ge

ss
 –

 H
ea

d 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
cc

es
s 

5 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
 

N
on

 
K
ey

  
F
lo

od
 G

at
es

 &
 S

ig
ns

 –
 H

ay
w

oo
d 

La
ne

, M
ar

de
n 

T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

m
ot

io
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 g
at

es
 o

n 
H

ay
w

oo
d 

La
ne

, M
ar

de
n 

fo
r 
us

e 
du

rin
g 

pe
rio

ds
 o

f f
lo

od
in

g 
of

 th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 P
la

ce
 B

as
ed

  C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 
 A
la

sd
ai

r 
M

ac
D

on
al

d 
– 

D
es

ig
n 

&
 B

ui
ld

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
ity

 M
an

ag
er

 

5 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
 

K
ey
  

T
ot

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt
 P

ilo
t F

un
d 

A
ut

ho
ris

e 
th

e 
A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 P

la
ce

 B
as

ed
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
to

 
su

bm
it 

a 
bi

d 
to

 th
e 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

ilo
t F

un
d 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 te
st

 n
ew

 
m

od
el

s 
fo

r 
jo

in
ed

-u
p 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

cr
os

s 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

bo
un

da
rie

s.
 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 P
la

ce
 B

as
ed

  C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 
S
te

ve
 B

ur
ge

ss
 –

 H
ea

d 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
cc

es
s 

 

5 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
 

K
ey
 

G
o 

U
ltr

a 
Lo

w
 C

iti
es

 F
un

d 
A
ut

ho
ris

e 
th

e 
A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 P

la
ce

 B
as

ed
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
to

 
su

bm
it 

a 
bi

d 
to

 th
e 

O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

w
 E

m
is

si
on

 V
eh

ic
le

s 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 in
to

 a
n 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
xe

m
pl

ar
 fo

r 
el

ec
tr
ic

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 P
la

ce
 B

as
ed

  C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 
 B
en

 B
os

w
el

l  
– 

E
ne

rg
y 

&
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 L

ea
de

r 
 

D
at
e 
 

T
B
C
 

N
on

 
K
ey
 

A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 a
 p

ro
to

co
l f

or
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
R

ec
or

ds
 

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
dr

af
t p

ro
to

co
l f

or
 a

dd
in

g 
to

 o
r 

am
en

di
ng

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
re

co
rd

s 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

  
 S
pe

nc
er

 G
ro

ga
n 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 &
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 G
J 
P
O
W
E
L
L
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

12
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

 
K
ey
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
ea
lt
h
 C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
A
rr
an
g
em

en
ts
  

T
o 

se
cu

re
 a

pp
ro

va
l f

or
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

on
tr
ac

t l
et

tin
g 

an
d 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
. 

A
du

lts
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
, P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 

S
us

an
 L

lo
yd

, I
nt

er
im

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 

4 
F
eb

ru
ar

y 
 

N
o
n
 

K
ey
 

H
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 
P
re
ve
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

 T
o
 s
et
 o
u
t 
th
e 
L
o
ca
l A
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 p
la
n
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
p
re
ve
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 

h
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 / 
Ja

ne
 T

ho
m

as
 //

 L
au

ra
 L

lo
yd

 

126



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
5 

of
 1
0 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

M
A
R
C
H
E
S
 L
O
C
A
L
 E
N
T
E
R
P
R
IS
E
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
 J
O
IN
T
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

   
T
B
C
 

N
o
n
 

ke
y 

M
ar

ch
es

 L
E
P
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

T
o 

ag
re

e 
a 

dr
af

t a
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili
ty

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
su

bm
is

si
on

 to
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t. 

M
ar
ch
es
 L
E
P
; 
Ja
cq
u
ie
 C
as
ey
 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 IN
F
R
A
S
T
R
U
C
T
U
R
E
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 P
D
 P
R
IC
E
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 

fo
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  

M
ak
er
 

6 
F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

K
ey
 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

E
ne

rg
y 

ga
s 

su
pp

lie
r 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

 T
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ga

s 
su

pp
lie

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
 to

 T
ot

al
 G

as
 &

 P
ow

er
 o

n 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
jo

in
t c

om
m

itt
ee

. 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 R
ic

ha
rd

 W
oo

d 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 P
M
 M
O
R
G
A
N
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su

e T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 

fo
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  

M
ak
er
 

C
M

 –
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
6 

F
eb

  2
01

5 

K
E
Y
  

B
ac
k 
o
ff
ic
e 
su
p
p
o
rt
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

A
pp
ro
ve
 th
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 
an
d 
ag
re
e 
th
e 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
pl
an
 fo
r 
th
e 
re
-

co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
cu
rr
en
tly
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
by
 H
oo
pl
e.

 

R
ic

ha
rd

 B
al

l, 
E
C

C
 

R
ob

 E
w

in
g 

 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 &
 F
IN
A
N
C
E
: 
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 A
W
 J
O
H
N
S
O
N
, L
E
A
D
E
R
 O
F
 T
H
E
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 

fo
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  

M
ak
er
 
 

127



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 1
0 

(o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

25
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
15
 

K
ey
 

B
us

in
es

s 
un

it 
sc

he
m

e 
on

 p
lo

t S
5 

of
 th

e 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

zo
ne

 
T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 b

us
in

es
s 

un
its

 o
n 

th
e 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
zo

ne
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 fo
r 
de

liv
er

y 

E
C
C
, M
ar
k 
P
ea
rc
e 

25
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
15
 

K
ey
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Z
on

e:
 C

ap
ita

l I
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
 2

01
5/

16
 (
P

ha
se

 1
) 

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

 to
 m

ak
e 

Z
on

e 
re

ad
y 

fo
r 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 2
01

5/
16

 
E
C

C
, M

ar
k 

P
ea

rc
e 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 Y
O
U
N
G
 P
E
O
P
L
E
 &
 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
’S
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
: 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 J
W
 M
IL
L
A
R
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 

fo
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  

M
ak
er
 

T
B
C

 
F
eb

ru
ar

y 
  

N
o
n
 

K
ey
 

N
ew

 H
or

iz
on

s 
- 
P

os
t 1

9 
Le

ar
ne

rs
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

an
d 

or
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
P
ilo

t 
P
ro

je
ct

 R
ep

or
t 

 T
o 

gi
ve

 a
n 

up
da

te
 o

n 
th

e 
sm

al
l p

ilo
t f

or
 fu

rt
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t l

iv
in

g 
an

d 
th

er
ap

eu
tic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

ge
d 

19
-2

5 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

an
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

 p
ro

fo
un

d,
 m

ul
tip

le
 o

r 
se

ve
re

ly
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

at
ur

e,
 w

hi
ch

 c
om

m
en

ce
d 

on
 1

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3.

  A
s 

re
so

lv
ed

 b
y 

ca
bi

ne
t o

n 
19

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
. 

 F
or

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 
fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 to
 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
 to

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
re

po
rt
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

pi
lo

t p
ro

je
ct

 c
on

tin
ue

s.
  A

s 
re

so
lv

ed
 

by
 c

ab
in

et
 o

n 
19

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
. 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 / 

A
le

xi
a 

H
ea

th
 

19
 F

eb
 T

B
C

 
 27

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
la

te
st

 

N
o
n
 

ke
y 

F
in
al
 S
ch
o
o
l B
u
d
g
et
s 
20
15
/1
6 
– 
N
at
io
n
al
 S
ch
o
o
l F
u
n
d
in
g
 F
o
rm
u
la
 

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

fin
al

 s
ch

oo
l b

ud
ge

ts
 fo

r 
20

15
/1

6 
as

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
by

 S
ch

oo
ls

 F
or

um
 a

nd
 

as
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l S

ch
oo

ls
 F

un
di

ng
 F

or
m

ul
a 

C
W

B
: M

al
co

lm
 G

re
en

 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
S
 &
 A
S
S
E
T
S
: 
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 H
 B
R
A
M
E
R
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 

fo
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  

M
ak
er
 

E
nd

 o
f F

eb
 

20
15

 
N

on
 

K
ey

 
A
do

pt
io

n 
of

 L
ei

su
re

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
S
tr
at

eg
y 

F
or

m
al

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 L
ei

su
re

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
S
tr
at

eg
y 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 M
ic

k 
Li

ge
m

a 

 

128



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
7 

of
 1
0 

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 D
ec
is
io
n
s 
to
 b
e 
ta
ke
n
 –
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
5  

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 

/ D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

(o
n 

or
 

af
te

r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 

H
o
ld
er
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 

b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

6 
M

ar
ch

 
20

15
 

 
S
et

tin
g 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
T
ax

 
 

 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 

/ D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

(o
n 

or
 

af
te

r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

  

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 

H
o
ld
er
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 

b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

26
 

M
ar
ch
  

K
E
Y
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

P
at

hw
ay

 
 T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

P
at

hw
ay

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 

 
A
du

lts
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
 R

ic
ha

rd
 G

ab
b 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 &
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 G
J 
P
O
W
E
L
L
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 
 
K
E
Y
 

C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
A
w
ar
d
 f
o
r 
th
e 
d
el
iv
er
y 
o
f 
H
ea
lt
h
 C
h
ec
ks
 a
n
d
 S
to
p
 

S
m
o
ki
n
g
 s
er
vi
ce
 

T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

he
 r
ep

or
t i

s 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 c

on
tr
ac

t a
w

ar
d 

fo
r 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

 H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

s 
an

d 
S
to

p 
S
m

ok
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 

A
du

lts
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e,

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

, G
w

en
 E

lli
so

n,
 

H
ea

lth
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

31
 M

ar
ch

 
20

15
 

N
o
n
 

K
ey
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

en
an

cy
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

20
12

 -
20

15
.  

 
 T
o 
re
vi
ew
 a
nd
 u
pd
at
e 
cu
rr
en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 
in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 
w
ith
 th
e 

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 / 
Ja

ne
 T

ho
m

as
 

129



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
8 

of
 1
0 

Lo
ca
lis
m
 A
ct
 2
01
1 
(s
.1
50
).
  T
he
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 m
at
te
rs
 to
 w
hi
ch
 th
e 

re
gi
st
er
ed
 p
ro
vi
de
rs
 o
f s
oc
ia
l h
ou
si
ng
 fo
r 
its
 d
is
tr
ic
t a
re
 to
 h
av
e 
re
ga
rd
 

in
 fo
rm
ul
at
in
g 
po
lic
ie
s.
 

T
B
C

  
(M

ar
ch

 2
01

5)
 

K
E
Y
 

S
tr
at

eg
ic

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f E

xt
ra

 C
ar

e 
P
ro

vi
si

on
 

 T
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
t a

ll 
ex

tr
a 

ca
re

 s
ch

em
es

 
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

R
os

e 
G

ar
de

ns
 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 / 

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

  
 R

ic
ha

rd
 G

ab
b 

T
B
C

  
(M

ar
ch

 2
01

5)
 

K
E
Y
 

R
os

e 
G

ar
de

n-
 E

xt
ra

 C
ar

e 
S
up

po
rt
 P

ro
vi

si
on

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
 A
pp

ro
ve

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t c

on
tr
ac

t w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

E
xt

ra
 

C
ar

e 
C

ha
rit

ab
le

 T
ru

st
 (
E
C

C
T
) 
– 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 u

nt
il 

M
ar

ch
 

20
16

.  

La
ur

a 
Ll

oy
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

A
du

lt 
an

d 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

4 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 
 

K
E
Y
 

R
e-

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 C

ar
er

s 
S
ho

rt
- 
B
re

ak
 S

er
vi

ce
 

T
o 

co
nf

irm
 fu

tu
re

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ar
er

’s
 S

ho
rt
 -

B
re

ak
 S

er
vi

ce
 

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

/ 
A
m

y 
P

itt
  

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 Y
O
U
N
G
 P
E
O
P
L
E
 &
 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
’S
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
: 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 J
W
 M
IL
L
A
R
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

26
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

K
ey
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e-
p
ro
vi
si
o
n
in
g
 o
f 
ch
ild
re
n
’s
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
– 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
en
tr
es
 

T
o 
se
cu
re
 a
pp
ro
va
l t
o 
co
m
m
is
si
on
 a
nd
/o
r 
as
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 r
e-
pr
ov
id
e 

ch
ild
re
n’
s 
ce
nt
re
s 
an
d 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 –
 P

hi
lip

pa
 G

ra
nt

hi
er

 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 &
 F
IN
A
N
C
E
: 
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 A
W
 J
O
H
N
S
O
N
, L
E
A
D
E
R
 O
F
 T
H
E
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

 
9 
M
ar
ch
  

K
E
Y
 

H
er
ef
o
rd
sh
ir
e 
L
E
A
D
E
R
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
20
15
-2
02
0 
 

T
o 

co
nf

irm
 d

el
iv

er
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 o
f L

E
A
D

E
R

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

  

D
aw

n 
T
ur

ne
r 

 

130



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
9 

of
 1
0 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 &
 R
O
A
D
S
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 P
 R
O
N
E
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

 (o
n 

or
 a

fte
r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

26
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 
   

K
E
Y
 

P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

 A
nn

ua
l P

la
n 

20
15

/1
6 

T
o 

co
nf

irm
 th

e 
A
nn

ua
l P

la
n 

fo
r 
th

e 
P

ub
lic

 R
ea

lm
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
on

tr
ac

t 
w

ith
 B

al
fo

ur
 B

ea
tty

 L
iv

in
g 

P
la

ce
s 

E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 C
or

po
ra

te
 –

 P
la

ce
 B

as
ed

  
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
 

C
liv

e 
H

al
l –

 H
ea

d 
of

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
&

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 D
ec
is
io
n
s 
to
 b
e 
ta
ke
n
 –
 J
u
n
e 
20
15
 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 H
o
ld
er
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

Ju
ne

 
20

15
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f S

m
al

lh
ol

di
ng

s 
 T
o 
ap
pr
is
e 
M
em

be
rs
 o
f t
he
 o
ut
co
m
e 
of
 th
e 
S
m
al
lh
ol
di
ng
s 
R
ev
ie
w
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 b
y 
F
is
ch
er
 G
er
m
an
 a
nd
 to
 s
ee
k 
ap
pr
ov
al
 fo
r 
th
e 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 c
on
ta
in
ed
 th
er
ei
n 

 
E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 –
 T

on
y 

F
ea

th
er

st
on

e 

Ju
ne

  
20

15
 

N
on

 K
ey
  

 Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 R
ep
or
t 

 T
o 
re
vi
ew
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce

 

  
E
co

no
m

y,
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 -
  

R
ic

ha
rd

 B
al

l 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 

D
ec
is
io
n
 

D
at
e 

(o
n 

or
 

af
te

r)
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 H
o
ld
er
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

B
oa

rd
s 

B
us

in
es

s 
P
la

n 
an

d 
A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t. 
  

 T
o 
in
fo
rm
 C
ab
in
et
 o
f p
ro
gr
es
s 
m
ad
e 
to
w
ar
ds
 th
e 

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
B
oa
rd
 B
us
in
es
s 
P
la
n 

an
d 
an
nu
al
 r
ep
or
t 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 / 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 J
 M

ill
ar
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
, J

oh
n 

R
ou

gh
to

n?
 

 

131



D
:\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

7\
4\

7\
A
I0

00
35

74
7\

$e
se

m
5u

4z
.d

oc
x 

P
ag

e 
10

 o
f 1
0 

D
A
T
E
 T
O
 B
E
 C
O
N
F
IR
M
E
D
 

 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

Is
su
e 

T
yp
e 

P
u
rp
o
se
 &
 R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
o
rt
fo
lio
 

H
o
ld
er
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
, L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 &
 C
o
n
ta
ct
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 f
o
r 

d
o
cu
m
en
ts
/r
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 D
ec
is
io
n
  M
ak
er
 

T
B
C
  

D
ec
em

b
er
 

20
15
 

Ro
se

 G
ar

de
n-

 E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

Su
pp

or
t P

ro
vi

si
on

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
 Aw

ar
d 

of
 th

e 
ex

tr
a 

ca
re

 c
on

tr
ac

t a
t R

os
e 

G
ar

de
ns

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
5.

 

H
ea

lth
 &

 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 / 
La

ur
a 

Ll
oy

d 

 

132


	Agenda
	
	4 Minutes
	8 Children's Safeguarding Update
	004a DfE Letter - Herefordshire Council 18 month review letter
	004b LGA Letter
	004c Journey to Good progress update Jan 2015
	004d Ofsted Action Plan

	9 Mandatory training for elected members
	10 Care Act 2014 - Update
	Care Act Progress Update by work area 20150126
	The Care Act - Comms Campaign Briefing v6

	11 Healthwatch Herefordshire
	Monthly Partner Briefing  1-12-14 - 20-1-2015

	12 Work Plan
	Draft HOSC work programme Feb
	004 ERP 23 Jan 15


